If members of the public wish to attend the meeting digitally the meeting link is below
in yellow.

WINTER PARK TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
Winter Park Town Hall – 50 Vasquez Road
Tuesday, July 6, 2021 – 5:30 p.m.
Dinner will be provided.

AGENDA
1.

Meeting Call To Order
a.
Pledge of Allegiance
b.
Roll Call of Council Members

2.

Town Hall Meeting (Public Comment)
Public Comment is restricted to three minutes per person, and you must state
your name and physical address for the record. Please be mindful of not
reiterating other people’s comments.
a.
Grand County EMS Chief Robert Good

3.

Consent Agenda
a.
Approval of June 15, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
b.
Resolution 1874, A Resolution Declaring Unused Vehicles and Equipment
as Surplus Property and Authorizing its Sale or Disposal
c.
Town’s Official Position Letter for CR522, Fraser Valley Parkway
d.
Resolution 1875, A Resolution Approving an Eligible Capital
Improvement to Lot 9, Hideaway Junction

4.

Action Items
a.
2020 Audit Presentation
b.
Public Hearing, Approval of Special Event Permits
- Shining Stars
- Adventure Film Festival
- Blues Fest
- Beer Fest
- Crooked Gravel
- USA Cycling, Mountain Bike Nationals
-Winter Park Resort Beer Festival
c.
Public Hearing (Local Liquor Licensing Authority) – Issuance of New Hotel
& Restaurant Liquor License for Grayson Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Coffee
and Tea Market

d.

e.

f.

5.

6.
7.

TABLED Ordinance 559, An Ordinance of the Town of Winter Park
Amending Chapter 2 of Title 3 of the Winter Park Town Code to
Implement the Voter Approved Regulated Marijuana Sales Tax,
Repealing Chapter 6 of Title 3 Prohibiting Medical Marijuana
Businesses, Repealing and Reenacting Chapter 7 of Title 3
Regarding Regulated Marijuana Businesses, repealing and
Reenacting Sections 7-3-19 and 7-3-21 Regarding Medical and
Retail Marijuana Establishments, and Repealing and Reenacting
Sections 7-5B-2(B) and 7-5D-2(B) of the Winter Park Town Code to
Allow for Regulated Marijuana Businesses in Specified Zone
Districts by Special Use Permit, Second Reading and Public
Hearing
TABLED Resolution 1868, A Resolution of the Town Council of the
Town of Winter Park to Establish Fees Related to Licensing for
Regulated Marijuana Businesses
Ordinance 560, An Ordinance Appropriating Additional Sums of
Money to Defray Expenses in Excess of Amounts Budgeted and
Appropriated for the Fiscal Year in 2021 for the Town of Winter
Park, Colorado, Second Reading and Public Hearing

Town Manager’s Report
a.
Council Retreat Follow-up
b.
Mountain Migration Report
Mayor’s Report
Town Council Items for Discussion

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.
When: July 6, 2021 05:30 PM Mountain Time (US and Canada)
Topic: Town of Winter Park Regular Council Meeting
Register in advance for this webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_DWzbonYxRzOczSD94EVv3w

MINUTES

DATE:

Tuesday, June 15, 2021

MEETING:

Winter Park Town Council

PLACE:

Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom Meeting Call

PRESENT:

Mayor Nick Kutrumbos, Mayor Pro Tem Michael Periolat, Councilors, Art Ferrari,
Mike Davlin, Jeremy Henn via phone, Jennifer Hughes and Rebecca Kaufman,
Town Manager Keith Riesberg, Assistant Town Manager Alisha Janes, Town
Attorney Hilary Graham, and Town Clerk Dani Jardee

OTHERS
PRESENT:

Community Development Director James Shockey, Finance Director Lizbeth
Lemley, Chief of Police Glen Trainor, Public Works Director Gerry Vernon,
Transit Manager Ivy Compton, and Town Planner Hugh Bell

Mayor Nick Kutrumbos called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.
Mayor Nick Kutrumbos led those present in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.
2.

Town Hall Meeting
Winter Park Resident, Jill Swent, 15 Idlewild Lane stated concerns with the Town Code in relation
to building permit extensions. Town Manager Keith Riesberg stated Staff would work with the
Building Department on a possible solution.

3.
3.a.
3.b.

Consent Agenda
Approval of May 25, 2021, Annual Retreat Minutes
Approval of June 1, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes
Councilor Art Ferrari moved and Councilor Rebecca Kaufman seconded the motion approving the
Consent Agenda. Motion carried: 7-0.

4.
4.a.

Action Items
Public Hearing, Approval of Special Event Permits
-Chamber of Commerce Events
-Cooper Creek Square
-Alpine Art Affair
-G3 Bike Race
Town Clerk Danielle Jardee stated multiple special event applications have come in for the summer
and stated brief descriptions of each event listed by the following applicants, Chamber of
Commerce, Cooper Creek Square Merchants Association, Alpine Art Affair, Inc, and Rattler
Racing. Ms. Jardee stated all applications have been reviewed by Staff and have been noticed
properly, therefore Staff recommends approval. Mayor Kutrumbos opened the public hearing,
hearing no comments, Mayor Kutrumbos closed the public hearing.
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Councilor Mike Davlin moved and Councilor Jennifer Hughes seconded the motion approving
Special Event Permits for Chamber of Commerce Events, Cooper Creek Square, Alpine Art Affair,
and G3 Bike Race. Motion carried: 7-0.
4.b.

Ordinance 558, An Ordinance Amending Title 7 of the Winter Park Municipal Code by the
Addition of a New Chapter 12 Entitled “Wireless Communications Facilities”, Second
Reading and Public Hearing
Community Development Director James Shockey stated this ordinance creates regulations for
towers, small wireless communications facilities, and wall and roof mounted facilities. Mr.
Shockey stated the regulations limit, location, number, size, number, and design of facilities and
require colocation whenever possible. Mr. Shockey stated these regulations are required by State
law. Mr. Shockey stated public notification did go out, no comments were received and Planning
Commission reviewed this on May 25 and recommended approval as drafted. Mayor Nick
Kutrumbos opened the public hearing, hearing no comments. Mayor Kutrumbos closed the public
hearing.
Councilor Art Ferrari moved and Councilor Rebecca Kaufman seconded the motion approving
Ordinance 558, An Ordinance Amending Title 7 of the Winter Park Municipal Code by the
Addition of a New Chapter 12 Entitled “Wireless Communications Facilities”, Second Reading
and Public Hearing. Motion carried by the following roll call vote:
Mike Davlin
“Aye”
Michael Periolat
“Aye”
Art Ferrari
“Aye”
Jennifer Hughes
“Aye”
Rebecca Kaufman
“Aye”
Jeremy Henn
“Aye”
Nick Kutrumbos
“Aye”

4.c.

Ordinance 559, An Ordinance of the Town of Winter Park Amending Chapter 2 of Title 3 of
the Winter Park Town Code to Implement the Voter Approved Regulated Marijuana Sales
Tax, Repealing Chapter 6 of Title 3 Prohibiting Medical Marijuana Businesses, Repealing
and Reenacting Chapter 7 of Title 3 Regarding Regulated Marijuana Businesses, repealing
and Reenacting Sections 7-3-19 and 7-3-21 Regarding Medical and Retail Marijuana
Establishments, and Repealing and Reenacting Sections 7-5B-2(B) and 7-5D-2(B) of the
Winter Park Town Code to Allow for Regulated Marijuana Businesses in Specified Zone
Districts by Special Use Permit, Second Reading and Public Hearing
Town Manager Keith Riesberg stated this is the second reading of the ordinance to allow for
regulated marijuana businesses. Mr. Riesberg stated one minor modification has been made to the
ordinance following the first reading, the language now reflects that there will be a fee determined
by resolution for the phase two application. Mr. Riesberg stated after the first reading we did
receive questions about the timing of the permitting process, Staff believes the timing is sufficient.
Mr. Riesberg stated an estimated timeline to Council of how the process will move forward. Mr.
Riesberg stated Staff anticipates the timing for the random selection process will be conducted in
late October of this year. Independent of that process the applicant would also have to go through
the special use permit process which is also required per the ordinance. Mr. Riesberg stated if the
ordinance is adopted tonight a resolution is also on the agenda which establishes the fees related to
the marijuana application process. Councilor Rebecca Kaufman asked about transferring, is it
possible for one owner to own two locations. Town Attorney Hilary Graham stated each license
has to be owned by different entities. Ms. Kaufman asked about the signage requirement and if the
Chamber takes a sponsorship banner is that in violation of the ordinance. Mr. Riesberg stated no,
there is language that allows sponsorship signage at an event if it is a charitable organization.
Mayor Kutrumbos opened the public hearing. Public comment was given by Winter Park Resident,
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David Michael who represents Igadi, Ashley Block who represents a cannabis company, Winter
Park Property Owner Ed Raegner, Berkshire Hathaway Representative Julie Ray, Serene Wellness
Owner Daniel Volpe, and Co-worker to Ashley Block, Aiden (did not state last name). All public
comments stated their concerns with the phase one application process and wished to see site
control or stronger requirements in the phase one application process. Mayor Kutrumbos closed
the public hearing. Mr. Riesberg stated Staff is comfortable with this ordinance but if Council has
concerns then Council can decide to take a step back and look at it further. Councilor Art Ferrari
stated his concerns with the site acquisition and/or possible implementing a higher hurdle for the
phase one application. Councilor Mike Davlin stated he is not opposed to implementing a higher
hurdle for requirements in phase one. Councilor Rebecca Kaufman asked about being registered
with the Secretary of State, and if marijuana applicants can get a federal tax id. Councilor Jeremy
Henn asked what site control means. Town Attorney Hilary Graham stated like liquor license
applications, they have to have proof that they have the legal right to control the premises. Ms.
Graham stated it would be interesting to know is how many commentors supporting site control
already have site control in place. Ms. Graham stated it was a conscious choice to remove obstacles
to applying because those choices are fraught with peril as well.
Councilor Art Ferrari moved and Councilor Mike Davlin seconded the motion to Table Ordinance
559, An Ordinance of the Town of Winter Park Amending Chapter 2 of Title 3 of the Winter Park
Town Code to Implement the Voter Approved Regulated Marijuana Sales Tax, Repealing Chapter
6 of Title 3 Prohibiting Medical Marijuana Businesses, Repealing and Reenacting Chapter 7 of
Title 3 Regarding Regulated Marijuana Businesses, repealing and Reenacting Sections 7-3-19 and
7-3-21 Regarding Medical and Retail Marijuana Establishments, and Repealing and Reenacting
Sections 7-5B-2(B) and 7-5D-2(B) of the Winter Park Town Code to Allow for Regulated
Marijuana Businesses in Specified Zone Districts by Special Use Permit, Second Reading and
Public Hearing to the July 6, 2021 Town Council Meeting. Motion carried: 5-2.

4.d.

Resolution 1868, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Winter Park to Establish
Fees Related to Licensing for Regulated Marijuana Businesses
TABLED
Councilor Art Ferrari moved and Councilor Mike Davlin seconded the motion to Table Resolution
1868, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Winter Park to Establish Fees Related to
Licensing for Regulated Marijuana Businesses to the July 6, 2021, Town Council Meeting. Motion
carried: 7-0.

4.e.

Ordinance 560, An Ordinance Appropriating Additional Sums of Money to Defray Expenses
in Excess of Amounts Budgeted and Appropriated for the Fiscal Year in 2021 for the Town
of Winter Park, Colorado, First Reading
Finance Director Lizbeth Lemley stated we are proposing some budget amendments tonight, and
Council are already aware of the amendments. Ms. Lemley state a three percent increase for all of
Staff is included in this ordinance which will be voted on later tonight, if it does not pass then there
will be another budget amendment. Ms. Lemley stated the transit and trails fund will purchase a
piece of land adjacent to the transit maintenance site which will be transferred from the affordable
housing fund at cost. Ms. Lemley stated in capital equipment we received grant money for two
busses in 2022 but we can get the busses in 2021 which include the wraps and the automated voice
announcements. Ms. Lemley stated the three percent increases to staff are due to the fact that we
are currently 200,000 dollars ahead in sales tax dollars, and we have state grants for busses and
federal CARES Act grant dollars. Ms. Lemley stated the affordable housing fund has two requested
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amendments, infrastructure for Hideaway Junction phase two, and water infiltration had to be fixed
in Hideaway Place. Ms. Lemley stated the capital fund, the first is additional costs of capital
outlay, we will be paying out for the public works facility, and holiday décor lighting, these
additional expenses are offset by sales tax revenue. Ms. Lemley stated I have to present a transfer
from the general fund just to balance the budget which is required by law however I do not
anticipate the full amount being transferred. Ms. Lemley stated the law enforcement fund and
building services fund are only changed by the three percent Staff increases. Ms. Lemley stated
the general fund increase for salaries and wages, includes the three percent increase and two new
positions. Ms. Lemley stated administrative services asking for additional $10,000 dollars which
covers changes to sales tax and licensing programing, includes transfer to capital fund, transfer to
law enforcement and offsets with sales tax revenues, and includes short term registration fees, state
funding and additional funds under the American Recovery Act.
Mayor Pro Tem Michael Periolat moved and Councilor Art Ferrari seconded the motion approving
Ordinance 560, An Ordinance Appropriating Additional Sums of Money to Defray Expenses in
Excess of Amounts Budgeted and Appropriated for the Fiscal Year in 2021 for the Town of Winter
Park, Colorado, First Reading. Motion carried by following roll call vote:
Rebecca Kaufman
“Aye”
Jennifer Hughes
“Aye”
Art Ferrari
“Aye”
Michael Periolat
“Aye”
Mike Davlin
“Aye”
Jeremy Henn
“Aye”
Nick Kutrumbos
“Aye”

4.f.

Resolution 1869, A Resolution Recognizing the Contributions and Efforts of Winter Park
Town Staff and Directing the Implementation of Raises for Town Employees
Finance Director Lizbeth Lemley stated due to the uncertainty of the financial impact of COVID19, the Town did not budget for Staff raises. Ms. Lemley stated Council asked to rereview after
the ski season and is happy to report that we did have a successful winter. Ms. Lemley stated we
are pleased with the efforts Staff put in knowing they were the only municipality in the area that
did not get raises. Ms. Lemley stated it is a great sign of appreciation to be able to provide staff
with this increase. Ms. Lemley stated the increase comes in right under $120,000 and is covered
by the budget amendment ordinance. Mayor Kutrumbos stated to let Staff know how thankful
Council is for their efforts.
Councilor Jeremy Henn moved and Councilor Jennifer Hughes seconded the motion approving
Resolution 1869, A Resolution Recognizing the Contributions and Efforts of Winter Park Town
Staff and Directing the Implementation of Raises for Town Employees. Motion carried: 7-0.

4.g.

Resolution 1870, A Resolution Approving the Second Amendment to the Employment
Agreement with the Town Manger
Finance Director Lizbeth Lemley stated this resolution is presented because Town Manager, Keith
Riesberg is employed through an employment contract with Town. In 2018 Mr. Riesberg entered
the contract and based on favorable reviews from Town Council his contract can be amended to
reflect a three percent raise like Staff. Ms. Lemley asked if Council can amend the employment
agreement so that raises given to Staff in the future can also be given to Mr. Riesberg without
bringing it back to Council each time.
Councilor Art Ferrari moved and Councilor Jeremy Henn seconded the motion approving
Resolution 1870, A Resolution Approving the Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement
with the Town Manger. Motion carried: 7-0.
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4.h.

Public Hearing, Resolution 1871, A Resolution Approving with Conditions the Preliminary
Plat for Jane Creek, Lot 1B Condominiums
Town Planner Hugh Bell stated this is a preliminary plat for Jane Creek, Lot 1B subdivision located
in the Iron Horse Subdivision near Old Town. Mr. Bell stated in the interest of time he is only
going to go over areas that have staff concerns or conditions for approval. Mr. Bell stated the
project comprises of 42 dwelling units and will be laid out through three commercial buildings.
Mr. Bell stated there are several parking spaces that are smaller than standard and the applicant
must do an administrative variance request. Mr. Bell stated landscaping is satisfactory, and snow
storage is unsatisfactory because the current amount proposed is half of what is required. Mr. Bell
stated the applicant has verbally stated they are looking at a snow melt system however Staff will
need that in writing. Mr. Bell stated there needs to be a five percent land dedication or else the
applicant can pay a fee in lieu which needs to be calculated off fair market value. Mr. Bell stated
the fee was calculated off the assessor’s site but Council can request an appraisal if they do not
agree with the fee. Mr. Bell stated there were some concerns from agencies such as the geological
survey about slope and steepness, so the applicant will need to address those, and East Grand Fire
had concerns about access. Mr. Bell stated Staff is about to prepare a redline print for the applicant
so they will need to revise the plat in accordance with that which Staff will provide after this public
hearing. Mr. Bell stated Planning Commission approved this preliminary plat at last Tuesday’s
meeting, and Staff recommends approval with 15 conditions. Council discussed with the applicant
about East Grand Fire’s concern. Council also discussed the land dedication in lieu of fee and that
process. Town Manager Keith Riesberg stated what he is sensing from Council is that it is time to
revisit our policies on the land dedication fee. Mayor Kutrumbos opened the public hearing,
hearing no comments. Mayor Kutrumbos closed the public hearing.
Councilor Art Ferrari moved and Councilor Mike Davlin seconded the motion approving Public
Hearing, Resolution 1871, A Resolution Approving with Conditions the Preliminary Plat for Jane
Creek, Lot 1B Condominiums. Motion carried: 7-0.

4.i.

Public Hearing, Resolution 1872, A Resolution Approving the Rezoning of Kings Crossing
Retail Center Condominiums from Residential Commercial District to Destination Center
District
Community Development Director James Shockey stated this a request to rezone Kings Crossing
Retail Center from residential commercial to destination center. Mr. Shockey stated this request
follows suit with the other rezoning requests Council has recently approved which were the Pub
property and the Strip and Tail property.
Councilor Mike Davlin moved and Mayor Pro Tem Michael Periolat seconded the motion
approving Public Hearing, Resolution 1872, A Resolution Approving the Rezoning of Kings
Crossing Retail Center Condominiums from Residential Commercial District to Destination Center
District. Motion carried: 7-0.

4.j.

Resolution 1873, A Resolution Adopting the Transit Advisory Committee’s Recommendation
to Deny Rendezvous Service Request of the Red Line Extension
Transit Manager Ivy Compton stated on March 31, 2021, Rendezvous submitted a service request
to expand the red line through Friendship Drive. Ms. Compton stated it was presented to the Transit
Advisory Committee on April 5, 2021, it was also posted on the website and on May 3, 2021, the
Transit Advisory Committee took public comment and decided it would be best to move forward
with a public survey to gather more feedback. Ms. Compton stated the survey was live May 24
and closed on June 3 and 58.9 % of people were opposed to the service extension. Ms. Compton
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stated the Transit Advisory Committee unanimously denied the request and is recommending Town
Council also deny the request.
Councilor Art Ferrari moved and Councilor Jennifer Hughes seconded the motion approving
Resolution 1873, A Resolution Adopting the Transit Advisory Committee’s Recommendation to
Deny Rendezvous Service Request of the Red Line Extension. Motion carried: 7-0.
5.

Town Manager’s Report
Town Manager Keith Riesberg stated as we are getting into summer season, construction projects
are moving forward , and he wanted to thank Town staff for guiding people to and through these
areas with signage. Mr. Riesberg stated we did have discussion earlier at Town Council Workshop
with Excel Energy, and internally Staff will be working on our policies and approaches on
communications with the development community.

6.

Mayor’s Report
Mayor Kutrumbos stated he talked with Town Manager Keith Riesberg and Winter Park Resort
CEO Sky Foulkes about a proclamation or something to honor NSCD pioneer Hal O’Leary. Mayor
Kutrumbos stated this Thursday he has a meeting with Senator Hickenlooper’s staff which is an
opportunity to lay out Council’s concerns and give project updates.

7.

Town Council Items for Discussion
Councilor Jennifer Hughes asked how we are going to get enlightened on marijuana before the next
meeting. Mr. Riesberg stated Staff will spell out the options discussed today and send that out to
Council with pros and cons before the July 6 meeting or we can workshop it before the July 6
meeting. Mr. Riesberg stated Council could also add this to a possible executive session on July 6.
Councilor Rebecca Kaufman stated today at the Grand County Board of County Commissioner’s
meeting it was decided that the County will be implementing Stage 1 fire restrictions starting
tomorrow.
Mayor Kutrumbos stated there is a trash issue on Vasquez. Mr. Riesberg stated they have been
notified that they will be brought into municipal court on a regular basis if it does not get resolved.
Councilor Jennifer Hughes stated there is an ambassador training at HTA tomorrow at 5:30 p.m.
Councilor Mike Davlin stated his thanks and appreciation to Chamber Director Catherine Ross and
her Staff for getting all the events lined up and getting third party operators involved.

There being no further business to discuss, upon a motion regularly adopted, the meeting was adjourned at
7:26 p.m.

The next scheduled meeting of the Town Council will be Tuesday, July 6, 2021, at 5:30 p.m.

Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk
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TO:

Town Council

FROM:

Gerry Vernon, Public Works Director

DATE:

07/06/2021

RE:

Consideration to Declare Surplus Property

BACKGROUND
Over the past year, Public Works Staff has evaluated existing equipment to determine if
it is beyond its useful life, if it still operates, and if it holds a place in our programmed
“arsenal” of equipment to provide efficiency to our work. The steps that Town’s typically
have taken to dispose of surplus equipment include: 1.) A list of surplus equipment is
developed; 2.) Town Council formally declares the list of equipment as surplus and
authorizes its disposition; 3.) the equipment is sold via public surplus auction service.
Staff plans to utilize the web-based auction services provided by Purplewave Auction. I
have utilized their services several times in former cities, and we were very pleased with
the ease of selling as well as the auction results from last year as we received
$99,450.00 for our efforts.
ANALYSIS
The vehicles and equipment listed in the attachment are no longer useful and/or have
exceeded their useful life expectancy. Most of the items are old, archaic, broken, and/or
no longer hold any value to the Town’s operation. The volume of surplus items is taking
up useful storage space and losing any value they still retain. The largest item of surplus
equipment is the Zaugg Snow Blower. Public Works has attempted to utilize this piece of
equipment since 2018, but it is too large for in-town applications and too dangerous to use
around buildings. It is better suited for wide open areas such as airport runways and other
applications with straight line snow removal areas. Sale of the surplus items will lower
the Town’s insurance costs and should generate approximately $175,000.00 in revenue
to the General Fund.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the Town Council adopt Resolution #1874 declaring the listed
equipment as surplus property and authorizing its sale or disposal.

Alternative Motion
In the event the Town Council wishes to not declare the equipment as surplus then the
following motion should be made:
I move to deny the declaration of surplus equipment with the following findings of fact:
_____________________
_____________________
_____________________

TOWN OF WINTER PARK
RESOLUTION NO. 1874
SERIES OF 2021
A RESOLUTION DECLARING UNUSED VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT AS
SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING ITS SALE OR DISPOSAL
WHEREAS, the Town of Winter Park owns vehicles and equipment that is no longer used or
needed; and,
WHEREAS, these items can be classified as surplus property and made available for sale to private
parties or disposed of; and
WHEREAS, the Town wishes to sell or dispose of said surplus property.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town Council of the Town of Winter Park,
Colorado to declare as surplus property the vehicles and equipment described in Exhibit A attached
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference and authorizes the sale/disposal of said surplus
property.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 6th day of July 2021 by a vote of _____ to _____.

TOWN OF WINTER PARK

____________________
Nick Kutrumbos, Mayor

ATTEST: ____________________
Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk

PURPLE WAVE AUCTION ITEMS 2021

1. Landa Power Washer
2. Chicago Pneumatic Compressor
3. #18 2007 Chevy Silverado/w Western Plow
4. #88 2011 GMC Sierra 2500 Diesel w/ Western Plow
5. Tire Syper
6. Zaugg Snowblower for Loader
7. Wanco message board
8. Lift gate fits 2007 Chevy Silverado
9. 2013 Polaris Ranger
10. #86 2013 GMC 2500 Flat bed Diesel w/transfer
tank
11. Polaris Deluxe Snowmobile
12. Polaris Longtrack Snowmobile
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

31 BUS
47 BUS
48 BUS
49 BUS
56 BUS

Landa Power Washer

Chicaago Pnumatic Compressor

#18 Chevy Silverado 2500 w/ Western Plow

#88 GMC Sierra 2500 Diesel w/ Western Plow

Tire Syper

Zaugg Snowblower for Loader

Wanco message board

Lift gate for 2007 Chevy

2013 Polaris Ranger

2013 GMC 2500 Diesel Flatbed

Polaris Snowmobile

Polaris Long track snowmobile

TO

Mayor and Town Council

FROM

Keith Riesberg, Town Manager

CC
DATE

July 1, 2021

RE

Letter re: Town position on the Fraser Valley Parkway construction

Background
The Grand County Board of County Commissioners has requested the Town of Winter Park
and the Town of Fraser provide the BOCC written affirmation of their positions on the
proposed Fraser Valley Parkway. Attached is a proposed letter that outlines the position
regarding the proposed roadway that was previously communicated to the BOCC.
Analysis
Attached for your consideration is a letter that outlines the Town of Winter Park’s position
regarding the Fraser Valley Parkway construction. The letter reflects the position previously
communicated by the Town to the County regarding the proposed roadway. As noted in the
letter – the Town supports the construction of parallel roadways that create the opportunity
for traffic to disperse and that serve as alternate routes in an emergency. The connection of
Lions Gate Drive to Old Victory Road in Fraser is an example of such a road. The letter
notes that roadway improvements within Winter Park prevent the Town from financial
participation in the project. The letter also request the County explore the widening of Hwy
40 in the event the Fraser Valley Parkway cannot be constructed.
Recommendation
The Town Council should amend the attached letter as needed to reflect the official position
of the Town for this proposed roadway.
Once the letter reflects the Town Council’s position on the issue, the following motion should
be made:
I move to approve the position letter for the Fraser Valley Parkway as presented.
Should you have any questions or need additional information regarding this matter, please
contact me.

July 6, 2021
Grand County Board of County Commissioners
308 Byers Avenue
PO Box 264
Hot Sulphur Springs, CO 80451
Dear County Commissioners:
The Town of Winter Park is providing this letter to outline the Town’s position on
the proposed Fraser Valley Parkway.
As stated previously, the Town of Winter Park supports the construction of roads
that creates parallel routes to existing roads. This allows traffic to disperse and
serves as an alternate route in the event of an emergency. Within Winter Park,
Lion’s Gate Drive and its connection to Old Victory Road in Fraser serves as such a
parallel road to Highway 40.
The capital needs within Winter Park – including the need for various roadway
projects within our community – preclude the Town from being a financial
participant in future development of the Fraser Valley Parkway.
The Town of Winter Park recognizes the proposed route for the Fraser Valley
Parkway is encountering logistical challenges that may prohibit the construction of
the road from moving forward. In that event, we encourage the County to work with
CDOT and the Town of Fraser to explore options for widening Highway 40 to
alleviate the backups and congestion that frequently occur.
Please contact us for further clarification regarding the Town’s position on this
matter.
Sincerely,
Nick Kutrumbos
Mayor
C:

Winter Park Town Council members
Keith Riesberg, Town Manager
Ed Moyer, County Manager

TOWN OF WINTER PARK
RESOLUTION NO. 1875
SERIES OF 2021
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ELIGIBLE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
TO LOT 9, HIDEAWAY JUNCTION
WHEREAS, the Affordable Housing Restrictive Covenant and Agreement for Hideaway
Junction Lots 1 through 10, inclusive, and Tracts A, B-1 and B-2, requires the Town of Winter Park
in its capacity as grantor and declarant under the Agreement to approve any proposed eligible capital
improvement to any property subject to the Agreement;
WHEREAS, specifically, no improvement to any Lot shall be permitted unless also approved
by the Town of Winter Park in its capacity as grantor and declarant;
WHEREAS, the owners of Lot 9, Hideaway Junction, submitted a request for laminate
flooring installation at an estimated cost of $6013.20 (the “Improvement”) to be deemed an eligible
capital improvement;
WHEREAS, the Winter Park Affordable Housing Corporation (“WPAHC”) considered the
Improvement and granted conditional approval of it at the meeting of its Board of Directors on May
1, 2021; and
WHEREAS, the owner’s request and WPAHC’s conditional approval are attached hereto as
Exhibit A, and Town Council has reviewed both.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town of Winter
Park, as follows:
Section 1.
Town Council hereby determines the Improvement is in keeping with the
intent of the Affordable Housing Restrictive Covenant and Agreement for Hideaway Junction Lots 1
through 10, inclusive, and Tracts A, B- 1 and B-2, and hereby approves the same, as described in
Exhibit A, as an eligible capital improvement to Lot 9, Hideaway Junction.
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 6th day of July, 2021.
TOWN OF WINTER PARK
________________________________
Nick Kutrumbos, Mayor
ATTEST:
__________________________________
Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk

July 2, 2021

Re: Capital Improvement Request for Hideaway Junction Lot9

The Winter Park Housing Corporation at its May 21st meeting recommend conditional approval of your
proposed capital improvement for Hideaway Junction Lot9 of premium vinyl flooring at an estimated
cost of $6013.20. Vinyl flooring capital improvements are depreciated over a 20-year period following
the installation.
The Town Council of Winter Park will consider a resolution approving the Capital Expense at their July
6th meeting. Once the installation is completed please follow up with Town staff to turn in copies of paid
invoices to document the final cost and installation of the capital improvement.
Sincerely,

__

�_......----=-----
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Mike Periolat
President, Winter Park Housing Corporation

SO Vasquez Rd I P.O. Box 3327
Winter Park, Colorado 80482

970-726-8081
www.wpgov.com
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INTRODUCTORY SECTION
This section of the Town’s Comprehensive Financial Report introduces the reader to the Town of
Winter Park. Information included in this section is unaudited.

Letter of Transmittal – This letter from the Town Manager and Finance Director provides a profile of
the Town and Town government, a discussion of the local economy and economic outlook, major
initiatives of the Town, and a brief discussion of policies and our independent audit.
Town Council & Staff/Appointed Officials – A listing of our Town Council, Town Staff and Appointed
Officials.

Organization Chart – An overview of the organization is presented that includes Town Council,
Appointed Officials and Town Staff.
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FORMAL TRANSMITTAL OF THE ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT
Honorable Mayor, Town Council & Residents of Winter Park, CO:
State statutes and the Town Charter require that all general-purpose local governments publish a
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) and audited in conformance with generally accepted auditing
standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to those requirements, we
hereby issue the annual financial report of the Town of Winter Park, Colorado (“Town”) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2020.
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of
the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the Town has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and to
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town has
designed its internal controls to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.
Disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Town’s financial activities
have been included.
The annual financial report provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
The Town’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.
PROFILE OF THE TOWN & GOVERNMENT
The Town of Winter Park is located approximately 90 minutes northwest of Denver in Grand County,
Colorado nestled against the western slope of the Continental Divide. The total land area of the Town
is approximately 16.8 square miles, approximately 13 square miles are located within United States
Forest Service land, and is home to an estimated 1,077 full-time residents. While the town center lies
at an elevation of 9,052 feet above sea level, its highest point of 12,060 feet makes it the highest
incorporated town in the United States.
The Town is located in Grand County which has a land size
of 1,846 square miles (larger than Rhode Island) and a
population of 15,718 residents dispersed through its six
incorporated towns and rural areas. Rail lines run through
the Town in a North-South direction, as does US Highway
40, the area’s primary connection to Interstate 70 and the
Front Range. Winter Park can be accessed by Amtrak,
Greyhound and by car. There are small regional airports in
both Kremmling and Granby for private planes.
The Town of Winter Park is a home rule community
consisting of a council-manager form of government with
power vested in an elected, seven-member Town Council. Policy-making and legislative authority
remains the responsibility of the Town Council. The Council adopts the budget, appoints the boards
and commissions, and hires the Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Municipal Judge. The Town
iv
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Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances approved by Council, for
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Town, and for appointing the heads of various
departments. Elected at large on a non-partisan basis, Council Members serve either two or four-year
staggered terms. The Council appoints a Mayor from among the elected Council Members. The
Council may take action through ordinances, resolutions, and motions. The Home Rule Charter
establishes procedures to promote the expeditious and efficient handling of Town matters.
The Town provides a full range of services including police protection, cultural and recreational
facilities and events, parks and trail development, public transportation, construction and
maintenance of streets & infrastructure, planning and zoning, building enforcement, and marketing
and economic development.
The Town operates on a calendar year basis. The Town Manager is required to prepare and submit
to the Town Council an annual budget, capital program and accompanying explanation. The budget
provides a complete financial plan of all Town funds and activities for the ensuing fiscal year, contain
a general summary of its contents, and show comparative figures for income and expenditures of the
preceding year. A public hearing on the proposed budget is required to be held by the Town Council
no later than forty-five (45) days prior to the close of the fiscal year before the final adoption. The
Town must adopt the budget by resolution on or before the first day of the new fiscal year. Adoption
of the budget by Town Council constitutes appropriation of the amounts specified therein as
expenditures from the funds indicated. The Town cannot overspend total budgeted expenditures at
the fund level without the approval of the Town Council.
LOCAL ECONOMY
Not surprisingly, winter tourism encompasses the majority of the local economy though the area is
becoming a four-season vacation destination. From the powder skiing and backcountry challenges of
70%
Winter Park Resort, a top 10 visited resort in
Sales & Lodging Tax by Season 70%
67%
North America, to guided snowmobile tours,
71% 72%
sleigh rides, cross-country skiing, snowshoeing,
72%
71%
and dog sledding, Winter Park has firmly 75% 71%
74%
69%
established itself as a winter tourist destination.
23% 31%
In the summer months, the idyllic climate, and
21% 22%
22%
activities such as mountain biking, hiking, fishing,
23%
23% 22%
golfing, rafting and camping become the major
20% 23% 23%
attractions of the region. To draw additional
visitors in the summer months, the Town
sponsors numerous events including music 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
concerts, festivals, bike racing, and various
competitions.
As noted in the Employment by Industry statistical section, the majority of employment in the area
is tied into our tourism-based economy. The largest employer is the Resort along with property
management companies, hotels, restaurants and government making up the remainder of large
employers. The direct correlation between a successful ski season and revenues throughout the
community encourages a cooperative approach to ensuring positive guest experiences on and off
the mountain. This correlation also has fueled the efforts to strengthen the summer and fall tourism
seasons to decrease the reliance upon the winter season.
ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT/OUTLOOK
As a resort community, the condition of the global, national, state and local economy has an impact
on the financial condition of the Town. Growth in residential and non-residential new construction,
the real estate market, tourism, and consumer spending all play a role in the local economy and
how the Town plans for revenues and expenditures. These external factors have experienced a
v

great deal of fluctuation over the past five years, and it has been a continuing challenge to address
these issues with a correct response. In addition to these challenges, the Town began to feel the
economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in March of 2020. Ski areas in Colorado were closed
the second half of March 2020 and additional restrictions were put in place in an attempt to control
the spread of COVID-19. The Town moved expeditiously to adjust spending to mitigate the impacts
of the forecasted loss of sales tax revenue. While the economy has since reopened, the long-term
effects of the pandemic cannot be determined at this time. The Town continues to closely monitor
collections and adjust spending accordingly.
2020 Total Revenues
Outside the over-arching issues with our global
Intergovern
economy and its effect on our national economy,
mental
Taxes
investment and second home purchases have
19%
69%
been impacted in our local community over the
User
past several years. The Town’s main revenue
Charges/Fees
streams: Sales, Lodging, Transit/Trails and Real
7%
Estate Transfer taxes all experienced appreciable
Other
Fines &
3%
growth through 2019 but were impacted by the
Forfeits
Licenses &
effect of COVID-19 restrictions on the tourism
Investment
0%
Permits
Earnings
industry. Sales, Lodging, Transit & Trails and
1%
1%
Accommodations tax collections, our largest
revenue sources, ended 2020 with a 7% decrease from 2019. However, our 2020 Real Estate
Transfer taxes increased 11% over 2019 which reflects continued growth in our real estate market
through the pandemic. The growth in Real Estate Transfer taxes in 2020 helped to offset declines in
sales tax revenue.

The COVID-19 pandemic and related financial impacts came on the heel of a period of sustained
revenue growth that began in 2013 after the end of the recession. As we look to our own local
economy and normal recovery, Winter Park tends to recover slower than some of our comparable
resort towns as we tend to be a Colorado front-range draw for skiing and summer activities and
less for destination tourism. However, this proximity to the front range appears to have led to
strong visitor numbers in the summer and fall which helped to stabilize sales tax revenues as we
moved to the end of 2020. Throughout the pandemic we continued to see strong interest in
residential and commercial development in our community. These factors, coupled with the steps
taken in 2020 to mitigate the financial impacts of the pandemic, have left the Town in a positive
financial position as we enter 2021.
MAJOR INITIATIVES IN 2020

While the COVID-19 pandemic brought changes to the Town’s original plans for 2020, progress was
made on the following initiatives.


Construction of the Public Works facility



Completion of the Town’s first transit center located at Cooper Creek Square along with
improvements to Cooper Creek Way to improve bus and pedestrian access



The free year-round transit system entered its third fourth year of operation with
expansions in service area and hours of operations



Investment in design and pre-construction for the Town’s transit facility



New transit buses for our transit system
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Continued construction of new developments comprised of both residential and commercial
space

MAJOR INITIATIVES FOR 2021 AND SUBSEQUENT YEARS
While we look forward to 2021 and beyond, the Town continues to maintain a conservative posture
in our projections of revenue and any expansion of Town services or programs. This conservative
approach stems from the recent economic downturn, changes in spending patterns in our resort
community, the recent recovery in our main revenue stream, and the return of major development
at the ski area and throughout Town. During the economic downturn, Town Council and staff
refocused priorities, streamlined operations, reduced operating costs while increasing the marketing
and economic development initiatives to support our businesses and community.
As discussed in more detail in our budget document, the Town has focused the 2021 budget on the
following strategic items:


Advance affordable housing projects within Winter Park and the Fraser Valley



Transit expansions and rolling capital



Routine and one-time capital projects for infrastructure



Expansion of Town amenities

The following are a few of the specific projects the Town has planned for 2021:


Completion of the Town’s new Public Works facility scheduled for January, 2021



Continued pursuit of attainable housing projects and strategies through public/private
partnerships and infrastructure investment by the Town.



New residential development within the ROAM and Rendezvous annexations



Investment in design and pre-construction for the Town’s transit maintenance facility



New transit buses for our transit system



A sizeable expansion of our current Town trail system with the Roam annexation and work
on trail connections in downtown

INDEPENDENT AUDIT
State statutes and the Town Charter require an annual audit by certified public accountants. The
accounting firm of McMahan and Associates, LLC was selected to complete the audit for 2020. The
auditor’s report covers the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, and each major fund, collectively comprising the Town’s basic financial statements. The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.
AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Winter Park,
Colorado for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2019. This was the seventh consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded the Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily
vii
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readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.
The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedicated services of the
finance department and all Town staff. Special thanks are extended to all members of the
independent certified public accounting firm for their able assistance and for the professional
manner in which they have accomplished this assignment.
Respectfully submitted,

Keith Riesberg
Town Manager
June 24, 2021
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Town Council
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Mayor
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Brad Holzwarth
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FINANCIAL SECTION
This section of the Town’s Comprehensive Financial Report contains the financial reports for the Town
along with presented supplementary information. Information included in this section is audited by
the Town’s independent auditors.
Independent Auditor’s Report – Report issued by McMahan and Associates, LLC

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – Management of the Town offers readers of the Town’s
financial statements a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2018.

Government-Wide, Fund Financial Statements and Notes to the Financial Statements – Various
required financial reports for the Town

Required Supplementary Information – Budget to actual comparisons for the Town’s General Fund
and Major Special Revenue Funds.
Supplementary Information – Budget to actual comparisons for the Town’s Special Project, Enterprise
and Internal Service Funds.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

M
&
A

McMahan and Associates, l.l.c.
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

DRAFT
Web Site: www.mcmahancpa.com
Main Office: (970) 845-8800
Facsimile: (970) 845-8108
E-mail: mcmahan@mcmahancpa.com

Chapel Square, Bldg C
245 Chapel Place, Suite 300
P.O. Box 5850, Avon, CO 81620

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Winter Park
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Winter Park (the “Town”), as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Winter Park as of December 31, 2020, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Avon: (970) 845-8800
Aspen: (970) 544-3996
Frisco: (970) 668-3481

Paul J. Backes, CPA, CGMA
Michael N. Jenkins, CA, CPA, CGMA
Daniel R. Cudahy, CPA, CGMA
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To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Winter Park

Other Matters
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages xvii-xxv be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of
contents, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
The budgetary comparison information in Section C is not a required part of the basic financial statements
but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. The budgetary comparison information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statement or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town’s financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section, the supplementary
information in section D, the statistical tables in Section E, as listed in the Table of Contents, and the
Local Highway Finance Report in section F, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the Town’s financial statements. The supplementary information in section D, as listed
in the Table of Contents, is the responsibility of management and was derived from and related directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section and statistical section have
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2020
As management of the Town of Winter Park (the “Town”), we offer readers of the Town’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the transmittal letter, basic financial statements and accompanying notes to the financial
statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
In 2020, the Town experienced significant uncertainty surrounding the financial impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic and the related impacts of restrictions on the local, national, and international economy. The
Town acted swiftly to enact reductions in capital and operating expenditures to mitigate the financial
impacts of the pandemic. The results of these actions are reflected in the various financial highlights noted
below.









The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of
fiscal year by $38,367,556 (net position). Of this amount, $11,451,278(unrestricted net position)
may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations or unforeseen expenses.
The Town had an increase in governmental activities net position of $2,997,041. This change
measures the Town’s financial results using a long-term view. The increase is largely attributed to
reductions in capital and operating expenditures the Town made to mitigate the financial impacts
of the COVID-19 pandemic. Additionally, the Town saw an increase real estate transfer tax
collections due to a strong real estate market throughout the pandemic.
As of the close of the year, the Town’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $14,383,632. The Town’s governmental funds decreased by $9,928,375. This change
measures the change in the Town’s current resources. This decrease is the result of the use of debt
issuance proceeds for the construction of the new Public Works Facility coupled with decreased
sales tax collections offset by an increase in real estate transfer tax collections, grant funding and
reduced expenditures to mitigate the financial impacts of the pandemic. See additional discussion
in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
The unassigned General Fund balance at year end totaled $7,871,624.
Overall General Fund revenues decreased by $758,651 as compared to 2019, due mainly to
decreases in sales and lodging tax and offset by an increase in real estate transfer tax.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial
statements, assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Town’s
financial activity and identify changes in the Town’s financial position. The Town’s basic financial
statements consist of three components: 1) the government-wide financial statements, 2) the fund
financial statements, and 3) the notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present
two different views of the Town through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial
statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental
information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the Town.
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{
Other required
& supplemental
information

Basic Financial

MD&A

The Town’s report contains the following reporting areas:
Management Discussion
And Analysis
(required supplementary
information)

{

Government–wide financial statements
Fund financial statements
Notes to the financial statements

{

Required supplementary
information
Supplementary information

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.
The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. The next section of the basic financial statements is the
Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes explain in detail some of the data contained in those
statements. The Required Supplementary Information contains additional information as required by
generally accepted accounting principles. After the notes and required supplementary information, other
supplementary information is provided. The other supplementary information shows details about the
Town’s individual funds, departments and relevant information for the reader.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all Town assets, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources, with the difference between the elements reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is
improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in Deferred Inflow and Outflow of Resources
in future fiscal periods (i.e. earned but unused vacation leave).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (Governmental Activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (Businessxv
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type Activities). The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, public
works, economic development, community marketing and events, community enhancement and affordable
housing. The Business-type activities of the Town include building services and the internal service
activities that provide employee benefits to the Town’s operating departments. The government-wide
financial statements can be found on pages A1 and A2 of this report.
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. The Town, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the Town’s funds can be divided into two categories: Governmental Funds and
Proprietary Funds.
The Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the governmentwide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s short-term financing
requirements. This accounting method is called modified accrual accounting.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental activities in the
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town’s
short term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.
The Town maintains seven separate governmental funds: the General Fund, Affordable Housing Fund,
Open Space Fund, Conservation Trust Fund, Law Enforcement Fund, Transit & Trails Fund and Special
Projects Fund each considered a major fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for each
separate governmental fund.
Much of the Town’s resources are administered through the General Fund.
for in the General Fund include:
 Governance

 Administration & Planning

 Community Marketing &
Development


Activities that are accounted
Parks & Trails
Street, Facility & Equipment
Maintenance
Town Equipment

The Law Enforcement Fund is a special revenue fund which generate a portion of their own revenues to
cover a portion of their operating expenses while the General Fund covers the unfunded portion. The Law
Enforcement Fund accounts for the activities for the Towns of Winter Park and Fraser, CO for:
 Police Department
 Court
 Animal Control
 Community Outreach
The Transit & Trails Fund was established in 2015 as the Town’s voters approved a 2% sales and lodging

tax increase for the purpose of funding the study, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, operation
and maintenance of public transit, public multi-modal transportation improvements, and public trails
xvi
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within and near the Town. In November 2015, the Town assumed the transit services from the local resort
with funding from the transit sales tax, intergovernmental agreements with the Town of Fraser and Grand
County, as well as transit service agreements with the resort and several other independent entities.
The Special Projects Fund accounts for the resources and expenditures for the purpose of acquisition,
planning, construction, expansion and improvements to Town facilities and infrastructure. Revenues
which are restricted for this purpose include the highway user tax, road and bridge tax, 10% of sales tax,
and 50% of accommodations tax.
The remaining three funds are discussed in further detail in the Notes to the Financial Statements but are
provided for specific purposes such as affordable housing, conservation trust funds, and open space fees.
The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its governmental funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this approved budget. The
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages A3–A6.

The Town maintains two types of Proprietary Funds which are considered to be major funds. The
Enterprise fund (Building Services Fund) is used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Building Services Fund is utilized to account
for the activities associated with the building services provided by the Town, Town of Fraser and Town of
Granby, CO. The Internal Service fund (Employee Benefits Fund) is used to report the activities related to
benefits provided by the Town for its operating departments.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for Building Services and
Employee Benefits Funds. See the proprietary fund financial statements on pages A7-A9.
An annual appropriated budget is adopted for all funds. A budgetary comparison has been provided for all
funds to demonstrate compliance with State budget statutes. See pages C1-C6 and D1-D3.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found
on pages B1 through B23 of this report.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Required Supplementary Information – This section contains budgetary comparison schedules for each
of the Town’s General Fund and major special revenue funds and can be found on pages C1-C6.
Additional Supplementary Information – This section contains budget and actual statements of the
Town’s Special Projects and Enterprise funds and the Annual Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures for
Roads, Bridges and Streets. The information can be found on pages D1-D3 and F1–F2.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net Position - The following is a summary of financial information relating to the Town’s assets, deferred
inflows and liabilities, deferred outflows as well as its net position. The net position may serve over time
as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. For the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by
$38,367,556 at the end of 2020. The following chart shows the Town’s net position:
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Of the $72,231,164 in Total Assets of the primary governmental activities, $12,005,538 is made up of
unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and investments. The Town has maintained a strong level of liquid
assets by swiftly making adjustments to expenditures in order to offset the financial impacts of the
pandemic.
The largest portion of the Town’s assets is reflected in the investment in capital assets (i.e. land, buildings,
improvements, and equipment). Capital assets account for 69% of total assets and reflect an increase from
2019 on depreciation of $2,151,901 offset by asset additions of $14,673,210. The largest of these additions
is attributable to the construction of the new Public Works Facility. These assets are used to provide
services to our citizens. Accordingly, the assets are not an available source for payment of future spending.

In 2020, the Town had a decrease in unrestricted cash and investments of $3.1 million due to a decrease in
tax revenues due to the pandemic and capital spending committed capital outlay prior to the onset of the
pandemic. The Town had a decrease of $8.1 million in restricted cash and investments related to use of
debt issuance proceeds to fund the construction of a new Public Works facility. At the end of 2020, the
Town reports a strong balance in Unrestricted Net Position $11,451,278. Unrestricted Net Position
decreased $1,241,070 from 2019.
Changes in Net Position - The following chart is a summary of financial information relating to the
Town’s Statement of Activities. The statement presents information showing how the Town’s net position
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changed during the most recent fiscal year. The beginning of year net position reflects a restatement
related to capital assets. See Notes to the Financial Statements page B23 for additional information.
Total
Primary Governmental Activities
2020
2019
Change
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grant, contributions & Interest
Capital grants & contributions
General revenues:
Sales taxes
Accommodations taxes
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Real estate transfer taxes
Franchise tax
Other taxes
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers
Total Revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Economic development
Community enhancement
Transit
Affordable Housing
Interest expense
Building Services
Total Expenses
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenses
Transfers

$ 1,278,112
2,511,690
876,572

$ 1,492,603
2,132,542
516,429

8,205,076
337,680
470,004
35,278
1,962,426
129,825
122,931
127,978
99,650
102,564
16,259,786

9,338,129
349,652
402,977
34,567
1,763,468
130,414
131,777
314,985
262,109
16,869,652

(1,133,053)
(11,972)
67,027
711
198,958
(589)
(8,846)
(187,007)
(162,459)
102,564
(609,866)

1,527,955
1,772,433
2,092,769
1,473,965
1,611,497
2,934,502
991,353
861,271
13,265,745

4,482,902
1,721,297
1,991,206
2,026,553
1,458,780
2,878,545
433,513
571,706
15,564,502

(2,954,947)
51,136
101,563
(552,588)
152,717
55,957
557,840
289,565
(2,298,757)

572,170
572,170

355,836
355,836

216,334
216,334

2,994,041

1,305,150

1,688,891

30,676

464,319

(433,643)

-

Change in Net Position
2,994,041
Net Position - Beginning of Year(Restated) 34,574,880
Net Position - End of Year
$ 37,568,921

$

Total
Business-Type Activities
2020
2019
Change

1,305,150
32,924,327
$ 34,229,477

(214,491)
379,148
360,143

-

$

1,688,891
1,650,553
3,339,444

$ 700,775
4,635
(102,564)
602,846

$ 810,136
-

$ (109,361)
-

10,019
820,155

(5,384)
(102,564)
(217,309)

-

-

-

-

30,676
767,959
$ 798,635

-

464,319
303,641
$ 767,960

(433,643)
464,318
$ 30,675

Primary governmental activities net position increased the Town’s net position by $2,994,041 and
increased $30,676 for business-type activities. Key elements of this change are as follows:
 Increased pandemic related operating grants were received.
 Capital grants for additional transit buses were received.
 Sales and accommodation tax revenue decreased due to the pandemic related restrictions that had
a significant impact on tourism. This decrease in sales tax revenue was partially offset by an
increase in real estate transfer taxes.
 The Town adjusted capital and operating expenditures to offset the decrease in projected revenue
due to the pandemic.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S GENERAL FUND
As mentioned in this analysis, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.
General fund: The focus of the Town’s general fund is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
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As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s general fund reported combined ending fund balance of
$8,494,624. The Town’s general fund balance for the past three years and 2020 are presented in graph
format below.

The Town’s general fund includes the majority of the financial transactions. The following describes the
fund balance changes:
 At the end of 2020, the General Fund balance was $8,494,624 and 93% of the fund balance was
unassigned. This shows that the Town’s fund balance restrictions will not significantly affect the
availability of fund resources for future use.
 The General Fund balance increased by $888,879 in 2020 due mainly to the reductions in capital
and operating the Town made in 2020 to mitigate the financial impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Town’s general fund had the following revenue sources:
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The Town’s general fund had the following expenditures:

Budget variances in the general fund: The Town’s significant budget variances are:

AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND
Fund balance in the Affordable Housing Fund decreased by $531,370 in 2020. This decrease was the result
of expenditures for capital outlay.
OPEN SPACE FUND
Fund balance in the Open Space Fund increased by $32,209 in 2020. This increase was due to the
collection of open space fees.
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
Fund balance in the Conservation Trust Fund increased by $5,622 in 2020. This increase was due to the
collection of lottery proceeds for the year.
TRAILS AND TRANSIT FUND
Fund balance in the Trails and Transit Fund increased by $355,990 in 2020. The fund received pandemic
related federal funding which offset the decrease in sales tax revenue attributed to the pandemic.
SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND
Fund balance in the Special Projects Fund decreased by $10,679,705 in 2020. This was the result of
construction of the Public Works Facility in 2020. The Town cut the majority of remaining capital projects
for the year to address the financial impacts of the pandemic.
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Business type activities include building services for the Town, Fraser, CO and Granby, CO. Net position for
building services increased $30,676 for the year. The fund experienced stable revenues for the year and
dispersed excess reserves to participating entities in accordance with the intergovernmental agreement
dated June 3, 2020. Additional information regarding this agreement can be found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements page B21.
CAPITAL ASSETS
The Town’s government-wide capital assets, net of depreciation, increased $12,018,337 in 2020 due
primarily to the construction of the Town’s new Public Works facility. This increase was slightly offset by
the sale of Town-owned surplus equipment. Additional information as well as a detailed classification of
the Town’s net capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements page B13.
LONG-TERM DEBT
Prior to 2020, the Town has entered into three Certificates of Participation to fund the Town’s event
center, a parking garage and attainable apartment units in the Hideaway Place complex, and a new Public
Works facility.
Additional information as well as a detailed information for the COP’s can be found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements pages B15-B16.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET
The Town began to see a stabilization of sales tax revenue during the summer of 2020 and has continued to
see strengthening tourism trends with the loosening of pandemic related restrictions. Throughout the
pandemic the Town experienced a strong real estate market and strong development interest. These factors
give us some confidence that we can look forward to 2021 with a higher degree of confidence in our
projections. In addition, the conservative steps the Town took to mitigate the financial impacts of the
pandemic left us in a positive fiscal position to address additional investments in capital projects in 2021
and future years.
While we look forward to 2021 and beyond, the Town continues to maintain a conservative posture in our
projections of revenue and any expansion of Town services or programs. This conservative approach stems
from the previous economic downturns including the COVID-19 pandemic, changes in spending patterns in
our resort community, the recent recovery in our main revenue stream, and the continuation of major
development throughout Town. Town Council and staff have refocused priorities, streamlined operations,
reduced operating costs while refocusing the marketing and economic development initiatives to support
our businesses and community.
As our economy is heavily dependent upon tourism and second-homeowners, the Town continues to
approach its strategic plans and budget based on the uncertainty that surrounds our main revenue source sales, lodging and transit taxes. While we are seeing recovery in our sales tax collections, the uncertainty
surrounding our weather patterns can cause substantial fluctuations in the Town’s revenues. Each of these
factors has required our budget planning and development to be conservative in the short-term thereby
ensuring we stay the course in our budget priorities.
Throughout 2020, the Town felt the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Ski areas in Colorado
were closed the second half of March and additional restrictions were put in place in an attempt to control
the spread of COVID-19. While the economy has since reopened, the long-term effects of the pandemic on
the tourism based communities cannot be determined at this time. The Town continues to closely monitor
collections and adjust spending accordingly.
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REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Town Finance, P.O. Box 3327,
Winter Park, CO 80482-3327, finance@wpgov.com, or call (970) 726-8081.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020

Primary Government

Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and investments - Unrestricted
Cash and investments - Restricted
Accounts receivable
Due from component unit
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

12,005,538
3,508,741
5,675,008
248,162
773,254
14,268
22,224,971

1,043,404
1,043,404

Total

$

13,048,942
3,508,741
5,675,008
248,162
773,254
14,268
23,268,375

Component
Unit
Hideaway
Junction
Affordable
Housing Corp.

$

-

Non-current Assets:
Equity interest in joint venture (GC Ditch Company)
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net
Total Non-current Assets

674,569
18,805,995
30,525,629
50,006,193

-

674,569
18,805,995
30,525,629
50,006,193

275,336
275,336

Total Assets

72,231,164

1,043,404

73,274,568

275,336

2,242,775
75,744
99,181
36,181
1,391,266
36,737
1,131,296
5,013,180

222,864
2,223
2,952
228,039

2,465,639
75,744
101,404
36,181
1,391,266
39,689
1,131,296
5,241,219

248,162
248,162

Non-current Liabilities:
Compensated absences:
Debt payable
Total Non-current Liabilities

208,177
25,454,765
25,662,942

16,730
16,730

224,907
25,454,765
25,679,672

-

Total Liabilities

30,676,122

244,769

30,920,891

248,162

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable revenues
Unavailable property tax revenue

3,500,000
486,121

-

3,500,000
486,121

-

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources

3,986,121

-

3,986,121

-

26,254,304

-

26,254,304

27,174

623,000
38,974
10,652,643

798,635

623,000
38,974
11,451,278

-

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued expenses
Due to primary government
Deposits payable
Compensated absences
Debt payable
Total Current Liabilities

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Emergencies
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

37,568,921

$

798,635

$

38,367,556

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Net (Expense) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues

Function / Programs
Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Economic development
Community enhancement
Transit
Affordable housing
Interest expense
Total Governmental Activities

Expenses
$

Business-type Activities:
Building services
Total Business-type Activities
Total Primary Government
Component Unit:
Winter Park Affordable Housing Corporation

Charges for
Services

$

1,527,955
1,772,433
2,092,769
1,473,965
1,611,497
2,934,502
991,353
861,271
13,265,745

$

385,072
70,265
134,627
688,148
1,278,112

Operating Grants,
Contributions
and Interest

Capital Grants
and Contributions

Governmental
Activities

$

$

$

52,244
656,763
122,846
1,679,837
2,511,690

11,516
865,056
876,572

572,170
572,170

700,775
700,775

-

-

13,837,915

1,978,887

2,511,690

876,572

1,437

$

14,774

$

-

$

General Revenues:
Sales taxes
Accommodation taxes
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Real estate transfer taxes
Franchise Tax
Other taxes
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers
Total General Revenues, Special Items, and Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position Beginning of Year (restated)
Net Position End of Year

Business-type
Activities

(1,090,639)
(1,033,889)
(2,092,769)
(1,473,965)
(1,488,651)
(254,982)
(303,205)
(861,271)
(8,599,371)

Total
$

128,605
128,605
(8,599,371)

128,605

Component
Unit
Hideaway
Junction
Affordable
Housing Corp.

(1,090,639)
(1,033,889)
(2,092,769)
(1,473,965)
(1,488,651)
(254,982)
(303,205)
(861,271)
(8,599,371)

128,605
128,605
(8,470,766)

-

$

13,337

8,205,076
337,680
470,004
35,278
1,962,426
129,825
122,931
127,978
99,650
102,564
11,593,412

4,635
(102,564)
(97,929)

8,205,076
337,680
470,004
35,278
1,962,426
129,825
122,931
132,613
99,650
11,495,483

-

2,994,041

30,676

3,024,717

13,337

34,574,880

767,959

35,342,839

13,837

798,635

$ 38,367,556

$ 37,568,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020
Affordable
Housing

General
Assets:
Cash and investments:
Unrestricted
Restricted
Receivables
Due from other governments
Due from component unit
Prepaid expenditures
Total Assets

$

8,253,273
825,000
1,249,796
3,577
-

$

Open
Space

1,453,993
19
2,525
248,162
-

$

203,712
-

Conservation
Trust

Law
Enforcement

$

$

38,974
-

93,530
4,950
37,312
14,268

Transit
and Trails

$

Total
Governmental
Funds

Special
Projects

1,945,688
706,468
728,974
-

$

16,368
2,683,722
125,455
3,390
-

$ 12,005,538
3,508,741
2,089,194
773,253
248,162
14,268

10,331,646

1,704,699

203,712

38,974

150,060

3,381,130

2,828,935

18,639,156

624,451
52,395
16,971
832,555

101,820
54,470

-

-

90,697
40,153
19,210
-

404,970
6,633
-

1,020,837
504,241

2,242,775
99,181
36,181
1,391,266

1,526,372

156,290

-

-

150,060

411,603

1,525,078

3,769,403

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable property tax revenue

310,650

-

-

-

-

175,471

-

486,121

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources

310,650

-

-

-

-

175,471

-

486,121

14,268

-

-

14,268

2,794,056
-

1,303,857
-

661,974
5,850,034
7,857,356

2,794,056

1,303,857

14,383,632

2,828,935

$ 18,639,156

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued expenditures
Deposits
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Non-spendable
Spendable:
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

-

-

-

-

623,000
7,871,624

1,548,409
-

203,712
-

38,974
-

Total Fund Balances

8,494,624

1,548,409

203,712

38,974

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of
Resources, and Fund Balances

$ 10,331,646

$

1,704,699

$

203,712

$

38,974

(14,268)
-

$

150,060

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Winter Park
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020

Total Governmental Fund Balances

$

14,383,632

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position are different because:
The Town has an equity interest in the Grand County Mutual Ditch
and Reservoir Company. This is a non-current asset on the
Town's government-wide financial statements
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore not reported in the funds.
However, in the Statement of Net Position the cost of these assets
are capitalized and expensed over their estimated lives through
annual depreciation expense:
Cost of capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

674,569

66,966,670
(17,635,046)

49,331,624

The Town has a memorandum of understanding that requires other entities
to contribute to the Town for certain operations. These items are shown on
the government-wide financial statements as receivables and deferred items.
The relate to the following operations:
Stage naming rights
2,000,000
Transit
1,500,000

3,500,000

Affordable housing fees receivable are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

85,815

Certain agreements that that Town is party to extend beyond the current period.
Amounts received or agreed to regarding future periods are shown as deferred items.
The Town had the following deferred items at year end:
Stage naming rights
(2,000,000)
Transit
(1,500,000)
Liabilities, including compensated absences are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds
but are reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position:
Certificates of participation
Premium on issue of
Certificates of Participation
Note payable
Interest payable
Compensated absences

(3,500,000)

(25,321,531)
(1,218,233)
(46,297)
(75,744)
(244,914)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(26,906,719)
$

37,568,921
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Affordable
Housing

General
Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Other revenue
Donations and contributions

$

Total Revenues

7,745,642
119,813
144,992
131,617
55,497
95,637
20,000

$

Open
Space

97,039
883,961
9,983
-

$

31,250
959
-

Conservation
Trust

Law
Enforcement

$

$

5,432
190
4,666
-

628,397
16,706
53,559
31,150
-

Transit
and Trails
$

Special
Projects

2,608,949
2,244,893
134,627
14,600
300,000

$

Total
Governmental
Funds

811,590
46,694
-

$ 11,263,220
119,813
3,023,714
1,198,161
53,559
127,923
131,453
320,000

8,313,198

990,983

32,209

10,288

729,812

5,303,069

858,284

16,237,843

1,382,496
1,602,348
1,473,965
310,785
83,205

201,183

-

4,666
-

1,608,099
-

196,766
2,547,978
-

788
-

1,383,284
1,608,099
1,602,348
1,473,965
512,217
2,547,978
284,388

412,476

190,000
328,100
3,000
800,070

-

-

32,756
3,209
-

2,202,335

880,297
593,169
11,535,190

1,103,053
924,478
3,000
14,950,071

Total Expenditures

5,265,275

1,522,353

-

4,666

1,644,064

4,947,079

13,009,444

26,392,881

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

3,047,923

32,209

5,622

(914,252)

355,990

(12,151,160)

(10,155,038)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Sale of assets
Insurance recoveries

209,718
(2,475,167)
99,650
6,755

-

-

-

1,003,712
(98,192)
8,732

-

1,471,455
-

2,684,885
(2,573,359)
99,650
15,487

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

(2,159,044)

-

-

-

914,252

-

1,471,455

32,209

5,622

-

355,990

171,503

33,352

-

2,438,066

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Economic development
Community enhancement
Transit
Affordable housing
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Issuance costs
Capital outlay

Net Change in Fund Balances

888,879

Fund Balances Beginning of Year
Fund Balances End of Year

(531,370)

(531,370)

7,605,745
$

8,494,624

2,079,779
$

1,548,409

$

203,712

$

38,974

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

2,794,056

$

226,663

(10,679,705)

(9,928,375)

11,983,562

24,312,007

1,303,857

$ 14,383,632
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Net Changes In Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$

(9,928,375)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:
The Town has an equity interest in the Grand County Mutual Ditch
and Reservoir Company. This represents the change in the Town's
share of their investment.
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay
exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.
Depreciation expense
Capital outlay

174

(2,151,901)
14,673,210

12,521,309

The Town has sold assets which are shown at their sales price on
governmental funds but are shown as a gain or loss on the sale of assets
based upon sale price less the assets book value.

(502,972)

The internal service fund, used by management to charge the
the costs of dental insurance to individual funds, is not
reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities. Governmental
fund expenditures are reduced and the related internal service fund
change in net position is eliminated.

(8,907)

Interest expense reported in the Statement of Activities does not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore, is
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This represents
the change in accrued interest during the year.

59,998

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Principal payments on debt

1,103,053

Compensated absences reported in the Statement of Activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds
This represents the change in compensated absences during the year.

(54,426)

Affordable housing fees that are not available to pay for current period
expenditures are not reported in the governmental funds. This
represents the change in affordable housing fees receivable during the year.
Change In Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2020

Business-Type Governmental
Activities
Activities
Employee
Building
Benefits
Services
Internal
Enterprise
Service
Fund
Fund
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash - Unrestricted
Total Current Assets

$ 1,043,404
1,043,404

Total Assets

$

-

1,043,404

-

222,864
2,223
2,952
228,039

-

16,730
16,730

-

244,769

-

798,635

-

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences
Total Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

798,635

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Business-Type
Activities
Building
Services
Enterprise
Fund
Operating Revenues:
Licenses and permits revenue

$

700,775

Governmental
Activities
Employee
Benefits
Internal
Service
Fund
$

-

Total Operating Revenues

700,775

-

Operating Expenses:
Building inspection services

352,513

-

Total Operating Expenditures

352,513

-

Operating Income (Loss)

348,262

-

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment revenue

4,635

55

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

4,635

55

Income (Loss) Before Transfers
and Capital Contributions

352,897

55

Transfers, Net
Intergovernmental Distributions

(102,564)
(219,657)

(8,962)
-

30,676

(8,907)

767,959

8,907

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

$

798,635

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
A8

-

DRAFT

Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Business-Type
Activities
Building
Services
Enterprise
Fund
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to employees and vendors
Cash paid for goods and services
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$

702,378
(288,424)
150,217
564,171

Governmental
Activities
Employee
Benefits
Internal
Service
Fund
$

(2,865)
(2,865)

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Transfer (to) from other funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

(102,564)

(8,962)

(102,564)

(8,962)

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Intergovernmental distribution
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

(219,657)
(219,657)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest on investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

4,635
4,635

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

55
55

246,585
796,819
1,043,404

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decreases) in accrued wages and benefits
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

-

(11,772)
11,772
-

348,262

-

1,603
210,743
3,563
215,909
$

564,171

(2,865)
(2,865)
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
A9

(2,865)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

I.

DRAFT

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Town of Winter Park (the “Town”) was founded in 1978. The Town became a home rule
government when its Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”) was approved by the Winter Park voters
on April 12, 1983. The Town’s Charter provides the broad general powers which guarantee the
rights of its citizens to fully participate in their own municipal government without undue influence
by the state and federal governments. The underlying philosophy is one of true local government
with full control vested in the citizens of Winter Park. The Town is centrally located in Grand
County and is known for its world class skiing and scenic terrain.
The Town Council consists of seven individuals, including a Mayor elected by the Council, who
are responsible for setting policy, appointing administrative personnel and adopting an annual
budget in accordance with state statutes. The Town’s major operations include public safety,
transit, community development, parks, trails, public works, building services and administration.
A.

Reporting Entity
The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other
organizations that are included to ensure that the financial statements are not misleading.
The primary government of the Town consists of all funds, departments, boards and
agencies that are not legally separate from the Town.
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Town is financially
accountable. The Town is financially accountable for an organization if the Town appoints
a voting majority of the organization's governing board and (1) the Town is able to
significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the
organizations; or (2) the Town is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources; the Town is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the
responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or
the Town is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units also may include
organizations that are fiscally dependent on the Town in that the Town approves the
budget, levies their taxes or issues their debt. The following component units have been
incorporated into the Town’s financial statements:
Discretely Presented Component Unit: The Winter Park Affordable Housing Corporation
(the “Corporation”) was created to accept conveyance and hold title to land from the
Town, and others, for the purpose of entering into contracts for the design and
construction of houses and residential facilities to ensure that an adequate supply of
affordable housing is available within the Town. The Corporation is governed by a threemember board which was initially appointed by Town Council. While legally separate
from the Town, it is reported as part of the reporting entity under the discretely presented
method because the Corporation’s primary source of financing is from the Town’s
Affordable Housing Fund. The completed financial statements of the Corporation can be
obtained directly from their administrative offices at: P.O. Box 3327, Winter Park, CO
80482-3327.
Blended Component Unit: The Winter Park Housing Authority (the WPHA”) was formed
in 2018, as an entity separate from the Town, pursuant to Colorado Revised Statutes
(“C.R.S.”) section 29-4-204 et seq. The seven members of Town council act as the
commissioners of WPHA. The WPHA has been formed to assist the Town in ensuring an
adequate supply of affordable housing is available with the Town. The WPHA did not
have any transaction during the year-ending December 31, 2020.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town
as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds). The
Town’s general government, public safety, public works, economic development, and
community enhancement are classified as governmental activities.
1.

Government-wide Financial Statements
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities
column is (a) presented on a consolidated basis and (b) reported on a full
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and
receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The Town’s net position is
reported in three parts— net investment in capital assets; restricted net position;
and unrestricted net position.
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost
of each of the Town’s functions (general government, public safety, etc.). The
functions are also supported by general government revenues (property and
sales taxes, intergovernmental revenue, fines and permits, etc.). The Statement
of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program
revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly
associated with the function (public safety, public works, etc.). Operating grants
include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants
while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. The net costs (by
function) are normally covered by general revenue (property and sales taxes,
interest income, etc.).
The government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the Town as an entity and
the change in the Town’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.

2.

Fund Financial Statements
The financial transactions of the Town are reported in individual funds in the fund
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.
The fund focus is on current available resources and budget compliance.
The Town reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is utilized to
account for resources traditionally associated with government, which are not
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in
another fund. The functions accounted for in the General Fund include
general administration, finance, human resources, information technology,
community development, parks, streets, and facility operations and
maintenance.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)
2.

Fund Financial Statements (continued)
The Affordable Housing Fund accounts for the use of the affordable housing
impact fees collected from developers prior to issuing a Certificate of
Occupancy. The funds are restricted for the purposes of acquisition,
development, and construction of property, infrastructure, and residential
dwelling units to be used in supplying the community with affordable housing
options. The fund primarily acts as a source of lending for the Affordable
Housing Corporation, a component unit of the Town, which is responsible for
the purchase, construction, marketing, and sale of affordable housing units.
The Open Space Fund accounts for the use of proceeds received in lieu of
dedicated open space property. The funds collected are restricted for the
purposes of acquisition of land and equipment for parks, trails, open space,
scenic preservation easements, and historic preservation purposes.
The Conservation Trust Fund accounts for the use of lottery proceeds
received from the State of Colorado. These funds are restricted for the
purposes of acquisition, development, and maintenance of qualifying parks,
recreation facilities, and infrastructure.
The Law Enforcement Fund accounts for the activities of the joint court,
police, and animal control functions shared by the Town of Winter Park and
the Town of Fraser. Activities are supported through revenues derived from
fines and forfeits, grants, contract labor, and supplemental transfers from
both towns.
The Transit and Trails Fund accounts for the acquisition, construction,
operation, and maintenance of public transit and trails systems within and
near the Town. Activities are supported by a two percent (2%) sales tax levy
approved by voters on November 3, 2015 with collections beginning
December 1, 2015.
The Special Projects Fund accounts for the resources and expenditures for
the purposes of acquisition, planning, construction, expansion, and
improvements of Town facilities and infrastructure except those required to
be accounted for in another fund. Revenues which are restricted for this
purpose include the highway user tax, road and bridge tax, 10% of sales tax,
and 50% of accommodations tax.
The Town reports the following major proprietary or business-type funds:
The Building Services Fund accounts for the resources and expenditures
associated with the activities of the joint Winter Park/Fraser/Granby Building
Department including all revenues, expenditures, and capital. Building
inspection fees are collected for all municipalities which in turn support the
operations of the department.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)
2.

Fund Financial Statements (continued)
The Employee Benefits Fund accounts for the Town’s self-funded dental
program. Administrative costs and claims are funded through charges to user
funds at a rate so as to ensure the liquidity and ability of the fund to meet the
needs of the dental program. The Town closed this fund in 2020 as dental
coverage is no longer provided through a self-funded program.
Certain eliminations have been made in regard to interfund activities, payables
and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been
eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental
activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as internal
balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the
Statement of Activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated;
however, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities
have not been eliminated.

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
Measurement focus refers to whether financial statements measure changes in current
resources only (current financial focus) or changes in both current and long-term
resources (long-term economic focus). Basis of accounting refers to the point at which
revenues, expenditures, or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Financial statement presentation refers to classification of revenues
by source and expenses by function.
1.

Long-term Economic Focus and Accrual Basis
Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements use the
long-term economic focus and are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Therefore, revenue
resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange
takes place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town receives value
without directly giving equal value in return, include sales taxes, property taxes,
accommodations taxes, grants and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from
sales taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place.
Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes
are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching
requirements, in which the Town must provide local resources to be used for a
specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the Town on a reimbursement basis.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial
Statement Presentation (continued)
2.

Current Financial Focus and Modified Accrual Basis
The governmental fund financial statements use the current financial focus and
are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual:
i.e., both measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period, generally within sixty days of year end. Expenditures are
generally recognized when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this
general rule is that principal and interest on general long-term debt, if any, is
recognized when due.
Franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenue of the current fiscal period. Sales and lodging taxes collected by vendors
at year end on behalf of the Town are also recognized as revenue if collected
within 30 days after year end. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as
revenue when qualified expenditures have been incurred and all other grant
requirements have been met. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town.

3.

Financial Statement Presentation
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Town’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for fees. Operating
expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of providing services and
administrative expenses. All revenue and expense not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D.

Financial Statement Accounts
1.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
The Town pools deposits and investments of all funds. Each fund’s share of the
pool is readily identified by the Town’s internal records.
Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as
short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date
acquired by the Town.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D.

Financial Statement Accounts (continued)
1.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)
Certain proceeds of debt issues, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, have been classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet
because their use is limited by the applicable covenants. Restricted assets also
include certain deposits that have been limited as to usage pursuant to escrow
and similar agreements.
Investments are stated at fair value, net asset value, or amortized cost. The
change in fair value of investments is recognized as an increase or decrease to
investment assets and investment income.
The Town’s investment policy permits investments which adhere to Federal,
State, and local requirements and restrictions. The investments selected will be
insured or collateralized by the U.S. government or its agencies or be rated in the
highest category by at least two of the nationally recognized investment rating
services.

2.

Receivables
Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.

3.

Property Taxes
Property taxes are assessed in one year as a lien on the property, but not
collected by the governmental units until the subsequent year. In accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, the assessed but uncollected
property taxes have been recorded as a receivable and as unavailable property
tax revenue.

4.

Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, vehicles, and
infrastructure assets (only infrastructure acquired after January 1, 2003) are
reported in the applicable governmental activity columns in the government-wide
financial statements. The Town defines capital assets as assets with an initial
cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition value at the date of donation.
Capital outlay for projects is capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase is capitalized as part of the value of the
assets constructed. There was no interest capitalized during 2020.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D.

Financial Statement Accounts (continued)
4.

Capital Assets (continued)
Infrastructure, buildings, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:
Assets
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

5.

Years
15
5 - 50
3 - 25

Compensated Absences
Earned but unused paid time off, including personal sick leave bank benefits, is
accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for
these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. Compensated
absences are being paid from the General Fund, Law Enforcement Fund, Transit
and Trails Fund and Building Services Fund.

6.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town doesn’t have
any items that qualify for reporting in this category at December 31, 2020.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has one type of item that
qualify for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, deferred revenue
(unavailable revenues from property tax revenue and long-term agreements), is
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
become available and earned, for additional details refer to Notes III.A and IV.C.

E.

Significant Accounting Policies
1.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the
Town’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount of
revenues and expenditures or expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.

Credit Risk
The receivables of the various funds of the Town are primarily due from other
governments. Management believes that the credit risk related to the receivables
is minimal.

3.

Categories and Classification of Fund Balance
Governmental accounting standards establishes fund balance classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in
governmental funds. Fund balance classifications, include Non-spendable,
Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. These classifications reflect
not only the nature of funds, but also provide clarity to the level of restriction
placed upon fund balance. Fund Balance can have different levels of restraint,
such as external versus internal compliance requirements. Unassigned fund
balance is a residual classification within the general fund. The general fund
should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned balance. In all other
funds, unassigned is limited to negative residual fund balance. For further details
of the various fund balance classifications refer to Note IV. G.

II.

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The governmental fund Balance Sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance – total
governmental funds and net position of governmental activities as reported in the governmentwide Statement of Net Position. Additionally, the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances includes reconciliation between net change in fund
balances – total governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities. The details of each reconciliation are
separately presented on the face of the financial statements.

III.

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
A.

Budgetary Information
An annual budget and appropriation resolution is adopted by Town Council in accordance
with the Town’s Home Rule Charter.
Budgets are prepared on the basis of GAAP for all funds.
Annual appropriations are adopted for all funds. Expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations at the fund level. All appropriations lapse at year end.
As required by the Town Charter and applicable state statutes, the Town followed the
required timetable noted below in preparing, approving, and enacting its budget for 2020.
1.

For the 2020 budget year, prior to August 25, 2019, the County Assessor sent to
the Town an assessed valuation of all taxable property within the Town’s
boundaries.
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Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued)
A.

Budgetary Information (continued)
2.

The Mayor, or other qualified person appointed by the Council, submitted to the
Council, on or before October 15, 2019, a recommended budget which detailed
the necessary property taxes needed along with other available revenues to
meet the Town’s operating requirements.

3.

Prior to December 15, 2019, a public hearing was held for the budget, the
Council certified to the County Commissioners a levy rate that derived the
necessary property taxes as computed in the proposed budget, and the Council
adopted the proposed budget and an appropriating resolution that legally
appropriated expenditures for the upcoming year.

4.

After adoption of the budget resolution, the Town may make the following
changes: a) it may transfer appropriated money between funds; b) approve
supplemental appropriations to the extent of revenues in excess of estimated
revenues in the budget; c) approve emergency appropriations; and d) reduce
appropriations for which originally estimated revenues are insufficient.

Property taxes levied in one year are collected in the succeeding year. Thus, taxes
certified in 2019 were collected in 2020 and taxes certified in 2020 will be collected in
2021. Taxes are due on January 1st in the year of collection; however, they may be paid
in either one installment (no later than April 30th) or two equal installments (not later than
February 28th and June 15th) without interest or penalty. Taxes that are not paid within
the prescribed time bear interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month until paid.
Unpaid amounts and the accrued interest thereon become delinquent on June 16th.
During the year, the Town’s Conservation Trust Fund and Building Service Fund
expenditures and transfers out exceeded appropriations. This may be a violation of
Colorado State Statutes.
B.

TABOR Amendment
In November 1992, Colorado voters amended Article X of the Colorado Constitution by
adding Section 20, commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (“TABOR). TABOR
contains revenue, spending, tax and debt limitations that apply to the State of Colorado
and local governments. TABOR requires, with certain exceptions, advance voter approval
for any new tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that for the prior year, extension of any
expiring tax, or tax policy change directly causing a net tax revenue gain to any local
government.
Except for refinancing bonded debt at a lower interest rate or adding new employees to
existing pension plans, TABOR requires advance voter approval for the creation of any
multiple-fiscal year debt or other financial obligation unless adequate present cash
reserves are pledged irrevocably and held for payments in all future fiscal years.
TABOR also requires local governments to establish an emergency reserve to be used
for declared emergencies only. The reserve is calculated at 3% of fiscal year spending,
as defined by TABOR. The Town has reserved $623,000, which is the approximate
required reserve at December 31, 2020.
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Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued)
B.

TABOR Amendment (continued)
On April 5, 1994, the Town’s electorate approved a ballot question exempting the Town
from certain provisions of TABOR. The Town's management believes it is in compliance
with the financial provisions of TABOR. However, TABOR is complex and subject to
interpretation. Many of its provisions, including the interpretation of how to calculate fiscal
year spending limits, will require judicial interpretation.

IV.

Detailed Notes on All Funds
A.

Deposits
The Town’s deposits are entirely covered by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC”) or by the collateral held under Colorado’s Public Deposit Protection Act
(“PDPA”). The FDIC insures the first $250,000 of the Town’s deposits at each financial
institution. Deposit balances over $250,000 are collateralized as required by PDPA. As of
year-end, the carrying amount of the Town’s demand deposits was $314,768.
At December 31, 2020, the Town held deposits and investments with the following
maturities.
Standard &
Poor's Rating

Deposits:
Petty Cash
Checking Accounts
Savings and Money Market Accounts
Investments:
Investment Pools
Total

Carrying
Amounts
$

AAAm

2,000
314,768
1,261,149

14,979,766
$ 16,557,683

Less than
one year
$

2,000
314,768
1,261,149

14,979,766
$ 16,557,683

Less than
five years
$

$

The Town’s cash and investments are presented on the Statement of Net Position as
follows:
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments - Unrestricted
Cash and investments - Restricted
Total

B.

$ 13,048,942
3,508,741
$ 16,557,683

Investments
The Town has invested in the Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust (“COLOTRUST”)
and Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (“CSAFE”). The pools are an investment vehicle
established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds. The fair value
of the pool is determined by the pool’s share price. They operate similarly to a money
market fund and each share is equal in value to $1. Investments of the pools consist of
U.S. Treasury bills, notes, and note strips, and repurchase agreements collateralized by
U.S. Treasury securities. COLOTRUST and CSAFE are rated AAAm by Standard and
Poor’s. The Town has no regulatory oversight for the pool.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
B.

Investments (continued)
Investments Measured at Net Asset Value:
COLOTRUST
Total

$ 10,645,658
$ 10,645,658

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
CSAFE
Total

$ 4,334,108
$ 4,334,108

The Town is not subject to any limitations or restrictions on withdrawals from CSAFE.
Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with the Town’s investment policy, the Town limits its
exposure to interest rate risk, by limiting its investment maturities to closely match cash
flow needs and restricts the maximum investment term to less than five years from the
purchase date. As a result of the limited length of maturities the Town limits its interest
rate risk.
Credit Risk. State law and Town policy limit investments to those authorized by State
statutes including U.S. Agencies and 2a7-like pools. The Town’s general investment
policy is to apply the prudent-person rule: Investments are made as a prudent person
would be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to preserve capital, seek
reasonable income; and, in general, avoid speculative investments.
Concentration of Credit Risk. The Town diversifies its investments by security type and
institution. Financial institutions holding Town funds must provide the Town with a
statement of collateral in the form of a listing of securities pledged, and a copy of the
certificate from the Banking Authority that states that the institution is an eligible public
depository. Colorado’s PDPA requirement noted above mitigates concentration of credit
risk. At December 31, 2020, the Town held no investments.
At December 31, 2020, the Town had no unrealized gains or losses.
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C.

Receivables
Receivables as of year-end for the Town’s funds, including applicable allowances for
uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General
Receivables:
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Due from component unit
Gross receivables
Less: allowance for
uncollectible
Net Receivables

$ 1,200,550
49,246
3,577
1,253,373
$ 1,253,373

Affordable
Housing
$

$

Law
Enforcement
Receivables:
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
Due from other governments
Due from component unit
Gross receivables
Less: allowance for
uncollectible
Net Receivables

$

$

4,950
37,312
42,262
42,262

2,525
248,162
250,687
250,687
Special
Projects

$

$

125,455
3,390
128,845
128,845

Open
Space
$

$

Conservation
Trust
-

$

$

Employee
Benefits
$

$

Transit
and Trails

-

$

-

$ 1,435,442

Building
Services
-

$

$

578,972
127,496
728,974
1,435,442

Total
-

$ 1,904,977
179,267
4,950
773,253
248,162
3,110,609

-

$ 3,110,609

Governmental funds report unavailable property tax revenue in connection with
receivables or revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of
the current period. This includes $310,650 and $175,471 of property taxes levied in 2020
but not available until 2021 in the General Fund and Trails and Transit Fund,
respectively.
The Town’s long-term receivables are reflected on the Town’s Statement of Activities.
They represent the following:
i.

The Town sold naming and marketing rights for the stage facility at Hideaway Park
for $2,500,000. The agreement requires annual payments of $250,000 through 2027
with interest at 4.25%. The remaining balance of $2,000,000 is shown as a
receivable and deferred inflow of resources on the Statement of Activities. The Town
executed an amendment to this agreement, effective in 2020, deferring the 2020
principal payment to 2028.

ii.

The Town signed a memorandum of understanding with the Intrawest/Winter Park
Operations Corporation (“the Corporation”). The agreement calls for the Corporation
to make annual payments of $300,000 for a period of 10 years. The remaining
balance of $1,500,000 is shown as a receivable and deferred inflow of resources on
the Statement of Activities.
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D.

Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
(Restated)

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Water rights
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets, Not
Being Depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Public garage
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated, Net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Increases

$ 6,428,014
386,440
2,314,930

$

Decreases

76,000
12,039,522

$

Ending
Balance

(2,438,911)

$ 6,428,014
462,440
11,915,541

9,129,384

12,115,522

(2,438,911)

18,805,995

14,055,418
24,004,916
5,898,172

1,216,897
1,574,847
1,701,883

(291,458)

15,272,315
25,579,763
7,308,597

43,958,506

4,493,627

(291,458)

48,160,675

(8,037,297)
(4,743,316)
(2,993,990)
-

(817,713)
(623,931)
(710,257)
-

291,458
-

(8,855,010)
(5,367,247)
(3,412,789)
-

(15,774,603)

(2,151,901)

291,458

(17,635,046)

28,183,903

2,341,726

$ 37,313,287

$ 14,457,248

$ (2,438,911)

30,525,629
$ 49,331,624

The Town reported depreciation expense and capital outlay for the following functions:
Depreciation
Expense
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Economic development
Transit and Trails
Community enhancement
Affordable Housing
Total

$

124,727
144,252
292,802
386,534
1,002,593
200,993
$ 2,151,901

Capital
Outlay
$

98,192
10,999,502
76,000
800,070
538,237
2,161,209
$ 14,673,210

At December 31, 2020, the Town had $2,898,679 of fully depreciated assets in service.
See Note V.I for further discussion of the beginning balance.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
E.

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
Interfund balances at December 31, 2020, consisted of the following amounts and
represent charges for services or reimbursable expenses. These remaining balances
resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods or services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting period, and (3) payments between funds are made. The Town expects to
repay all interfund balances within one year.
Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, 2) move
unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and 3) provide
additional resources for current operations or debt service.
The following represents interfund balances and transfers at December 31, 2020.
Due From

General Fund
Law Enforcement Fund
Special Projects Fund
Building Inspection Fund
Employee Benefits Fund

$

Due To
-

$

$

$

Transfer In
-

$

209,718
1,003,712
1,471,455
$ 2,684,885

Transfer Out
$ 2,475,167
98,192
102,564
8,962
$ 2,684,885

The transfer between the General Fund and the Law Enforcement Fun are used to fund
public safety operations. The Special Projects Fund transfer in from the General Fund is
for capital outlay for infrastructure projects, new construction and other Town
improvements.
F.

Long-term Liabilities
1.

Certificates of Participation Series 2016A
On October 11, 2016, UMB Bank, N.A. (“UMB”) issued $3,773,500 of Taxable
Certificates of Participation. The Certificates of Participation bear interest of
4.50%. The initial payment of $23,584 for interest was due December 1, 2016.
Thereafter, annual principal payments are due December 1st through 2031.
Additionally, quarterly interest payments are due the 1st of March, June,
September, and December through 2031. The net proceeds of $3,694,300 were
placed with the trustee with $3,594,300 to be used to finance the acquisition,
construction and installation of a new stage in Hideaway Park and $100,000 as a
debt service reserve fund. UMB will lease the constructed addition to the Town
for a period that runs concurrent with the term to maturity of the Series 2016A
Certificates of Participation.
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F.

Long-term Liabilities (continued)
2.

Certificates of Participation Series 2016B
On December 28, 2016, UMB Bank, N.A. (“UMB”) issued $4,567,800 of Nontaxable Certificates of Participation. The Certificates of Participation bear interest
of 3.39%. The initial interest payment is due June 1, 2017 and semi-annually
thereafter on the 1st of December and June through maturity. Annual principal
payments are due December 1st through 2031. The net proceeds of $4,500,000
were used to finance the acquisition of a parking structure. UMB will lease the
constructed addition to the Town for a period that runs concurrent with the term
to maturity of the Series 2016B Certificates of Participation.

3.

Certificates of Participation Series 2017
On November 7, 2017, UMB Bank N.A. issued $8,645,000 of Non-taxable
Certificates of Participation. The Certificates of Participation bear variable interest
of 3.00% through 2022 and thereafter of 4.00% through 2039. The initial interest
payment of $190,768 is due June 1, 2018 and semi-annually thereafter on the
1st of December and June through maturity. Annual principal payments are due
December 1st through 2042. The net proceeds of $9,362,380, including the
original issue premium of $717,380, were used towards the purchase of
Hideaway Place Apartments (“Hideaway Place”) to provide workforce rental
housing. UMB will lease Hideaway Place to the Town for a period that runs
concurrent with the term to maturity of the Series 2017 Certificates of
Participation.

4.

Certificates of Participation Series 2019
On December 30, 2019, UMB Bank N.A. issued $11,010,000 of Non-taxable
Certificates of Participation. The Certificates of Participation bear variable interest
of 4.00% through 2030 and thereafter of between 2.125% and 2.625% through
2039. The initial interest payment of $145,784 is due June 1, 2020 and semiannually thereafter on the 1st of December and June through maturity. Annual
principal payments are due December 1st through 2039. The net proceeds of
$11,662,155, including the original issue premium of $652,155, will be used to
finance the costs of design, acquisition, construction and installation of a new
Town public works facility, UMB will lease the public works facility to the Town for
a period that runs concurrent with the term to maturity of the Series 2019
Certificates of Participation.
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F.

Long-term Liabilities (continued)
5.

Annual Debt Requirements – Certificates of Participation
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for governmental activities are as
follows:
Principal
Governmental Activities:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040
2041-2042
Total Governmental Activities

$ 1,098,540
1,152,505
1,217,220
1,267,718
1,314,028
7,400,621
4,660,899
6,140,000
1,070,000
$ 25,321,531

Interest

Total

908,925
867,660
824,444
776,347
726,237
2,808,301
1,394,468
799,049
64,600
$ 9,170,031

$ 2,007,465
2,020,165
2,041,664
2,044,065
2,040,265
10,208,922
6,055,367
6,939,049
1,134,600
$ 34,491,562

$

The Town is compliant for ongoing disclosure requirements to the secondary bond
market in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 15c2-12.
6.

Note Payable
February 1, 2019 the Town entered into a note payable with Station WP, L.L.C.
in the amount of $100,000 at a rate of 5.0%. The note requires 36 monthly
principal and interest payments in the amount of $2,997 due on the 1st of each
month beginning May 1, 2019 and is unsecured. The balance remaining at
December 31, 2020 is $46,297.
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F.

Long-term Liabilities (continued)
7.

Changes in long-term liabilities
Changes in the Town’s long-term liabilities consisted of the following for 2020:
Beginning
Balance

Governmental activities:
Certificates of Participation
Series 2016A
Series 2016B
Series 2017
Series 2019
Premium on Series 2017
Premium on Series 2019
Net Certificates of Participation
Note Payable
Accrued compensated absences
Total governmental activities

$ 3,203,950
3,817,878
8,360,000
11,010,000
659,989
619,547
27,671,364
79,053
190,488
$ 27,940,905

Increases

$

$

Beginning
Balance
Business activities:
Accrued compensated absences
Total business activities

G.

$
$

12,216
12,216

250,422
250,422

Increases
$
$

15,977
15,977

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

(207,187)
(263,110)
(190,000)
(410,000)
(28,695)
(32,608)
(1,131,600)
(32,756)
(195,996)
$ (1,360,352)

$ 2,996,763
3,554,768
8,170,000
10,600,000
631,294
586,939
26,539,764
46,297
244,914
$ 26,830,975

Decreases

Ending
Balance

$
$

(8,511)
(8,511)

$
$

19,682
19,682

Due Within
One Year

$

216,511
272,029
210,000
400,000
1,098,540
32,756
36,737
$ 1,168,033
Due Within
One Year
$
$

Fund Balances and Net Position
The Town classifies governmental fund balances as follows:
Non-spendable - includes fund balance amounts inherently non-spendable since they
represent inventories, prepaid items, long-term portion of loans receivable, etc.
Spendable Fund Balance:
Restricted – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific
purposes which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or
amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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G.

Fund Balances and Net Position (continued)
Spendable Fund Balance (continued):
Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific
purposes that are internally imposed by the government through adoption of a
formal ordinance from highest level of decision making authority which is the
Town Council. Once adopted the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in
place until a similar action is taken (i.e., the adoption of another ordinance to
remove or revise the limitation).
Assigned – includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be
used for specific purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed.
Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained by the Town’s intent to
use them for a specific purpose. The authority to assign has been delegated to
the Town Council or its management designee (i.e., Town Manager). Any
intended use of any amount will be expressed by the Council and recorded in the
minutes of the meeting.
Unassigned - includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund
which has not been classified within the other above mentioned categories.
Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for any
governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or
assigned for those specific purposes.
The Town uses restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing
this, such as in grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the
Town would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of
unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.
The Town does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy. However, the Town’s
budget includes a calculation of targeted reserve positions and management calculates
targets and reports them annually to the Town Council.
In the government wide financial statements, net position represents the difference
between assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows (outflows) of resources. Net investment in
capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or
regulations of other governments. All other net position is reported as unrestricted.
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G.

Fund Balances and Net Position (continued)
As of December 31, 2020, fund balances are composed of the following:
Other
Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds
Funds

General
Fund
Non-spendable:
Prepaids
Restricted:
Emergency Reserve
Conservation Trust
Committed:
Affordable Housing
Open Space
Transit and Trail
Special projects
Assigned:
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

V.

$

-

$

14,268

$

14,268

623,000
-

38,974

623,000
38,974

-

1,548,409
203,712
2,794,056
1,303,857

1,548,409
203,712
2,794,056
1,303,857

7,871,624
$ 8,494,624

(14,268)
$ 5,889,008

Description

Legislative Restriction
Legislative Restriction
Aff. Housing Fees/Ordinance
Open Space fee/Ordinance
Public transit and trail system
Capital projects

7,857,356
$ 14,383,632

Other Information
A.

Retirement Plans
1.

Deferred Compensation Plan – Section 457
The Town, as authorized by Council, offers its employees a deferred
compensation plan (Town of Winter Park 457 Deferred Compensation Plan)
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan
permits employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Employees
are considered 100% vested upon entry into the plan and therefore the plan does
not have any forfeitures. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. In
2007, the Town began offering a discretionary matching component to the plan of
up to 4% of compensation. In 2020, the Town contributed $104,683 to the plan in
discretionary matching contributions for the 36 active participants; this amount is
the Town’s required contributions. The Town’s accrued payroll includes $8,523
related to the Town’s 457 plan.
All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights are to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the plan
participants and their beneficiaries.
Plan investment purchases are determined by the plan participant and therefore,
the plan’s investment concentration varies between participants. The Town is the
Trustee of the 457 Plan and accordingly has no liability for losses under the plan
but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent
investor. The Plan is administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation.
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A.

Retirement Plans (continued)
2.

Retirement Plan - Section 401(a)
The Town has established a defined contribution money purchase plan (Town of
Winter Park 401a Money Purchase Plan) in the form of the ICMA Retirement
Corporation Prototype Money Purchase Plan and Trust under Code Section 401
of the Internal Revenue code.
The Town’s contributions are 7.65% of the participants’ compensation and
employees contribute 7.65% of the same compensation. The Town’s
contributions are 8% of police officer’s compensation. The Town’s total covered
payroll was $2,766,660 in 2020 for the 37 active participants. Total required and
actual contributions to the plan were $212,901 for both employee and employer.
The Town’s accrued payroll includes $14,418 related to the Town’s 401a plan.
Employees are considered 100% vested upon entry into the plan and therefore
the plan does not have any forfeitures.

B.

Other Employee Benefits
1.

Employee Health Care Benefits
The Town of Winter Park offers its employees and employee dependents
participation in a health insurance plan provided by Cigna. Funding for the plan is
provided by charges to Town departments and employees. The program is
supplemented by a stop loss re-insurance plan which limits the Town’s annual
liability to $20,000 and $20,000 per claim. Expenditures consist of payments to a
third-party administrator for medical claims, stop loss insurance premiums and
administrative fees.
According to the terms of the policy, in any given annual policy period the Town
can receive a rebate for the surplus amount of funds paid into the policy but not
expended on claims. At December 31, 2020, the Town had a surplus of $0 which
can be used to offset future premium payments. This amount is reported in
accrued payroll in the General Fund.
All Town employees may continue their health insurance due to a reduction in
work hours or termination of employment pursuant to COBRA guidelines.
Employees who elect continued coverage must pay the insurance carrier for
premiums from the termination date of coverage and monthly thereafter. No cost
to the Town is recognized as employees reimburse 100% of their premium cost.
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C.

Intergovernmental Agreements
1.

Building Services Agreement
On June 3,2020, the Town entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the
Towns of Fraser and Granby, in which the Town will provide building inspection,
plan review and building related services for each entity through its Building
Division. Winter Park will serve as the managing agency of the Building Division,
providing staff, operational facilities, administrative and accounting support. The
Town shall prepare an annual budget for consideration and approval by each
entity. Additionally, the Town will prepare an annual Building Division report
summarizing revenues and expenses which will be provided to each entity.
Following the accumulation of a two-year operating reserve in the Building
Division Fund, the Town will disperse excess reserves to each entity on an
equitable basis. The agreement is subject to annual appropriation by each entity
and automatically renews each January 1st, unless cancelled by any entity.

2.

Transit Agreements
During 2018 the Town entered into intergovernmental agreements with the
Towns of Fraser and Granby to provide the operation public transportation and
service to these entities. Fraser and Granby will each pay the Town its
proportional cost of transit service provided to each entity plus an administrative
fee equal to 10% of these proportional costs. The agreements renew annually
for 12 months for additional terms of 10 years for Fraser and 5 years for Granby.
The agreements are subject to annual appropriation by each entity.

3.

Public Safety Agreement
The Towns of Winter Park and Fraser entered into an intergovernmental
agreement to establish a joint police department on May 1, 2005. Costs of the
police department are shared based on the average call volume and Fraser pays
a 2% administrative fee to Winter Park for administration, finance, procurement
and human resource capacities of managing the police department.

D.

Risk Management
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and general liability. The Town carries
commercial coverage for these risks and does not expect claims to exceed their
coverage.
The Town is also exposed to risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; and errors and omissions. To address such risks, the Town is a
participant in a public entity risk pool administered by Colorado Intergovernmental Risk
Sharing Agency (“CIRSA”).
CIRSA’s operations are funded by contributions from member governments. Coverage is
provided in the amount of $50,000,000 per claim or occurrence for property, $5,000,000
per claim or occurrence for liability, and $500,000 per claim or occurrence for crime.
CIRSA has also acquired additional excess coverage from outside sources. While the
Town may be liable for any losses in excess of this coverage, the Town does not
anticipate such losses at December 31, 2020.
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D.

Risk Management (continued)
Surpluses or deficits realized by CIRSA for any given year are subject to change for such
reasons as interest earnings on invested amounts for those years and funds, reestimation of losses for those years and funds, and credits or distribution from surplus for
those years and funds.
The Town’s share of CIRSA’s assets, liabilities, and fund equity as of December 31, 2020
is as follows:
Property and Casualty Pool:
Operating Fund
Loss Fund
Excess Fund
Reserve Fund

Equity Ratio
0.236%
0.214%
0.530%
0.309%

Workers' Compensation Pool
Operating Fund
Loss Fund
Excess Fund
Reserve Fund

Equity Ratio
0.526%
0.470%
0.197%
0.133%

CIRSA’s combined financial information for the year ended December 31, 2020, the most
current year available, is summarized as follows:
Assets:
Cash and other investments
Other assets
Total Assets

$ 85,609,779
8,563,951
$ 94,173,730

Total liabilities

$ 35,750,846
58,422,884

Net position
Total contributions and other revenues
Total expenses and distributions
Change in Net Position

$ 33,496,772
(24,091,402)
$ 9,405,370

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from prior year and there
have been no insurance settlements that have exceeded the Town’s insurance coverage
in any of the past 3 years.
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E.

Construction Commitments
The Town has active construction projects as of December 31, 2020. The projects
include a new public works facility. At the end of the year the Towns commitments with
certain contractors are as follows:

Project
Public works facility

F.

Spent
to date
$ 11,633,182

Remaining
Commitment
$ 1,123,918

Lease Agreement
On September 15, 2017, the Town entered into an intergovernmental agreement with
Grand County Water and Sanitation District No. 1 (the “District”) for 60 months. Per the
agreement, the Town provides office space for the District in exchange for rights to water
and sewer taps. The agreement provides one sewer and one water tap every six months
to the Town in exchange for the leased space and can be extended annually by mutual
consent of the Town and District. The cost and carry amount of leased space
approximates the value of the exchanged water and sewer taps of $76,000.

G.

Related Party Transactions
The Town has a member of the Council that has ownership in a company that provided
snow removal services for certain Town owned properties. The contract for snow removal
services was approved after a competitive bidding process that the member abstained
from voting upon. The related party relationship ended in May of 2020.

H.

Joint Venture
The Town has an equity interest in the Grand County Mutual Ditch and Reservoir
Company (the “Company”). The Company’s overall objective is to increase stream flows
and water storage in the Upper Fraser River Basin (and its tributaries) and the Colorado
River (through Grand County), as well as making water available for municipal uses. The
Company was incorporated in Colorado on January 22, 2008 and is governed by a six
member board elected by the shareholders. The Town currently holds 4 shares of Class
A stock and 1.91 share of Class B stock giving the Town 17.615% of all shares
outstanding. The Company’s Articles of Incorporation allow the Company to make
annual assessments from shareholders as needed. In 2020 the Town was assessed
$6,700. The Town’s share of equity and income (loss) relating to the Company was
$674,569 and $174, respectively. The Company is financially stable and the Town does
not anticipate any future significant change in their financial benefit or burden. Separate
financial statements for the Company can be obtained directly from the Town of Winter
Park Finance Department (finance@wpgov.com).

I.

Restatement
As of January 1, 2020 the Town determined its share of the Grand County Mutual Ditch
Company (see note above) should be accounted for as a joint venture. As a result, the
Town’s capital assets were reduced by $328,992 and moved to equity in Joint Venture
(See above note). The Town additionally increased its beginning Statement of Financial
Position - Net Assets, to reflect their share of equity for past net income from their share
of the Corporation.
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(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)
2020

Original
Budget
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Sales/lodging taxes
Franchise taxes
Other taxes
Accommodation taxes
Real estate transfer taxes
Licenses and permits:
Liquor license fees
Business licenses
Building permits
Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue:
Grant revenue
Charges for services:
Development review fees
Rents
Other charges for services
Investment income
Other revenue
Donations and contributions

$

2019

Final
Budget

300,407
28,000
5,871,697
47,432
173,972
1,513,430

$

Actual

300,407
28,000
5,871,697
47,432
173,972
1,513,430

$

301,212
35,278
5,188,648
129,825
56,452
168,840
1,865,387

Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)

$

805
7,278
(683,049)
129,825
9,020
(5,132)
351,957

Actual

$

13,400
87,000
3,000

13,400
87,000
3,000

10,623
104,940
4,250

-

-

144,992

144,992

48,000
85,500
500
137,400
352,625
20,000

48,000
85,500
500
137,400
352,625
20,000

41,742
89,800
75
55,497
95,637
20,000

(6,258)
4,300
(425)
(81,903)
(256,988)
-

16,475
85,500
207
187,402
356,284
20,000

8,682,363

8,682,363

8,313,198

(369,165)

9,071,849

Expenditures:
General government:
Town Council / Committees
Clerk, finance & records
Town administration
Planning and development
Public works
Community & economic development
Community enhancement
Affordable housing
Capital outlay

493,606
583,401
294,329
474,655
1,817,049
2,087,511
353,100
100,704
656,000

3,768,606
583,401
294,329
474,655
1,817,049
2,150,986
353,100
100,704
656,000

133,049
552,875
201,386
495,186
1,602,348
1,473,965
310,785
83,205
412,476

3,635,557
30,526
92,943
(20,531)
214,701
677,021
42,315
17,499
243,524

2,680,074
544,169
175,465
517,631
1,468,721
1,827,253
288,637
93,773
1,534,573

Total Expenditures

6,860,355

10,198,830

5,265,275

4,933,555

9,130,296

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

1,822,008

(1,516,467)

3,047,923

4,564,390

(58,447)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Sale of assets
Insurance recoveries

126,000
(4,517,636)
20,000
-

126,000
(4,517,636)
20,000
-

209,718
(2,475,167)
99,650
6,755

83,718
2,042,469
79,650
6,755

1,098,470
(1,814,785)
248,527
-

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

(4,371,636)

(4,371,636)

(2,159,044)

2,212,592

(467,788)

Net Change in Fund Balances

(2,549,628)

(5,888,103)

6,776,982

(526,235)

8,363,852

8,363,852

Total Revenues

Fund Balances Beginning of Year
Fund Balances End of Year

$

5,814,224

$

C1

2,475,749

(2,777)
17,940
1,250

287,933
34,567
5,913,489
130,414
55,683
174,826
1,673,749

888,879
7,605,745
$

8,494,624

14,395
116,035
4,890
-

(758,107)
$

6,018,875

8,131,980
$

7,605,745
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Special Revenue Fund
Affordable Housing Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)

2020

Original
Budget
Revenues:
Real estate transfer assessment
Affordable housing fees
Rental income
Investment income

$

Total Revenues

50,000
150,000
585,000
11,100

2019

Final
Budget
$

50,000
150,000
585,000
11,100

Actual
$

97,039
298,726
585,235
9,983

Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)
$

47,039
148,726
235
(1,117)

Actual
$

89,719
425,461
570,958
36,186

796,100

796,100

990,983

194,883

1,122,324

Expenditures:
Purchased services
Other
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Cost of issuance
Capital outlay

370,650
25,000

370,650
25,000

176,183
25,000

194,467
-

151,749
-

328,100
190,000
3,000
1,000,000

328,100
190,000
3,000
1,000,000

328,100
190,000
3,000
800,070

199,930

333,350
175,000
3,000
-

Total Expenditures

1,916,750

1,916,750

1,522,353

394,397

663,099

(1,120,650)

(1,120,650)

589,280

459,225

1,615,554

1,615,554

464,225

1,620,554

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances Beginning of Year
Fund Balances End of Year

$

494,904

$

C2

494,904

(531,370)
2,079,779
$

1,548,409

$

1,053,505

$

2,079,779
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Special Revenue Fund
Open Space Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)

2020

Original
Budget
Revenues:
Open space fees
Investment income

$

Total Revenues

787

Final
Budget
$

787

2019
Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)

Actual
$

31,250
959

$

31,250
172

Actual
$

15,875
3,505

787

787

32,209

31,422

19,380

Expenditures:
Capital outlay

90,000

90,000

-

90,000

-

Total Expenditures

90,000

90,000

-

90,000

-

Net Change in Fund Balances

(89,213)

(89,213)

32,209

121,422

19,380

Fund Balances Beginning of Year

154,423

154,423

171,503

17,080

152,123

Fund Balances End of Year

$

65,210

$

C3

65,210

$

203,712

$

138,502

$

171,503
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Special Revenue Fund
Conservation Trust Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)

2020

Original
Budget
Revenues:
Lottery proceeds
Investment income
Other revenue

$

Total Revenues

Final
Budget

4,911
250
-

$

2019

Actual

4,911
250
-

$

5,432
190
4,666

Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)
$

521
(60)
4,666

Actual
$

5,946
640
-

5,161

5,161

10,288

5,127

Expenditures:
Purchased services

-

-

4,666

(4,666)

-

Total Expenditures

-

-

4,666

(4,666)

-

5,161

5,161

5,622

461

6,586

31,866

31,866

33,352

1,486

26,766

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances Beginning of Year
Fund Balances End of Year

$

37,027

$

37,027

C4

$

38,974

$

1,947

6,586

$

33,352
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Special Revenue Fund
Law Enforcement Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)

2020

Original
Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Other revenue

$

Total Revenues

Final
Budget

697,746
30,500
62,200
-

$

2019
Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)

Actual

697,746
30,500
62,200
-

$

628,397
16,706
53,559
31,150

$

(69,349)
(13,794)
(8,641)
31,150

Actual
$

790,446

790,446

729,812

1,723,226
83,004

1,723,226
83,004

1,547,522
60,577

-

-

32,756
3,209

1,806,230

1,806,230

1,644,064

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

(1,015,784)

(1,015,784)

(914,252)

101,532

(912,719)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Debt proceeds
Insurance recoveries

1,141,784
(126,000)
-

1,141,784
(126,000)
-

1,003,712
(98,192)
8,732

(138,072)
27,808
8,732

1,070,884
(258,165)
100,000
-

1,015,784

1,015,784

914,252

(101,532)

912,719

Net Change in Fund Balances

-

-

-

-

-

Fund Balances Beginning of Year

-

-

-

-

-

Expenditures:
Police
Court
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balances End of Year

$

-

$

C5

-

$

-

(60,634)

622,869
25,962
50,413
699,244

175,704
22,427

1,520,152
67,834

(32,756)
(3,209)

20,947
3,030

162,166

$

-

1,611,963

$

-
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Special Revenue Fund
Transit and Trails Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)

2020

Original
Budget
Revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Transit user fees
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Donations and contributions

$

Final
Budget

168,794
3,098,069
122,696
1,502,179
23,000
300,000

$

2019
Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)

Actual

168,794
3,098,069
122,696
1,502,179
23,000
300,000

$

168,792
2,440,157
134,627
2,244,893
14,600
300,000

$

(2)
(657,912)
11,931
742,714
(8,400)
-

Actual
$

115,044
2,767,684
107,131
1,653,677
66,704
300,000

Total Revenues

5,214,738

5,214,738

5,303,069

88,331

5,010,240

Expenditures:
Transit
Trails
Capital outlay

2,878,945
240,971
1,405,000

2,878,945
240,971
2,312,202

2,547,978
196,766
2,202,335

330,967
44,205
109,867

2,677,390
190,363
-

Total Expenditures

4,524,916

5,432,118

4,947,079

485,039

2,867,753

355,990

573,370

2,142,487

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

689,822

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (out)
Sale of Assets

-

-

-

-

(1,876,170)
300

-

-

-

-

(1,875,870)

355,990

573,370

266,617

2,438,066

467,940

2,171,449

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

689,822

Fund Balances Beginning of Year
Fund Balances End of Year

(217,380)

(217,380)

1,970,126
$

2,659,948

1,970,126
$

C6

1,752,746

$

2,794,056

$

1,041,310

$

2,438,066

Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

DRAFT

Budgetary Information - The budget is prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America by the Town's Finance Department and
approved by the Town Council following a public hearing.
Any change in the total to a fund's budget requires approval of the Town Council. All unexpended
annual appropriations lapse at year-end. Budgets for these projects are appropriated in the
following year.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Special Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)

2020

Original
Budget
Revenues:
Sales taxes
Accommodation taxes
Other taxes
Investment earnings
Donations and contributions

$

Total Revenues

Final
Budget

652,411
173,972
65,830
16,000
-

$

2019

Actual

652,411
173,972
65,830
16,000
-

$

576,271
168,840
66,479
46,694
-

Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)
$

(76,140)
(5,132)
649
30,694
-

Actual
$

656,956
174,826
76,094
20,091
46,479

908,213

908,213

858,284

(49,929)

974,446

Expenditures:
General government
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Issuance costs
Capital outlay

-

-

788

(788)

-

900,297
472,920
9,000
13,149,000

900,297
573,170
9,000
13,647,000

880,297
593,169
11,535,190

20,000
(19,999)
9,000
2,111,810

452,748
291,153
269,536
2,467,889

Total Expenditures

14,531,217

15,129,467

13,009,444

2,120,023

3,481,326

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

(13,623,004)

(14,221,254)

(12,151,160)

2,070,094

(2,506,880)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Debt proceeds
Insurance recoveries

3,346,672
-

3,944,922
-

1,471,455
-

(2,473,467)
-

1,779,766
11,662,155
13,282

3,346,672

3,944,922

1,471,455

(2,473,467)

13,455,203

(10,276,332)

(10,276,332)

(10,679,705)

(403,373)

10,948,323

10,276,332

10,276,332

11,983,562

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances Beginning of Year
Fund Balances End of Year

$

-

$

D1

-

$

1,303,857

$

1,707,230

1,035,239

1,303,857

$ 11,983,562
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Enterprise Fund
Building Services Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Net Position
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)

2020

Original
Budget
Operating Revenues:
Licenses and permits

$

Final
Budget

650,000

$

650,000

2019

Actual
$

700,775

Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)
$

50,775

Actual
$

810,136

Total Operating Revenues

650,000

650,000

700,775

50,775

810,136

Operating Expenses:
Building inspection services

371,419

371,419

352,513

18,906

355,836

Total Operating Expenses

371,419

371,419

352,513

18,906

355,836

Operating Income (Loss)

278,581

278,581

348,262

69,681

454,300

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income

3,000

3,000

4,635

1,635

10,019

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

3,000

3,000

4,635

1,635

10,019

Income (Loss) Before Transfers
and Captial Contributions

281,581

281,581

352,897

71,316

464,319

Intergovernmental distributions
Transfer (out)

-

(300,000)
-

(219,657)
(102,564)

80,343
(102,564)

Change in Net Position

281,581

(18,419)

30,676

49,095

464,319

Net Position Beginning of Year

696,353

696,353

767,959

71,606

303,641

Net Position End of Year

$

977,934

$

D2

677,934

$

798,635

$

120,701

-

$

767,960
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Internal Service Fund
Employee Benefits Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Net Position
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended 2019)

2020

Original
Budget
Operating Revenues:
Premiums

$

Total Operating Revenues

Final
Budget
-

$

2019
Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)

Actual
-

$

-

$

-

Actual
$

-

-

-

-

-

-

Operating Expenses:
Dental insurance

27,880

27,880

-

27,880

23,399

Total Operating Expenses

27,880

27,880

-

27,880

23,399

Operating Income (Loss)

(27,880)

(27,880)

-

27,880

(23,399)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings

372

372

55

(317)

457

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

372

372

55

(317)

457

Income (Loss) Before Transfers
and Capital Contributions

(27,508)

(27,508)

Intergovernmental distributions
Transfers in
Transfer (out)

29,180
-

29,180
-

(8,962)

(29,180)
(8,962)

1,672

1,672

(8,907)

(10,579)

(22,942)

33,768

33,768

8,907

(24,861)

31,849

Change in Net Position
Net Position Beginning of Year
Net Position End of Year

$

35,440

D3

$

35,440

55

$

-

27,563

$

(35,440)

(22,942)

-

$

8,907

STATISTICAL SECTION
This section of the Town’s Comprehensive Financial Report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the Town’s overall financial health.
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Schedules

Financial Trends –
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the Town’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

1-4

Revenue Capacity –
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s
most significant local revenue source, sales tax.

5 - 10

Demographic and Economic Information –
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13 - 16

Debt Capacity –
These schedule’s present information to help the reader assess the affordability
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11 - 12

Operating Information –
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Town’s financial report relates to the
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17 - 19
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
Schedule 1
Fiscal Year
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

Governmental Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

$ 26,254,304
661,974
10,652,643

$ 21,465,737
839,352
11,924,388

$ 19,262,888
771,000
12,589,221

$ 17,355,362
702,000
10,490,252

$ 19,002,042
350,988
8,147,834

$ 18,486,439
227,183
7,375,663

$ 21,394,469
273,437
4,775,411

$ 21,408,606
373,437
4,139,423

$ 18,822,644
348,437
6,897,203

$ 18,926,191
323,437
7,359,010

Subtotal Governmental Activities

37,568,921

34,229,477

32,623,109

28,547,614

27,500,864

26,089,285

26,443,317

25,921,466

26,068,284

26,608,638

Business-type Activities
Unrestricted

798,635

767,960

303,642

(111,242)

(324,917)

(403,386)

(492,112)

(531,897)

(423,265)

(344,508)

Subtotal Business-type Activities

798,635

767,960

303,642

(111,242)

(324,917)

(403,386)

(492,112)

(531,897)

(423,265)

(344,508)

$ 38,367,556

$ 34,997,437

$ 32,926,751

Total Primary Government Net Position

$ 28,436,372

E1

$ 27,175,947

$ 25,685,899

$ 25,951,205

$ 25,389,569

$ 25,645,019

$ 26,264,130

DRAFT

Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
Schedule 2
Fiscal Year
2020
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Economic Development
Community Enhancement
Transit
Housing
Interest
Total Governmental Activities Expense

$

1,527,955
1,772,433
2,092,769
1,473,965
1,611,497
2,934,502
991,353
861,271
13,265,745

2019

$

4,482,902
1,721,297
1,991,206
2,026,553
1,458,780
2,878,545
433,513
571,706
15,564,502

2018

$

2017

1,590,195
1,575,199
1,698,104
1,927,431
1,350,025
2,705,682
505,020
631,003
11,982,659

$

2016

2015

1,294,362
1,484,937
1,774,617
1,711,456
1,211,670
2,581,805
770,267
361,285
11,190,399

$ 1,298,431
1,387,463
1,517,406
1,400,518
1,205,930
2,507,622
84,515
48,703
9,450,588

$ 1,078,514
1,258,496
1,171,295
2,540,149
1,323,307
483,864
349,477
8,205,102

Business-type Activities:
Building Services
Total Business-type Activities Expense

572,170
572,170

355,836
355,836

343,854
343,854

294,759
294,759

270,322
270,322

191,599
191,599

Total Primary Government Expenses

2014

$

2012

$

982,942
1,128,016
1,377,678
1,545,570
984,555
959
6,019,720

2011

1,050,214
1,204,340
1,310,628
1,574,314
1,170,388
6,309,884

$ 1,116,963
1,243,770
1,256,168
1,647,291
1,165,150
6,429,342

$

921,646
1,096,777
1,370,913
1,406,425
977,593
29,792
5,803,146

214,659
214,659

250,862
250,862

242,614
242,614

220,602
220,602

6,524,543

$ 6,680,204

$ 6,262,334

$ 6,023,748

$ 13,837,915

$ 15,920,338

$ 12,326,513

$ 11,485,158

$ 9,720,910

$ 8,396,701

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Transit
Housing
Economic Development
Operating Grants, Contributions & Interest
Capital Grants and Contributions
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues

385,072
70,265
134,627
688,148
2,511,690
876,572
4,666,374

609,661
76,375
107,131
699,436
2,132,542
516,429
4,141,574

552,095
99,486
99,271
1,056,265
1,484,822
1,034,584
4,326,523

249,124
103,397
139,121
223,614
1,267,935
300,000
2,283,191

199,971
75,552
190,007
177,672
1,167,400
300,000
2,110,602

162,007
72,393
40,065
226,939
469,100
52,250
1,022,754

165,143
77,245
169,372
447,145
150,000
1,008,905

164,433
88,746
50,444
477,673
218,574
999,870

154,458
68,908
25,706
441,966
107,232
798,270

172,985
89,992
118,341
480,899
10,955
873,172

Business-type Activities:
Charges for Services:
Building Services
Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues

700,775
700,775

810,136
810,136

787,438
787,438

510,177
510,177

349,667
349,667

281,982
281,982

256,202
256,202

143,908
143,908

165,545
165,545

175,365
175,365

2,793,368

$ 2,460,269

$ 1,304,736

1,265,107

$ 1,143,778

963,815

$ 1,048,537

Total Primary Government Program Revenues

$

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities
Total Primary Government Net Expense
General Revenues and Transfers
Governmental Activities:
Sales Tax
Accommodation Tax
Property Tax
Specific Ownership Tax
Real Estate Transfer Tax
Franchise Tax
Other Tax
Investment Earnings
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers
Special Item
Total General Revenues, Special Items, and Transfers

Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities
Total Changes in Net Position

$

(8,599,371)
128,605

4,951,710

$

(11,422,928)
454,300

5,113,961

$

(7,656,136)
443,584

(8,907,208)
215,418

(7,339,986)
79,345

$

(7,182,348)
90,383

(5,300,979)
41,543

$ (8,470,766) $ (10,968,628) $ (7,212,552) $ (8,691,790) $ (7,260,641) $ (7,091,965) $

$

Business -type Activities:
Investment Earnings
Transfers
Total Business-type Activities
Total Primary Government

5,367,149

$

2013

8,205,076
337,680
470,004
35,278
1,962,426
129,825
122,931
127,978
99,650
102,564
11,593,412

$

4,635
(102,564)
(97,929)

9,338,129
349,652
402,977
34,567
1,763,468
130,414
131,777
314,985
262,109
12,728,078

$

10,019
10,019

8,516,207
324,470
392,300
27,843
1,417,262
121,152
117,112
236,007
550,573
28,700
11,731,626
(28,700)
(28,700)

$ 11,495,483

$ 12,738,097

$ 11,702,926

2,994,041
30,676
3,024,717

1,305,150
464,319
1,769,469

4,075,490
414,884
4,490,374

$

$

$

$
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7,715,664
308,854
365,955
25,979
1,146,190
115,840
101,440
147,293
25,000
1,743
9,953,958
(1,743)
(1,743)

$ 6,927,745
261,421
359,394
21,960
920,352
112,425
100,761
46,631
876
8,751,565

$ 5,136,644
287,990
359,010
22,339
804,658
112,697
90,861
12,461
1,656
6,828,316

(876)
(876)

$

9,952,215

$ 8,750,689

$

1,046,750
213,675
1,260,425

1,411,579
78,469
$ 1,490,048

$

(1,656)
(1,656)
$ 6,826,660

$

$

(5,429,472)
(106,954)

(5,221,450)
(77,069)

(4,929,974)
(45,237)

(5,259,436) $ (5,536,426) $ (5,298,519) $ (4,975,211)

4,327,260
233,106
355,571
18,245
659,528
116,939
89,884
8,247
12,292
1,758
5,822,830

$ 3,919,138
207,301
386,539
17,925
524,366
107,117
90,662
10,168
17,760
1,678
5,282,654

(1,758)
(1,758)
$

5,821,072

(354,032)
88,727
(265,305) $

521,851
39,785
561,636

$ 3,470,153 $ 3,573,617
178,879
184,041
387,487
492,034
16,378
17,097
441,992
388,956
105,967
94,240
87,316
95,011
22,925
16,180
(31,689)
(5,670)
1,688
1,278
4,681,096
4,856,784

(1,678)
(1,678)
$ 5,280,976

$

(1,688)
(1,688)
$ 4,679,408

(146,818)
(108,632)
(255,450) $

(1,278)
(1,278)
$ 4,855,506

(540,354)
(78,757)
(619,111) $

(73,190)
(46,515)
(119,705)

DRAFT
Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
Schedule 3
Fiscal Year
2020
General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total General Fund
All Other Governmental Funds
Unreserved, reported in special revenue funds:
Affordable Housing Fund
Equipment Replacement
Conservation Trust
Law Enforcement
Capital Projects
Nonspendable, Law Enforcement Fund
Restricted, Conservation Trust Fund
Committed, reported in:
Affordable Housing
Open Space Fund
Transit and Trails
Special Projects Fund
Unassigned, reported in:
Law Enforcement Fund
Open Space Fund
Transit and Trails Fund
Total All Other Governmental Funds

$

2019

623,000
7,871,624

$

2018

199,607
806,000
6,600,137

$

2017

11,975
771,000
7,349,003

$

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

702,000
6,137,487

$

350,988
125,000
5,801,984

$

227,183
17,483
125,000
5,666,000

$

273,437
34,264
125,000
3,412,962

$

273,437
143,766
100,000
2,982,086

$

3,669
273,437
413,000
75,000
5,503,155

$

4,209
273,437
413,000
50,000
5,844,420

$

6,277,972

$ 6,035,666

$

3,845,663

$

3,499,289

$

6,268,261

$

6,585,066

$ 8,494,624

$ 7,605,744

$ 8,131,978

$ 6,839,487

38,974

33,352

26,766

21,115

16,167

10,837

22,873
6,350

20,173
1,831

20,173
6,072

19,798
12,052

1,548,409
203,712
2,794,056
1,303,857

2,079,779
171,503
2,438,066
11,983,562

1,620,554
152,123
2,171,449
1,035,240

2,018,809
100,244
1,299,952
1,027,227

2,198,605
10,042
489,225
7,326,746

1,274,382
366,818

1,175,553
-

1,077,937
-

1,042,927
4,890

994,583
74,394

$ 5,889,008

$ 16,706,262

$ 5,006,132

$ 4,467,347

Note: GASB 54 was implemented in 2011, changing fund balance categories
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$ 10,040,785

(156,169)
$ 1,495,868

(22,873)
$

1,181,903

(20,173)
$

1,079,768

(20,173)
$

1,053,889

(19,798)
$

1,081,029

DRAFT
Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
Schedule 4
Fiscal Year

Revenues
Taxes (1)
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue (2)
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Investment Earnings
Other Income
Donations and Contributions
Total Revenues
Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Economic Development
Community Enhancement
Transit
Affordable Housing
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Issuance Costs
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Lease proceeds
Debt proceeds
Premium on debt issued
Insurance proceeds
Sale of Assets
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Debt Service as a % of Noncapital Expenditures

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

$ 11,263,220
119,813
3,023,714
1,198,161
53,559
127,923
131,453
320,000

$ 12,074,890
135,320
2,358,586
1,247,569
50,413
314,528
356,284
366,479

$ 10,840,618
104,681
2,275,134
1,063,757
62,056
235,412
257,407
320,000

$ 9,717,663
88,898
1,310,194
506,901
66,678
147,269
2,426
320,000

$ 8,642,789
92,721
1,208,668
505,527
46,203
46,626
80,732
320,000

$ 6,753,191
76,241
562,358
281,480
43,832
12,455
15,082
20,000

16,237,843

16,904,069

15,159,065

12,160,029

10,943,266

7,764,639

6,744,139

6,246,318

5,581,578

5,617,874

1,383,284
1,608,099
1,602,348
1,473,965
512,217
2,547,978
284,388
14,950,071

3,917,339
1,587,986
1,468,721
1,827,253
479,000
2,677,390
245,522
4,002,462

1,468,966
1,490,653
1,418,302
1,927,431
462,517
2,599,222
317,029
3,472,906

1,122,938
1,390,071
1,347,175
1,711,456
320,411
2,570,478
398,346
16,748,947

1,047,281
1,286,139
1,109,820
1,400,518
539,661
2,507,622
84,515
2,340,844

973,037
1,148,859
948,188
1,601,269
513,507
483,864
45,857
614,582

954,518
1,132,480
996,389
1,574,314
510,747
1,122,474

977,145
1,179,437
964,887
1,647,291
512,640
3,715,879

837,674
1,061,070
901,993
1,545,570
424,607
51,897
1,081,595

791,558
1,033,406
942,513
1,387,234
435,195
29,792
842,742

1,103,053
924,478
3,000

648,695
627,533
272,536

545,866
676,128
-

430,858
502,972
-

164,650
-

26,392,881

17,754,437

14,379,020

26,543,652

10,481,050

6,329,163

6,290,922

462,216

1,435,476

453,217

(850,368)

2,684,885
(2,573,359)
15,487
99,650

3,949,120
(3,949,120)
100,000
11,010,000
652,155
13,282
248,827

3,496,673
(3,467,973)
375
1,022,154

1,751,628
(1,767,310)
8,645,000
717,380
25,000

1,651,844
(1,669,370)
8,341,300
1,233
-

802,434
(820,748)
1,086,805

12,024,264

1,051,229

9,371,698

8,325,007

1,068,491

$ (9,928,375) $ 11,173,896

$ 1,831,274

$ (5,011,925) $ 8,787,223

$ 2,503,967

17%

9%

13%

(14,383,623)

11%

2%

$

-

(10,155,038)

226,663

780,045

2014

-

2013

5,741,226
82,956
636,453
198,107
45,032
8,241
12,124
20,000

$

-

-

$

8,997,279

(4,708)
448,509

5,194,056
81,562
735,240
137,055
60,254
10,154
7,997
20,000

-

1,090,311
(1,110,419)
15,400

$

2012

$

5,904,406

4,781,341
77,611
534,907
103,493
58,107
16,171
25,644
20,600

5,462,440

(322,828)

155,434

2,329,720
(2,350,994)
29,142

779,624
(800,741)
-

764,080
(781,419)
2,387

(21,117)

(14,952)

(2,743,093) $

(343,945) $

-

-

(1) Detail of Taxes as major component included in Schedule 5.
(2) Intergovernmental Revenue consists mainly of charges for the shared police department with the Town of Fraser, CO which began during 2005 and transit services which began in 2016.
See Notes to the Financial Statements for additional information.
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4,629,224
84,543
587,545
184,724
44,524
22,909
7,509
20,600

(2,750,961)

7,868
$

2011

140,482
-

DRAFT

Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Tax Revenues by Source - Governmental Funds
(Major Component of Revenue Base)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 5
Fiscal Year
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Tax Revenue Source
Sales, Lodging & Transit Tax (1)
Accommodations Tax
Property Tax
Real Estate Transfer Tax
Franchise Tax
Specific Ownership Tax
Other Tax

$ 8,205,076
337,680
470,004
1,962,426
129,825
35,278
122,931

$ 9,338,129
349,652
402,977
1,763,468
130,414
34,567
131,777

$

Total Tax Revenue

$ 11,263,220

$ 12,150,984

2014

2013

2012

2011

8,516,207
324,470
392,300
1,417,262
121,152
27,843
41,384

$ 7,715,664
308,854
365,955
1,146,190
115,840
25,979
39,181

$ 6,927,745
261,421
359,394
920,352
112,425
21,960
39,493

$ 5,136,644
287,990
359,010
804,658
112,697
22,339
29,853

$

4,327,260
233,106
355,571
659,528
116,939
18,245
89,884

$

3,919,138
207,301
386,540
524,366
107,117
17,925
31,669

$

3,470,154
178,878
387,487
441,992
105,967
16,378
28,368

$

3,573,617
184,040
492,034
388,956
94,240
17,097
31,357

$ 10,840,618

$ 9,717,663

$ 8,642,790

$ 6,753,191

$

5,800,533

$

5,194,056

$

4,629,224

$

4,781,341

% Change from Prior Year

-7.3%

12.1%

11.6%

12.4%

28.0%

16.4%

11.7%

12.2%

-3.2%

Percentage of Total Tax Revenues
Sales, Lodging & Transit Tax
Accommodations Tax
Property Tax
Real Estate Transfer Tax
Franchise Tax
Specific Ownership Tax
Other Tax

72.8%
3.0%
4.2%
17.4%
1.2%
0.3%
1.1%

76.9%
2.9%
3.3%
14.5%
1.1%
0.3%
1.1%

78.6%
3.0%
3.6%
13.1%
1.1%
0.3%
0.4%

79.4%
3.2%
3.8%
11.8%
1.2%
0.3%
0.4%

80.2%
3.0%
4.2%
10.6%
1.3%
0.3%
0.5%

76.1%
4.3%
5.3%
11.9%
1.7%
0.3%
0.4%

74.6%
4.0%
6.1%
11.4%
2.0%
0.3%
1.5%

75.5%
4.0%
7.4%
10.1%
2.1%
0.3%
0.6%

75.0%
3.9%
8.4%
9.5%
2.3%
0.4%
0.6%

74.7%
3.8%
10.3%
8.1%
2.0%
0.4%
0.7%

% of Total Tax Revenue

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

% of Total Governmental Fund Revenues

69.4%

71.9%

71.5%

79.9%

79.0%

87.0%

86.0%

83.2%

82.9%

85.1%

(1) A 2% Transit and Trails sales tax was passed by voters in 2015 and took effect on December 1, 2015.
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DRAFT
Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Taxable Sales and Sales & Lodging Tax Collections by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 6
Fiscal Year
2020 (1)
Taxable Sales
Retail
Restaurant & Bar
Lodging & Accommodations
Utilities
Service & Other
Total Taxable Sales
Sales, Lodging, & Transit Tax Collections
Retail
Restaurant & Bar
Lodging & Accommodations
Utilities
Service & Other
Total Sales & Lodging Tax Collections

$

42,435,929
32,510,757
33,768,071
8,300,286
5,024,329

2019 (1)

$

47,123,300
41,825,986
34,965,143
8,661,286
5,821,157

2018 (1)

$

40,720,529
39,885,557
32,446,986
8,263,400
4,978,914

2017 (1)

$

34,545,486
37,310,029
30,885,471
8,159,429
3,735,557

2016 (1)

$

30,258,757
34,788,257
26,181,171
7,999,300
3,474,886

2015 (1)

$

2014

2013

2012

2011

28,898,265
32,986,340
28,456,197
8,064,994
3,545,534

$

26,513,200
28,863,480
23,988,600
8,563,560
3,278,480

$

24,007,200
25,789,660
21,029,680
8,338,940
3,405,480

$

20,158,840
23,539,140
18,331,260
8,238,400
2,713,000

$

20,879,560
24,193,340
18,798,020
8,393,000
2,889,220

$ 122,039,371

$ 138,396,871

$ 126,295,386

$ 114,635,971

$ 102,702,371

$ 101,951,330

$

91,207,320

$

82,570,960

$

72,980,640

$

75,153,140

$

2,970,515
2,275,753
2,363,765
581,020
351,703

$

3,298,631
2,927,819
2,447,560
606,290
407,481

$

2,850,437
2,791,989
2,271,289
578,438
348,524

$

2,418,184
2,611,702
2,161,983
571,160
261,489

$

2,118,113
2,435,178
1,832,682
559,951
243,242

$

1,580,022
1,743,923
1,488,668
420,392
191,629

$

1,325,660
1,443,174
1,199,430
428,178
163,924

$

1,200,360
1,289,483
1,051,484
416,947
170,274

$

1,007,942
1,176,957
916,563
411,920
135,650

$

1,043,978
1,209,667
939,901
419,650
144,461

$

8,542,756

$

9,687,781

$

8,840,677

$

8,024,518

$

7,189,166

$

5,424,634

$

4,560,366

$

4,128,548

$

3,649,032

$

3,757,657

Percentage of Total Sales, Lodging & Transit Tax
Retail
Restaurant & Bar
Lodging & Accommodations
Utilities
Service & Other

34.8%
26.6%
27.7%
6.8%
4.1%

34.0%
30.2%
25.3%
6.3%
4.2%

32.2%
31.6%
25.7%
6.5%
3.9%

30.1%
32.5%
26.9%
7.1%
3.3%

29.5%
33.9%
25.5%
7.8%
3.4%

28.3%
32.4%
27.9%
7.9%
3.5%

29.1%
31.6%
26.3%
9.4%
3.6%

29.1%
31.2%
25.5%
10.1%
4.1%

27.6%
32.3%
25.1%
11.3%
3.7%

27.8%
32.2%
25.0%
11.2%
3.8%

% of Total Sales & Lodging Tax Revenue

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

(1) Sales and lodging tax increase of 2% effective December 1, 2015 for transit and trails.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Direct and Overlapping Sales, Lodging & Accommodations Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 7
Fiscal Year
2020
Taxing Entity
Town of Winter Park
Grand County
State of Colorado
Total Sales, Lodging & Accommodations Tax Rate

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015 (1)

2014

2013

2012

2011

7.0%
1.3%
2.9%

7.0%
1.3%
2.9%

7.0%
1.3%
2.9%

7.0%
1.3%
2.9%

7.0%
1.3%
2.9%

7.0%
1.0%
2.9%

5.0%
1.0%
2.9%

5.0%
1.0%
2.9%

5.0%
1.0%
2.9%

5.0%
1.0%
2.9%

11.2%

11.2%

11.2%

11.2%

11.2%

10.9%

8.9%

8.9%

8.9%

8.9%

(1) Sales and lodging tax increase of 2% effective December 1, 2015 for transit and trails.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 8

Fiscal Year
Ended
December 31
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Vacant
15,524,990
15,734,230
11,042,450
11,595,400
10,967,030
11,487,790
11,404,870
10,800,060
12,845,940
11,911,880

Residential
63,024,750
63,351,210
59,633,110
59,919,810
60,290,120
61,175,240
67,333,800
68,540,970
92,320,550
97,361,280

Commercial
21,249,430
21,058,270
19,798,150
19,729,430
19,929,380
20,319,560
22,820,630
23,644,830
27,195,850
27,219,450

Industrial
-

Agricultural
5,550
5,550
5,910
5,910
7,060
7,060
7,610
7,610
7,990
9,160

Natural
Resources
-

State
Assessed
2,827,240
2,876,630
3,890,860
3,940,030
4,133,670
4,244,370
4,160,910
4,278,170
4,109,530
4,117,640

Total Taxable
Assessed
Value

Total
Direct Tax
Rate

Actual Taxable
Value

102,631,960
103,025,890
94,370,480
95,190,580
95,327,360
97,234,020
105,727,820
107,271,640
136,479,860
140,619,410

3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765

915,207,020
919,137,700
853,077,390
859,358,480
861,503,450
875,852,580
1,050,792,480
1,064,960,030
1,423,596,190
1,491,760,130

Source: State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs, Property Tax Division Annual Report and Grand County Assessor
(1) Tax-Exempt property is netted against the Assessed Value of each category. Separate tax exempt amounts are not available for all years.
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Assessed
Value as a
Percentage
of Actual
11.21%
11.21%
11.06%
11.08%
11.07%
11.10%
10.06%
10.07%
9.59%
9.43%
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 9

Tax Year

Collection
Year

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Total Tax
Levy
492,268
386,589
388,476
355,349
358,421
358,810
366,152
391,019
403,323
469,481

Current Tax
Collections
491,847
386,396
387,280
354,999
358,417
357,796
366,437
392,300
402,808
468,859

Percent of
Levy
Collected

Collections /
Refunds

99.91%
99.95%
99.69%
99.90%
100.00%
99.72%
100.08%
100.33%
99.87%
99.87%

Source: Grand County Treasurer's Office
(1) Property taxes are levied the tax year and are due/collectible in the following year
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187
91
(740)
71
(68)
111
(482)
(1,592)
169
1,145

Total Tax
Collections
492,034
386,487
386,540
355,070
358,349
357,907
365,955
390,708
402,977
470,004

Percent of
Total Tax
Collections
to Levy
99.95%
99.97%
99.50%
99.92%
99.98%
99.75%
99.95%
99.92%
99.91%
100.11%

DRAFT
Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 10
Overlapping

Direct

Fiscal
Year

Town of
Winter Park

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.765
3.699
3.765
3.457

Grand
County
15.155
15.155
15.155
15.155
15.155
15.155
15.155
16.610
15.155
15.155

Grand
County
Water & San. Winter Park
District # 1 Water & San.
(1)
District (2)
13.361
13.286
14.175
14.054
14.054
13.951
13.895
12.698
4.701
3.870

7.151
7.061
4.911
7.082
7.082
7.040
6.984
6.836
8.485
6.356

Fraser
Valley
Recreation
District

East Grand
School
District

6.861
6.761
7.188
7.096
7.096
6.969
6.941
7.351
6.731
5.699

21.269
21.172
21.400
21.927
21.927
22.412
21.938
23.464
21.157
20.857

Grand
County
Library
2.410
2.410
2.410
2.410
2.410
2.410
3.360
3.602
4.602
3.366

Village at
Colorado River
East Grand Winter Park
Water
Fire District Metro Resort Conservation
#4
District (3)
District
6.131
6.121
6.143
6.120
6.120
6.139
6.118
7.561
6.117
6.123

30.000
30.000
30.000
30.000
30.000
30.000
30.000
30.000
30.000
30.000

0.228
0.242
0.254
0.253
0.253
0.243
0.253
0.254
0.256
0.502

Middle Park
Water
Conservancy
District
0.056
0.056
0.056
0.056
0.056
0.055
0.055
0.055
0.055
0.048

Source: State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs, Property Tax Division Annual Report
(1) The Grand County Water & Sanitation District #1 boundary includes Beaver Village, downtown Winter Park, Leland Creek subdivision, and Hi Country Haus and therefore does not
service all areas within the Town of Winter Park. The mill levy is subject to only properties within thier service area.
(2) The Winter Park Water & Sanitation District services Old Town, Winter Park Resort, and the areas directly surrounding the resort and therefore does not service all areas within the
Town of Winter Park. The mill levy is subject to only properties within their service area.
(3) The district boundary is the main village core of the resort including one unit at the Zephyr Mountain Lodge, The Lofts (above the commercial property), village commercial property,
and Fraser Crossing and Founders Point. The mill levy is subject to only properties within the district boundaries.
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Computation of Legal Debt Margin and Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 11
Fiscal Year

Actual Taxable Value

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

$ 1,491,760,130

$ 1,423,596,190

$ 1,064,960,030

$ 1,050,792,480

$ 969,463,643

$ 967,246,880

$ 957,427,140

$ 954,289,430

$ 915,207,020

$ 1,195,559,970

44,752,804

42,707,886

31,948,801

31,523,774

29,083,909

Legal Debt Margin:
Legal Debt Limit (1)
Debt Applicable to Limitation (2)
Legal Bond Debt Limit

$

44,752,804

$

42,707,886

$

31,948,801

$

31,523,774

$

29,083,909

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Debt by Type:
Bonds Payable

-

Certificates of Participation
Note Payable
Debt Per Capita (3)

$

Debt Per Capita Income (4)

-

26,539,764

27,671,364

46,297

79,053

24,685

$

47.57%

Governmental Activities Outstanding Debt

$

Business-Type Activities Outstanding Debt

$

26,586,061
-

25,766

16,698,261

$

16,087

$

27,750,417
-

16,698,261

$

-

8,341,300

$

34.96%
$

-

17,272,822

-

51.69%
$

-

16,737

$

40.17%
$

17,272,822

$

-

8,671

$

21.17%
$

8,341,300

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

0%

-

$

0%

-

$

0%

-

$

0%

0%

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Note: See additional discussion in the Notes to the Financial Statements on page B 14 through B 16.

(1) Per Colorado Revised Statutes, Section 31-15-302, legal debt margin is limited to 3% of actual taxable value, excepting general obligation debt serviced by enterprise funds and revenue bonds. Under the Town's charter Section 10.11,
there is no limitation on the amount of bonds or other securities the Town may issue. Section 10.11 Limitations; Sale and Redemption of Obligations - There shall be no limitation on the amount of bonds or other securities the Town may
issue, except as may be stated in the documents pertaining thereto, provided that the notice of any election or any ordinance to authorize the creation of any debt pledging Town tax revenues shall contain the following information: (a) The
amount of the total valuation for assessment of the taxable property within the Town as shown by the last assessment thereof; (b) The amount of the Town's total bonds outstanding and unrefunded as of the date of the resolution calling an
election or ordinance authorizing the bonds and the amount thereof assuming the issuance of the proposed bonds; (c) With regard to the general obligation bonds, the percentage of debt to assessed valuation, and with regard to bonds
pledging tax revenues other than from ad valorem taxes, the percentage of debt to the previous year's revenue from the particular tax source pledged; (d) Bond rating information, if any; (e) A statement of purpose for incurring the particular
indebtedness. (f) All obligations issued pursuant to the provisions of this Charter shall be sold at public or private sale to the best advantage of the Town at, above or below par. Bonds may contain provisions for redemption prior to maturity
with or without the payment of a premium. The maximum premium payable on prior redemption of any general obligation bonds may, but need not be specified in the bond question approved by the qualified electors.
(2) The Town had no outstanding debt for the six year period up to 2015. Certificates of Participation are not included in the debt limitation.
(3) Population data can be found in the Demographic and Economic Statistics Schedule 13.
(4) Income information detailed on Schedule 13
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
December 31, 2020
Schedule 12

Jurisdiction
Direct Debt (Town of Winter Park, CO):
2016A Certificates of Participation
2016B Certificates of Participation
2017 Certificates of Participation
2019 Certificates of Participation
Premium on 2017 Certificates of Participation
Premium on 2019 Certificates of Participation
Note Payable
Total Direct Debt

Debt
Outstanding (1)

$

$

Overlapping Debt:
East Grand School District No. 2
Fraser Valley Metropolitan Rec District
Grand County Water & Sanitation District
Winter Park Water & Sanitation District
Total Overlapping Debt
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

$

Estimated
Percentage
Applicable

2,996,763
3,554,768
8,170,000
10,600,000
631,294
586,939
46,297
26,586,061

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

17,325,000
13,595,000
182,800
31,102,800

18%
34%
100%
100%

57,688,861

Estimated Share
of Overlapping
Debt (2)

$

$

2,996,763
3,554,768
8,170,000
10,600,000
631,294
586,939
46,297
26,586,061

3,118,500
4,622,300
182,800
7,923,600
$

34,509,661

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by Grand County Assessor's
Office. Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental/district unit.
(1) Debt outstanding represents net general obligation debt only as provided by each jurisdiction.
(2) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of taxable property within the Town to assessed valuation of the
overlapping unit.

E12

DRAFT

Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 13

Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Winter Park
Population

Grand
County
Population

(1)

(1)

972
933
929
963
944
962
1,032
1,038
1,077
*

14,548
14,195
14,289
14,790
14,505
14,615
15,039
15,501
15,718
*

Grand County
Personal
Income (2)

Grand
County Per
Capita
Income (2)

560,163,000
587,339,000
612,391,000
562,108,000
598,681,000
625,317,000
704,968,000
772,647,345
815,622,738
*

39,104
41,122
42,858
38,643
40,963
41,667
46,013
49,845
51,891
*

(1) State of Colorado, Department of Local Affairs, Demography Office.
(2) US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.
(3) US Census Bureau, American Community Survey
(4) Colorado Department of Education
* Not available at time of publication
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Median Age

East Grand
School
Enrollment

(3)

(4)

36.2
36.8
39.1
41.1
38.7
39.6
42.3
37.7
43.5
*

1,273
1,245
1,264
1,299
1,304
1,243
1,301
1,358
1,354
1,271

Unemployment
Rate (1)
8.3%
7.3%
5.9%
3.9%
2.9%
2.3%
2.4%
2.6%
2.1%
6.2%

DRAFT

Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Top Employers by Area in County
Year Ended December 31, 2020
Schedule 14

Employer

Area

Winter Park Resort
East Grand School District
Devils Thumb Ranch & Resort
Middle Park Medical Center
Intrawest Resort Holdings, Inc.
Grand County Government
Freeport McMoran Inc.
City Market
Mountain Parks Electric
U.S. Forest Service

Winter Park
Fraser & Granby, CO
Winter Park Area
Granby, CO
Winter Park
Hot Sulphur Springs, CO
Grand County
Granby, CO
Granby, CO
Grand County

Source: Northwest Colorado Council of Governments. Actual employee numbers are unavailable
for the ten year period.
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Total Employment by Industry - Grand County
Ten Year Analysis
Schedule 15

2009-2019
NAICS Industry
Construction
Retail & Wholesale Trade
Real Estate and Rental/Leasing
Arts, Entertainment, & Recreation
Accommodation and Food Service
Agriculture
Mining
Utilities
Manufacturing
Transportation
Information
Professional and business services
Health services
Education
Government
Other Industries
Total Employment

2019

2014

2009

1,128
938
800
1,287
2,069
332
35
66
130
152
40
609
317
57
1,479
863

953
828
655
1,203
1,850
343
20
66
151
192
63
533
219
37
1,399
817

1,136
921
708
1,068
1,614
305
28
82
134
155
42
586
278
41
1,326
790

10,302

9,329

9,214

Total
(8)
17
92
219
455
27
7
(16)
(4)
(3)
(2)
23
39
16
153
73
1,088

Source: Colorado Department of Local Affairs - Demographer
Note: Information for 2020 was unavailable at time of publication.
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Annual Chg.
(1)
2
9
22
46
3
1
(2)
(0)
(0)
(0)
2
4
2
15
7
109

2014-2019
Annual %

Total

-0.1%
0.2%
1.3%
2.1%
2.8%
0.9%
2.5%
-2.0%
-0.3%
-0.2%
-0.5%
0.4%
1.4%
3.9%
1.2%
0.9%

175
110
145
84
219
(11)
15
(21)
(40)
(23)
76
98
20
80
46

1.2%

973

Annual Chg.
35
22
29
17
44
(2)
3
(4)
(8)
(5)
15
20
4
16
9
195

Annual %
3.7%
2.7%
4.4%
1.4%
2.4%
-0.6%
15.0%
0.0%
-2.8%
-4.2%
-7.3%
2.9%
8.9%
10.8%
1.1%
1.1%
2.1%
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Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Commercial and Residential Activity
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 16

Commercial

Year

Number of
Permits

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

22
35
33
20
38
35
35
36
65
37

Residential (1)

Valuation

Number of
Permits

204,503
759,094
892,364
2,080,188
1,481,106
3,343,924
2,770,634
1,741,014
3,338,294
9,344,761

39
60
55
56
64
69
99
57
124
148

(1) Includes Multi-family
Source: Town of Winter Park Building Department
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Valuation
1,285,879
1,456,823
2,683,624
5,528,222
8,040,327
7,502,584
12,397,202
18,450,360
17,000,439
17,690,143

Total

Number of
Permits
61
95
88
76
102
104
134
93
189
185

Valuation
1,490,382
2,215,917
3,575,988
7,608,410
9,521,433
10,846,508
15,167,836
20,191,374
20,338,733
27,034,904

DRAFT
Town of Winter Park, Colorado
Town Government Full-Time Equivalency by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 17

Function/Program
General Government:
Town Manager
Town Clerk
Finance
Community Development

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

1.00
1.00
3.00
3.25

1.00
1.00
3.00
3.25

1.00
1.00
3.00
3.25

1.00
1.00
2.00
2.50

1.00
1.50
1.50
1.50

1.00
1.25
1.75
1.50

1.00
1.50
2.00
1.50

1.00
2.00
2.00
1.50

1.00
2.00
2.00
1.50

1.00
2.00
2.00
1.50

Public Safety & Municipal Court

11.00

11.00

11.50

11.50

10.00

9.00

10.00

10.00

9.00

9.00

Public Works, Parks, Trails & Forestry

16.00

16.00

19.00

18.75

16.50

16.00

16.00

16.00

16.00

16.00

Transit Services

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

-

-

-

-

-

Building & Enforcement

2.75

2.75

2.75

2.50

2.50

1.75

2.00

2.50

2.50

2.50

39.00

39.00

42.50

40.25

35.50

32.25

34.00

35.00

34.00

34.00

Total

Note: General Government full-time equivalency does not include the Town Council (7 members)
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Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 18

Function/Program
General Government:
Council Meetings
Business Licenses
Elections
Active Sales Tax Accounts
Active Liquor Licenses

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

27
1,949
2
1,572
51

29
1,778
1,431
50

28
1,543
1
1,215
46

26
1,523
1,429
43

27
1,517
1
1,490
43

25
1,483
1
1,267
45

27
1,402
1
1,258
45

23
1,435
1,203
45

24
1,428
1
1,096
43

25
1,426
1,054
40

19
24
7

29
30
8

16
24
9

15
21
7

18
8
14

14
10
7

6
9
4

8
5
3

10
1
1

5
4
2

Public Safety & Municipal Court:
Court Cases
Part 1 Crimes
Other Incidents
Traffic Crashes

88
112
609
126

142
110
568
159

156
124
609
156

125
97
611
155

120
124
435
145

82
101
458
147

130
87
470
150

136
85
482
125

126
83
463
118

131
78
477
127

Public Works, Parks & Forestry
Road Lane Miles Maintained
Miles of Trails Maintained
Park Acres Maintained

28
16
27

28
16
27

28
15
27

28
14
27

28
13
27

28
12
27

28
10
27

28
8
27

26
5
24

26
3
24

357

395

438

357

211

172

194

268

247

242

Planning & Development:
Development Reviews
SF/Duplex Design Reviews
Multi-Family/Commercial Design Projects

Building:
Permits Issued

Source: Various departments within the Town.
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Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 19

Function/Program
Public Safety:
Stations
Patrol Units
Public Works, Parks & Forestry
Miles of Streets
Miles of Maintained Trails
Parks
Skateboard Parks
Basketball Courts
Tennis Courts
Playgrounds
Traffic Lights
Street Lights
Parking Garage
Attainable/Workforce Housing
Single Family Homes
Workforce Apartments

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

1
10

1
10

1
10

1
10

1
9

1
9

1
9

1
9

1
9

1
9

28
16
3
1
1
1
2
5
227
2

28
16
3
1
1
1
2
5
227
2

28
15
3
1
1
1
2
5
227
2

28
14
3
1
1
1
2
5
216
2

28
13
3
1
1
1
2
5
216
1

28
12
3
1
1
1
2
5
216
1

28
10
3
1
1
1
2
5
216
1

28
9
3
1
1
1
2
5
211
1

26
5
3
1
1
1
2
4
209
1

26
3
3
1
1
1
2
4
209
1

10
38

10
38

10
38

10
38

Source: Various departments within the Town.
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10
-

10
-

10
-

10
-

10
-

10
-

COMPLIANCE SECTION
This section includes reporting for Federal or State programs. Information included in this section is
audited by the Town’s independent auditors.

Local Highway Finance Report – This report is issued to the State of Colorado to present the Town’s
revenues and expenses for roads, bridges and streets.

Financial Planning 02/01
Form # 350-050-36

The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually.

City or County:
LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT
This Information From The Records Of (example - City of _ or County of _Prepared By:
Phone:

Town of Winter Park, CO

YEAR ENDING :
December 2020
Lizbeth Lemley
970-726-8081 ext. 204

I. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE
A.

ITEM
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Total receipts available
Minus amount used for collection expenses
Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
Minus amount used for mass transit
Remainder used for highway purposes

Local
Motor-Fuel
Taxes

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM
A. Receipts from local sources:
1. Local highway-user taxes
a. Motor Fuel (from Item I.A.5.)
b. Motor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)
c. Total (a.+b.)
2. General fund appropriations
3. Other local imposts (from page 2)
4. Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2)
5. Transfers from toll facilities
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:
a. Bonds - Original Issues
b. Bonds - Refunding Issues
c. Notes
d. Total (a. + b. + c.)
7. Total (1 through 6)
B. Private Contributions
C. Receipts from State government
(from page 2)
D. Receipts from Federal Government
(from page 2)
E. Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D)

AMOUNT

2,440,922
35,278
40,103

0
2,516,303
51,585
0
2,567,888

B.
Local
Motor-Vehicle
Taxes

C. Receipts from
State HighwayUser Taxes

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD
AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM
AMOUNT
A. Local highway disbursements:
1. Capital outlay (from page 2)
676,308
2. Maintenance:
665,000
3. Road and street services:
a. Traffic control operations
b. Snow and ice removal
612,008
c. Other
108,269
d. Total (a. through c.)
720,277
4. General administration & miscellaneous
506,303
5. Highway law enforcement and safety
6. Total (1 through 5)
2,567,888
B. Debt service on local obligations:
1. Bonds:
a. Interest
b. Redemption
c. Total (a. + b.)
0
2. Notes:
a. Interest
b. Redemption
c. Total (a. + b.)
0
3. Total (1.c + 2.c)
0
C. Payments to State for highways
D. Payments to toll facilities
E. Total disbursements (A.6 + B.3 + C + D)
2,567,888

IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)
Opening Debt
Amount Issued

A. Bonds (Total)
1. Bonds (Refunding Portion)
B. Notes (Total)

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway
Administration

Redemptions

Closing Debt

0
0

V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE

Notes and Comments:

A. Beginning Balance
0

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)

B. Total Receipts C. Total Disbursements D. Ending Balance
2,567,888
2,567,888
0

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
1

E. Reconciliation

(Next Page)

Blank536-CY19 (1)

(0)

STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):
December 2020

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL
ITEM
A.3. Other local imposts:
a. Property Taxes and Assessments
b. Other local imposts:
1. Sales Taxes
2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees
3. Liens
4. Licenses
5. Specific Ownership &/or Other
6. Total (1. through 5.)
c. Total (a. + b.)

ITEM
A.4. Miscellaneous local receipts:
a. Interest on investments
b. Traffic Fines & Penalities
c. Parking Garage Fees
d. Parking Meter Fees
e. Sale of Surplus Property
f. Charges for Services
35,278
g. Other Misc. Receipts
35,278
h. Other
35,278
i. Total (a. through h.)

AMOUNT

AMOUNT
40,103

40,103

(Carry forward to page 1)

ITEM
C. Receipts from State Government
1. Highway-user taxes
2. State general funds
3. Other State funds:
a. State bond proceeds
b. Project Match
c. Motor Vehicle Registrations
d. Other (Specify) - DOLA Grant
e. Other (Specify)
f. Total (a. through e.)
4. Total (1. + 2. + 3.f)

AMOUNT
44,105

7,480
7,480
51,585

(Carry forward to page 1)

ITEM
D. Receipts from Federal Government
1. FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)
2. Other Federal agencies:
a. Forest Service
b. FEMA
c. HUD
d. Federal Transit Admin
e. U.S. Corps of Engineers
f. Other Federal
g. Total (a. through f.)
3. Total (1. + 2.g)

AMOUNT

0
(Carry forward to page 1)

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

A.1. Capital outlay:
a. Right-Of-Way Costs
b. Engineering Costs
c. Construction:
(1). New Facilities
(2). Capacity Improvements
(3). System Preservation
(4). System Enhancement & Operation
(5). Total Construction (1) + (2) + (3) + (4)
d. Total Capital Outlay (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5)

ON NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(a)

0
0

OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(b)

TOTAL
(c)

6,926

0
6,926

475,577
193,805
0
669,382
676,308

0
475,577
193,805
0
669,382
676,308
(Carry forward to page 1)

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
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TOWN OF WINTER PARK
TOWN COUNCIL
July 6, 2021
SPECIAL EVENT PERMITS –PUBLIC HEARING
Applicants:

1. Shining Stars, 2. Chris Michalowski, 3. Grand County Blues Society 4. Radiate Live Events, 5. Roll
Massif, 6. Winter Park Resort, 7. Winter Park Resort

Staff Contact:

Dani Jardee, Town Clerk

Event Description:
1. Shining Stars Foundation will host their annual half marathon and 5K on July 31st, 2021, in the Town of Fraser with
race route utilizing Town of Winter Park roads.
2. Chris Michalowski and Stoke Factory Mountain Sports will host an Adventure Film Festival Fundraiser at the
Rendezvous Event Center at Hideaway Park Stage on August 6, 2021, from 6-10 p.m.
3. Grand County Blues Society will have their Annual Blues Festival Concert at Rendezvous Event Center at Hideaway
Park on August 14, 2021, from 10:30 a.m. to 6:30 p.m.
4. Radiate Live Events and Chamber of Commerce will host Winter Park’s Annual Beer Fest at Rendezvous Event Center
at Hideaway Park on August 7, 2021.
5. Roll Massif and Chamber of Commerce will host the Crooked Gravel/Sunrise to Sunset Mountain Bike Race at the
Rendezvous Event Center at Hideaway Park and the Rendezvous Trail System on July 23 & 24, 2021.
6. Winter Park Resort is hosting USA Cycling Mountain Bike National Championships at Winter Park Resort from July 5July 11, 2021.
7. Winter Park Resort will be having a Beer Festival at Winter Park Resort on July 24, 2021, from noon – 5 p.m.
Staff Comments: The Special Event Permits applications were received, reviewed, and approved by Town staff.
Notification of the Public Hearings on the permits was published in the Sky Hi News on May 26, June 2, June 16, and
June 25 and in the Middle Park Times on May 27, June 3, June 17, and July 1. No comments have been received.
Attachments: Applications, Operations Plans, Diagrams, Certificates of Good Standing
Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends the Town Council grant the Special Events Permits.

TOWN OF WINTER PARK
TOWN COUNCIL
July 6, 2021
NEW HOTEL & RESTAURANT LICENSE – PUBLIC HEARING
Applicant:

Grayson Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Coffee and Tea Market

Initiated By:

Laura Gray and Garrett Olson

Action Proposed:

Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider the Application for new Hotel &
Restaurant Liquor License

Presented By:

Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk

Introduction: Grayson Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Coffee and Tea Market has applied for a new Hotel &
Restaurant Liquor License. The Applicant’s business is located at 33 Parsenn Road (the old Coffee and
Tea location at Balcony House at Winter Park Resort). The application has been reviewed and is in order.
Neighborhood Boundaries: The town limits of Winter Park are the neighborhood boundaries.
Financial Details: The respective license fees have been paid.
Background Check: The application was turned over to the Fraser/Winter Park Police Department for
investigation; please see attached memo from Fraser/Winter Park Police Department.
Legal Requirements:
Posting:
Publication:

Notice of Hearing was posted at 33 Parsenn Rd. – June 3, 2021
Notice of Hearing was published in the Sky Hi News – June 2, 2021
Notice of Hearing was published in the Middle Park Times – June 3, 2021

Conflicts and/or Complications: Are the needs of the neighborhood currently being met by the existing
liquor licenses and are there any concerns regarding the moral character of the applicants.
Attachments: Exhibit A – Application, Diagram, Questionnaire, Individual History Record; Exhibit B –
Financial and Food Service Affidavit; Exhibit C – Petition and Affidavit of Circulator; Exhibit D – Articles of
Organization, Certificate of Good Standing and LLC Operating Agreement; Exhibit E – Fraser/Winter Park
Police Department Memo

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends the Town Council approve the Application with this motion:
I move to approve the Application for New Hotel & Restaurant Liquor License as requested by Grayson
Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Coffee and Tea Market based upon the following findings of fact:
1.
2.

The adult inhabitants of the neighborhood desire that the Application be granted; and
The Application does not conflict with the reasonable requirements of the
neighborhood.

and I direct the Town Attorney to prepare written findings consistent with the Town Council's
discussion, findings, and decision.
In the event the Town Council does not see fit to grant the Application, following is an alternative
motion:
I move to deny the Application for New Hotel & Restaurant License as requested by Grayson Enterprises,
LLC d/b/a Coffee and Tea Market, based upon the following findings of fact:
1.
2.

The adult inhabitants of the neighborhood do not desire that the Application be
granted; AND/OR
The Application conflicts with the reasonable requirements of the neighborhood.

and I direct the Town Attorney to prepare written findings consistent with the Town Council's
discussion, findings, and decision.

TO

Mayor and City Council

FROM

Keith Riesberg, Town Manager

CC
DATE

May 28, 2021

RE

Ordinance amending Town code re: marijuana regulations

Please note that one change has occurred since the first reading, in section
3-7-5(G), the language now reflects a phase II application fee will apply.
Background
In April, 2020 the voters of Winter Park approved the levying of a tax on marijuana sales
within the community. The Town has worked over the past year to develop regulations
governing the licensing and operation of retail and medical marijuana dispensaries in
addition to other associated marijuana regulations. The proposed regulations were
discussed with the Town Council during several workshops over the past year with much
public comment and input being received. An overview of the ordinance and the
proposed regulations is provided below.
1. Adds a section to the Town Code to implement the sales tax of 5% on all sales of
Analysis
regulated marijuana and regulated marijuana products. One half of the revenues
The ordinances
as drafted
for the
Council’s
consideration
theThe
following:
shall be used
for mental
health
initiatives
within thedoes
Town.
other half of the funds
will be used for general municipal purposes.
2. The ordinance adopts the definitions and provisions into Town Code for the
regulation of marijuana and the licensing of businesses.
3. Establishes two types of permitted business licenses – medical marijuana center and
retail marijuana store. The ordinance does allow for dual licenses, meaning a store
could hold both types of licenses.
4. Outlines the local licensing authority of the Town. The Town Council shall serve as
the local licensing authority for regulated marijuana business license applications
and changes in ownership or modifications of existing licenses. The Municipal Court
will serve as the local licensing authority for all disciplinary actions associated with
the marijuana regulations.
5. Establishes the process to apply for a license to operate a regulated marijuana
business in Winter Park. Licenses are valid for one year and may be renewed

annually. The ordinance establishes the criteria for an entity to receive and hold a
license from the Town. The ordinance authorizes the establishment of fees to be set
by resolution.
6. The ordinance creates the potential for a licensed medical marijuana center to
deliver medical marijuana to private residences. Deliveries are limited to Grand
County. Delivery of retail marijuana and retail marijuana products is prohibited. The
ordinance establishes the criteria for delivery and a surcharge to be levied on each
delivery.
7. The ordinance spells out the operational requirements for regulated marijuana
businesses. These requirements include:
a. Limits the storage, display, sales or distribution to areas not visible from the
exterior of the licensed premises.
b. Limiting hours of operation to 8 am through 10 pm.
c. Limiting retail sales to persons 21 years of age or older in quantities
permitted by the state law.
d. Establishing guidance for signage required to be posted on the premises;
e. Establishing security measures to be taken by each business.
f. Other regulations as spelled out by state law.
8. Establishes regulations and limitations for signage and advertising by regulated
marijuana businesses. The maximum sign area for any regulated business shall be
one-half of the sign area permitted under the Town Code.
9. Establishes districts within the Town where marijuana businesses can locate and
limits the number of licenses permitted in each district. The Town shall have two
districts – the old town district, limited to one regulated business, and the downtown
district, limited to two regulated businesses. Both districts are within the D-C and C-1
zoning districts. The ordinance allows a regulated marijuana business operating in
good standing to be annexed and not count toward the limit on the licenses.
Businesses cannot be located within 500’ of another regulated marijuana business
and cannot exceed 3,000 sf in area.
10. Establishes that licenses will be awarded by a lottery that is a random drawing from
a pool of qualified applicants. Applications for licenses would be accepted starting 30
days after the effective date of the ordinance for a period of 60 days. The drawing to
award the licenses would occur after that.
11. The ordinance outlines criteria for the inspection of regulated marijuana records and
premises.
12. Establishes acts that would be unlawful, including:
a. Employing persons under the age of 21;

b. Allowing marijuana to be consumed on site;
c. Selling marijuana to persons under 21;
d. Selling medical marijuana to non-patients;
e. Permit the consumption or sale of alcohol on site;
13. Establishes regulations pertaining to changes in ownership or management of the
license business.
14. Requires reporting requirements to the Winter Park Police Department for various
acts.
15. Amends the Town zoning regulations to establish Regulated marijuana businesses
as a special use in the D-C and C-1 zoning districts. In addition to licensing
requirements, the special use permit process will apply to prospective businesses.
Staff will be prepared to speak in detail regarding the various regulations and procedures
outlined in the ordinance.
Because the ordinance does amend the Town’s zoning regulations, the proposed
ordinance was submitted to the Planning Commission for their review and consideration.
The Planning Commission considered the proposed ordinance only from a land-use
regulation point of view. After consideration, the Planning Commission forwarded a
favorable recommendation of the ordinance land-use amendments. The Planning
Commission did not consider or discuss the other policy decisions within the proposed
ordinance.
Recommendation
The adoption of the ordinance amending the Town Code regulation of marijuana in Winter
Park is a policy decision to be made by the Town Council. The Planning Commission
reviewed the ordinance from a land-use component and supports the recommended landuse regulations outlined within the proposed ordinance.
Should the Town Council wish to approve the ordinance amending the Town Code
regarding the regulation of marijuana in Winter Park, the following motion should be made:
I move to approve Ordinance 559 amending the Town Code regarding the regulation of
marijuana in Winter Park as presented.
Should the Town Council wish to deny the proposed ordinance, the following motion should
be made:
I move to deny Ordinance 559 amending the Town Code regarding the regulation of
marijuana in Winter Park as presented.

If the ordinance is not adopted, the regulations pertaining to marijuana as currently outlined
in Town Code would continue to apply.
Should you have any questions or need additional information regarding this matter, please
contact me.

TOWN OF WINTER PARK
ORDINANCE NO. 559
SERIES OF 2021
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF WINTER PARK AMENDING
CHAPTER 2 OF TITLE 3 OF THE WINTER PARK TOWN CODE TO
IMPLEMENT THE VOTER APPROVED REGULATED MARIJUANA
SALES TAX, REPEALING CHAPTER 6 OF TITLE 3 PROHIBITING
MEDICAL
MARIJUANA
BUSINESSES,
REPEALING
AND
REENACTING CHAPTER 7 OF TITLE 3 REGARDING REGULATED
MARIJUANA BUSINESSES, REPEALING AND REENACTING
SECTIONS 7-3-19 AND 7-3-21 REGARDING MEDICAL AND RETAIL
MARIJUANA
ESTABLISHMENTS,
AND
REPEALING
AND
REENACTING SECTIONS 7-5B-2(B) AND 7-5D-2(B) OF THE WINTER
PARK TOWN CODE TO ALLOW FOR REGULATED MARIJUANA
BUSINESSES IN SPECIFIED ZONE DISTRICTS BY SPECIAL USE
PERMIT
WHEREAS on November 6, 2012, the voters of the State of Colorado approved Amendment
64. Amendment 64 added § 16 of Chapter 18 to the Colorado Constitution, and legalized the
possession, use, display, purchase, transport, transfer, and consumption of marijuana accessories or
one ounce or less of marijuana by persons twenty-one (21) years of age or older within the State of
Colorado;
WHEREAS, by Ord. No. 441 in 2010 and by Ord. No. 474 in 2013, the Town Council
adopted a prohibition against medical and retail marijuana businesses in Town;
WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to amend the Winter Park Town Code to allow for
and regulate a limited number of regulated marijuana businesses in the Town;
WHEREAS, the Town Council finds and determines that, by requiring that regulated
marijuana businesses be operated in a manner that minimizes potential health and safety risks, it
mitigates the negative impacts that regulated marijuana businesses might have on surrounding
properties and persons;
WHEREAS, the Town Council finds and determines that through this Ordinance, it intends
to establish a nondiscriminatory mechanism by which the Town can permit and control, through
appropriate regulation, the location and operation of a limited number of regulated marijuana
businesses within the Town;
WHEREAS, at the regular municipal election held on November 3, 2020, the Town Council
submitted, and the voters approved, a ballot issue regarding the imposition of a five percent (5%) tax
on the sale of regulated marijuana and regulated marijuana products;
WHEREAS, after a thoughtful drafting process, the Town desires to implement a licensing
process and the tax approved at the election.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR THE
TOWN OF WINTER PARK, COLORADO, THAT:
1
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Section 1.
Section 3-2-3 of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby amended by the
addition of the following new Subsection E:
E.
Marijuana Sales Tax: In addition to the taxes set forth in Subsections B and D
hereof, there is hereby imposed on all sales of regulated marijuana and regulated marijuana
products a tax equal to five percent (5%) of the gross receipts. One-half of the revenues
derived from such tax shall be used exclusively to promote mental health efforts in the Town.
The other one-half the revenues derived from such tax shall be used for general municipal
purposes.
Section 2.
Section 3-2-5 of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby amended by the
addition of the following new definitions, to be inserted in alphabetical order:
REGULATED MARIJUANA: Medical marijuana and retail marijuana.
REGULATED MARIJUANA PRODUCTS: Medical marijuana products and retail marijuana
products, including without limitation marijuana concentrate.
Section 3.
entirety.

Chapter 6 of Title 3 of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby repealed in its

Section 4.
Chapter 7 of Title 3 of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby repealed in its
entirety and reenacted to read as follows:
CHAPTER 7 - REGULATED MARIJUANA BUSINESSES
3-7-1: AUTHORITY:
The Town Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that it has the power to adopt this
Chapter pursuant to: Chapter XVIII, section 16 of the Colorado Constitution; Colorado
Revised Statutes section 44-10-104(3); Chapter XX of the Colorado Constitution; the Town
of Winter Park Home Rule Charter; and the Local Government Land Use Control Enabling
Act, Chapter 20 of title 29, Colorado Revised Statutes.
3-7-2: DEFINITIONS:
For purposes of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
APPLICANT: A person twenty-one (21) years of age or older who has submitted an application for
a license or renewal of a license issued pursuant to this Chapter. If the applicant is an entity and not
a natural person, applicant shall include all persons who are the members, managers, officers, and
directors of such entity.
COLORADO MARIJUANA CODE: Chapter 10 of Title 44, Colorado Revised Statutes, as may be
amended from time to time.
DUAL OPERATION: A regulated marijuana business that operates as both a licensed medical
marijuana center and a licensed retail marijuana store in accordance with this Chapter.
2
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GOOD CAUSE: For the purpose of denying, refusing to renew, suspending, or revoking a license,
or exercising other discretionary authority granted the local licensing authority, means:
1.
The applicant or licensee has violated, does not meet, or has failed to comply with any
of the terms, requirements, conditions, or provisions of this Chapter, the Colorado Marijuana Code,
its rules, or any applicable state or local law, rule, or regulation;
2.
The local licensing authority has determined that the applicant or licensee's character,
record, or reputation is not satisfactory after consideration of factors, which include without limitation
the following:
a.
The applicant or licensee has knowingly submitted false application(s), made
willful misrepresentations, or knowingly committed fraudulent acts;
b.
The applicant or licensee has a criminal history of crimes of moral turpitude,
which may include without limitation murder, burglary, robbery, arson, kidnapping,
sexual assault, and illegal drugs or narcotics convictions;
c.
The applicant or licensee has had any previous retail or medical marijuana
license denied or revoked as a result of violations of law, rule, or regulation, or a finding
of bad moral character by any licensing authority;
d.
The applicant or licensee has been found to be currently delinquent in the
payment of any state or local taxes;
e.
The applicant or licensee has an established pattern of multiple statutory
violations which resulted in the revocation or denial of any other professional license,
leading to the finding of bad moral character by any licensing authority; or
f.
The licensed premises has been operated in a manner that adversely affects the
public health, safety, or welfare. Evidence to support such a finding, may include
without limitation a continuing pattern of disorderly conduct or drug related criminal
conduct upon or in the immediate vicinity of the premises, continuing pattern of
criminal conduct directly related to or arising from the operation of the regulated
marijuana business, or an ongoing nuisance condition emanating from or caused by
the regulated marijuana business.
3.
The applicant or licensee has failed to comply with any special terms or conditions of
a license, including without limitation those terms and conditions that were established at the time of
issuance of the license and those imposed as a result of any renewal or suspension proceedings held
subsequent to the date of issuance of the license; or
4.
The licensed premises has been operated in a manner that adversely affects the public
health, welfare, or safety of the immediate neighborhood in which the licensed business is located.
Evidence to support such a finding can include without limitation a continuing pattern of disorderly
conduct or continuing pattern of drug-related criminal conduct within the business.
LICENSE: A document issued by the Town officially authorizing an applicant to operate a regulated
marijuana business pursuant to this Chapter.
3
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LICENSEE: The person to whom a license has been issued pursuant to this Chapter.
LICENSED PREMISES: The premises specified in an application for a license under this Chapter,
which is owned or in possession of the licensee and within which the license is authorized to distribute,
store, transport, or sell regulated marijuana or regulated marijuana products in accordance with state
and local law.
MARIJUANA: All parts of the plant of the genus Cannabis whether growing or not, the seeds thereof,
the resin extracted from any part of the plant, and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative,
mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or its resin, including marijuana concentrate, but
excluding industrial hemp, fiber produced from the stalks, oil, or cake made from the seeds of the
plant, sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable of germination, or the weight of any other
ingredient combined with marijuana to prepare topical or oral administrations, food, drink, or other
product.
MARIJUANA CULTIVATION FACILITY: An entity licensed to cultivate, prepare, and package
marijuana and sell marijuana to marijuana businesses, to marijuana product manufacturing facilities,
and to other marijuana cultivation facilities, but not to consumers.
MARIJUANA PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITY: An entity licensed to purchase
marijuana; manufacture, prepare, and package marijuana products; and sell marijuana and marijuana
products to other marijuana product manufacturing facilities and to marijuana businesses, but not to
consumers.
MARIJUANA PRODUCTS: Products that are comprised of marijuana and other ingredients that are
intended for use or consumption, including without limitation edible products, ointments, and
tinctures.
MARIJUANA TESTING FACILITY: An entity licensed by the state to analyze and certify the safety
and potency of marijuana.
MEDICAL MARIJUANA: Marijuana that is grown and sold for a purpose authorized by section 14
of article XVIII of the Colorado Constitution.
MEDICAL MARIJUANA CENTER: A person authorized to be licensed to operate a business as
described in the Colorado Marijuana Code that sells medical marijuana to registered patients or
primary caregivers as defined in section 14 of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution, but is not a
primary caregiver, and which a municipality is authorized to prohibit as a matter of law.
MEDICAL MARIJUANA PRODUCT: A product infused with medical marijuana that is intended
for use or consumption other than by smoking, including but not limited to edible products,
ointments, and tinctures.
PATIENT: Has the meaning provided in section 14(1)(c) of article XVIII of the Colorado
Constitution.
PRIMARY CAREGIVER: Has the meaning provided in section 14(1)(f) of article XVIII of the
Colorado Constitution.
4

6/30/2021
I:\CLERK\COUNCIL\ORDINANCES\559 REVISED FROM TABLED.DOCX

REGULATED MARIJUANA: Medical marijuana and retail marijuana.
REGULATED MARIJUANA PRODUCTS: Medical marijuana products and retail marijuana
products, including without limitation marijuana concentrate.
RETAIL MARIJUANA: Marijuana that is cultivated, manufactured, distributed, or sold by a licensed
retail marijuana store.
RETAIL MARIJUANA PRODUCT: A product infused with retail marijuana that is intended for use
or consumption other than by smoking, including but not limited to edible products, ointments, and
tinctures.
RETAIL MARIJUANA STORE: An entity licensed to purchase marijuana from marijuana
cultivation facilities and marijuana and marijuana products from marijuana product manufacturing
facilities and to sell marijuana and marijuana products to consumers.
STATE LICENSING AUTHORITY: The authority created by the Colorado Department of
Revenue for the purpose of regulating and controlling the licensing of the cultivation, manufacture,
distribution, sale, and testing of regulated marijuana in the State of Colorado pursuant to C.R.S. § 4410-201.
3-7-3: LICENSE REQUIRED:
A.
The Town hereby authorizes the operation of regulated marijuana businesses
in the Town as set forth in this Chapter. It is unlawful for any person to operate a regulated
marijuana business in the Town without first obtaining a license to operate such business in
accordance with the requirements of this Chapter. A separate license is required for each
specific business or business entity and for each geographical location. Such license shall be
kept current at all times, and the failure to maintain a current license shall constitute a violation
of this Section.
B.
The local licensing authority may issue the following regulated marijuana
business licenses:
1.

Medical marijuana center;

2.

Retail marijuana store.

C.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, marijuana cultivation facilities, marijuana
products manufacturers, and marijuana testing facilities remain illegal in the Town. No
marijuana cultivation facility, marijuana products manufacturer, or marijuana testing facility
shall be licensed under this Chapter.
D.
The dual operation of a medical marijuana business with its retail marijuana
equivalent at a single location is permitted so long as both licenses are held by the same owners,
all applicable state and local licenses have been issued, such licenses remain valid and active
for both operations, and both operations are in compliance with all applicable state and local
requirements.
5
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E.
The license requirement set forth in this Chapter are in addition to, and not in
lieu of, any other licensing and permitting requirements imposed by any other federal, state,
or local law, rules, or regulations, including without limitation the Colorado Marijuana Code,
its rules, and any applicable local zoning or building code.
3-7-4: LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY:
A.
The local licensing authority shall have two (2) divisions as follows: the Town
Council shall serve as the local licensing authority for all new regulated marijuana business
license applications, regulated marijuana business renewal applications, applications for change
of manager, applications for transfer of ownership, applications for modification or change of
location of existing licenses, and applications for delivery permits; and the Municipal Court
shall serve as the local licensing authority for all disciplinary actions including without
limitation imposing fines, suspensions, and revocations. The Town Council may delegate any
of its duties under this Section to the Town Clerk, by ordinance.
B.
The local licensing authority shall have the power to promulgate rules and
regulations as are reasonable and necessary to implement and administer the requirements of
this Chapter.
C.
The local licensing authority shall have the authority to deny any application
that does not meet the requirements of the Colorado Marijuana Code, its rules, this Chapter,
and any other applicable state or local law, rule, or regulation. The local licensing authority
shall also have the authority to deny any application that contains any false, misleading, or
incomplete information. Denial of an application for a license shall not be subject to
administrative review, but only to review by a court of competent jurisdiction.
D.
The local licensing authority may, after notice and hearing, suspend, revoke,
or refuse to renew a license for good cause. The local licensing authority is authorized to
adopt rules and procedures governing the conduct of such hearings. No portion of any
application or operating fees previously paid shall be refunded in the event of any suspension
or revocation of a license.
E.
The local licensing authority may, in its discretion, revoke or elect not to renew
any license if it determines that the licensed premises has been inactive, without good cause,
for at least one year.
F.
When making a determination as to character, record, and reputation when
determining whether good cause exists for denying, refusing to renew, suspending or revoking
a license, or exercising other discretionary authority granted the local licensing authority, the
licensing authority shall also consider evidence of rehabilitation. Such evidence may include
without limitation evidence of no criminal record information, educational achievements,
financial solvency, community standing, lack of additional arrests or convictions, or the lack
of parole or probation violations since the date of last conviction.
G.
The local licensing authority shall have the authority to impose such reasonable
terms and conditions on a license as may be necessary to protect the public health, safety, and
welfare, and to obtain compliance with the requirements of this Chapter and applicable law.
6
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3-7-5: APPLICATION; PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2
A.
A person seeking a license issued pursuant to this Chapter shall submit a Phase
1 application to the local licensing authority on forms provided by the Town Clerk. The
purpose of the Phase 1 application is to determine whether an applicant can be entered into
the random selection process in subsection (E) below. At the time of the Phase 1 application,
each applicant shall pay a nonrefundable fee to the Town in an amount to be determined by
the Town by separate Resolution to defray the costs incurred by the Town including without
limitation for inspection, administration, and enforcement. In addition, the applicant shall
present one (1) of the following forms of identification:
1.

An operator's, chauffer's, or similar type of driver's license issued by any state
within the United States or a U.S. Territory;

2.

An identification card, issued by any state for purpose of proving age using
requirements similar to those in C.R.S. §§ 42-2-302 and 42-2-303;

3.

A United States military identification card;

4.

A valid passport; or

5.

An enrollment card issued by the government authority of a federally
recognized tribe located in the State of Colorado.

B.
The applicant shall also provide the following information on a form approved
by, or acceptable to the Town, which information shall be required for the applicant, including
the proposed manager of the regulated marijuana business, and all controlling beneficial
owners, as that term is defined in the Colorado Marijuana Code, of the business or entity that
is applying:
1.

Name, address, and date of birth, demonstrated by one of the forms of
identification listed in subsection (A) above;

2.

Suitable evidence of proof of lawful presence, residence, if applicable, and
good character and reputation that the Town may request;

3.

Proof of the State's finding of suitability to own a regulated marijuana business;

4.

If the applicant is a business entity, information regarding the entity, including
without limitation, the name and address of the entity, identification of all
controlling beneficial owners of the entity, as that term is defined in the
Colorado Marijuana Code, proof of entity's legal status, and proof of the
entity's registration with, or a certificate of good standing from, the Colorado
Secretary of State, as applicable;

C.
The intent of the Phase 1 application process is to provide a fair opportunity
for qualified and eligible persons and entities be selected for a Phase 2 review and to potentially
obtain a license in the Town. As such, the following restrictions apply:
7

6/30/2021
I:\CLERK\COUNCIL\ORDINANCES\559 REVISED FROM TABLED.DOCX

1.

Multiple Phase 1 applications by the same person or entity or applications by
multiple entities with substantially the same ownership are prohibited and will
be rejected. For purposes of this Ordinance "substantially the same
ownership" means that entities share 50% or more ownership in common, as
determined by the Town Clerk.

2.

No person or entity may apply on behalf of another person or entity. The
applicant for a license must be the true applicant and may not be a shell or
strawman for a third party. The selected applicant may not transfer an
application to a third party at any time during the Phase 1 and Phase 2 review
process.

D.
Review of Phase 1 Application: The Town Clerk shall review a Phase 1
application for completeness. The Town Clerk shall reject a Phase 1 application if any of the
information required as part of the application was not submitted. After a review of a Phase
1 application, the Town Clerk shall notify the applicant in writing of the results of the review.
1.

If an application is complete, the Town Clerk shall notify the applicant that
they will be entered into the random selection process in Subsection (E) below.

2.

If an application is rejected, the applicant may appeal the Town Clerk's
decision to the Town Manager by filing an appeal with the Town within ten
(10) days of the notification of the rejection by the Town Clerk. The notice of
appeal shall specify the grounds for the appeal and the relief sought by the
appellant. Upon receipt of an appeal, the Town Manager shall hold a hearing
on the appeal within ten (10) days of the receipt of the appeal. The Town shall
provide at least five (5) days' notice to the appellant of the hearing. The Town
Manager shall make a determination of the appeal within five (5) days of the
hearing and shall notify the appellant of the decision in writing.

E.
Random Selection. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the
Ordinance adopting this Chapter, the Town shall post notice on its website indicating that
Phase 1 applications for medical and retail marijuana store licenses shall be accepted for a sixty
(60) day period, the Town shall review the Phase 1 applications. Once the sixty (60) day period
has ended, the Town Clerk has reviewed all Phase 1 applications, the appeal deadline in
Subsection (D)(2) above has expired, and all appeals, if any, have been decided, the Town may
conduct the random selection of applicants for Phase 2 applications.
F.
Once the maximum number of medical marijuana center and retail marijuana
store licenses have been issued, the Town shall not accept any further applications for such
use until an existing license is either revoked or expires. When the number of licensed medical
marijuana centers and retail marijuana stores is less than the limit provided for in this Chapter
for any reason, including the cessation of operation of a medical marijuana center and retail
marijuana store either by license revocation or expiration, notice shall be posted on the Town's
website as provided for in Subsection E above, and the Town shall process applications as
provided for herein in the two-phase process.
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G.
Phase 2 Application: If the applicant is randomly selected, the applicant shall
pay a nonrefundable Phase 2 application fee to the Town in an amount to be determined by
the Town by separate Resolution and shall provide the following information for a Phase 2
application on a form provided by the Town within ninety (90) days from the date of
notification of the applicant's selection:
1.

The name and complete address of the proposed regulated marijuana business,
including the facilities to be used in furtherance of such business, whether or
not such facilities are, or are planned to be, within the territorial limits of the
Town;

2.

A copy of any deed, lease, contract, or other document reflecting the right of
the applicant to possess and operate the proposed licensed premises for its
proposed purpose along with the conditions of occupancy of the premises. If
the applicant is not the owner of the proposed licensed premises, upon initial
application, a notarized statement from the owner of such property
authorizing the use of the property for a regulated marijuana business;

3.

Evidence of a valid business license for the business;

4.

Evidence of the reasonable requirements of the neighborhood for a regulated
marijuana business and the desires of the adult inhabitants of the
neighborhood related to such business by petitions, remonstrances, or
otherwise. For purposes of this section, the neighborhood is defined as the
residents and business owners or managers within a 1500-foot radius of the
proposed business location.

5.

A "to scale" diagram of the premises showing without limitation a site plan,
building layout, all entry ways and exits to the marijuana store, loading zones
and all areas in which regulated marijuana will be stored or dispensed;

6.

A comprehensive business operation plan for the regulated marijuana business
which shall contain without limitation the following:
i.
ii.
iii.

iv.
7.

A security plan;
A description by category of all products to be sold;
A signage plan that is in compliance with all applicable requirements
of this Chapter and other applicable provisions of the Winter Park
Town Code, as well as the Colorado Marijuana Code and all rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder; and
A plan for the disposal of marijuana.

Proof of application for and receipt of the special use permit in compliance
with Section 7-5B-2 or Section 7-5D-2, as appropriate, of the Winter Park
Town Code.

9

6/30/2021
I:\CLERK\COUNCIL\ORDINANCES\559 REVISED FROM TABLED.DOCX

8.

Any additional information that the local licensing authority reasonably
determines to be necessary in connection with the investigation and review of
the application.

9.

The applicant shall verify the truthfulness of the information required by this
Section by the applicant's signature on the Phase 2 application.

H.
Review of Phase 2 application. Upon receipt, the Town Clerk shall review the
application for completeness and conformity with the requirements of this Chapter. If the
application is incomplete, the Town Clerk shall notify the applicant in writing of the
application's deficiencies within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the application. The applicant
shall have sixty (60) days from the date of notification of any deficiencies by the Town Clerk
to remedy the deficiencies.
1.

If the applicant fails to remedy the deficiencies within the period provided for
in Subsection (E) above, the Town Clerk shall deny the application and notify
the applicant of the denial.

2.

Determination that the application is incomplete or denial of an application
because it is incomplete are appealable to the Town Manager pursuant to
Subsection D-2.

3.

Once the appeal period has run or the appeal has been determined by the
Town Manager, the Town may randomly select another applicant to submit a
Phase 2 application.

I.
Upon receipt of completed Phase 2 application, the Town Clerk shall circulate
the application to all affected departments of the Town to determine whether the application
is in full compliance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, and the local licensing
authority shall schedule a public hearing on the application to be held not less than thirty (30)
days after the date of receipt of the completed Phase 2 application. The local licensing
authority shall cause a notice of such hearing to be posted as follows:
1.

In a conspicuous place upon the proposed licensed premises and published in
a newspaper of general circulation within the Town not less than ten (10) days
prior to the hearing. Such posted notice given by posting shall include a sign
of suitable material, not less than twenty-two (22) inches wide and twenty-six
(26) inches high, composed of letters of not less than one (1) inch in height.
Both the posted and the published notice shall state the type of license applied
for, the date of the hearing, the name and address of the applicant, and other
information as may be required to fully apprise the public of the nature of the
application; and

2.

The applicant shall pay the actual costs of having the Town Clerk's Office mail
a notice via United States mail to landowners within a one-half mile radius of
the proposed licensed premises. Such payment shall be made at least fifteen
(15) days prior to such hearing to cause the Town Clerk's Office to mail such
notice postmarked at least seven (7) days, but no earlier than fourteen (14)
10
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days, prior to the date of the public hearing on the application. The Town
Clerk's Office shall provide the state licensing authority an affidavit of said
mailing.
J.
Not less than five (5) days prior to the date of the public hearing for a new
license, the local licensing authority shall cause its preliminary findings based on its
investigation to be known in writing to the applicant. The local licensing authority shall deny
any application that does not meet the requirements of this Chapter. The local licensing
authority shall also deny any application that contains any false, misleading, or incomplete
information. The local licensing authority shall also deny or refuse to issue a license for good
cause. Denial of an application for a license shall not be subject to further administrative
review but only to review by a court of competent jurisdiction.
K.
Before entering a decision approving or denying the application for a local
license, the local licensing authority may consider, except where this Chapter specifically
provides otherwise, the facts and evidence adduced as a result of its investigation, as well as
any other facts pertinent to the type of license for which application has been made, including
the number, type and availability of regulated marijuana businesses located in or near the
premises under consideration, and any other pertinent matters affecting the qualifications of
the applicant for the conduct of the type of business proposed. In addition, the local licensing
authority shall consider whether approval of the application would result in any of the
following demonstrable negative impacts on the surrounding neighborhood:
1.

An undue concentration of regulated marijuana businesses that would require
the use of additional law enforcement resources;

2.

An increase in traffic congestion;

3.

A shortage of available parking; or

4.

Other demonstrable negative impacts caused by the new regulated marijuana
business.

L.
A local license shall not be issued until a state license has been granted and the
building in which the business is to be conducted has passed all applicable inspections and is
ready for occupancy with such furniture, fixtures, and equipment in place as are necessary to
comply with any applicable provisions of the code or any state law, rule, or regulation.
M.
The local licensing authority shall issue its decision within ninety (90) days of
the hearing on the complete license application. Such decision shall be by Resolution and shall
state the reasons for the decision. The Resolution shall be sent via certified mail to the state
licensing authority and the applicant at the address shown in the application.
3-7-6: ISSUANCE, DURATION, RENEWAL OF LICENSE:
A.
Upon issuance of a license, the Town shall provide the licensee with one (1)
original of such license for each regulated marijuana business to be operated by the licensee in
the Town. Each such copy shall show the name and address of the licensee, that the license
11
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is issued for a regulated marijuana business, and the address of the licensed premises at which
it is to be displayed.
B.
Each license issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be valid for one (1) year
from the date of issuance and may be renewed only as provided in this Chapter. All renewals
of a license shall be for no more than one (1) year. An application for the renewal of an
existing license shall be made to the local licensing authority not more than ninety (90) days
and not less than sixty (60) days prior to the date of expiration of the license. A licensee may
submit to the local licensing authority a late renewal application on the prescribed forms and
pay a non-refundable late application fee in an amount determined by the Town by separate
resolution for a renewal application made less than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the
expiration of the license. All other provisions concerning renewal applications apply to a late
renewal application. The timely filing of a completed renewal application or a late renewal
application shall extend the current license until a final decision is made on the renewal.
C.
Notwithstanding state law to the contrary, a licensee whose license expires and
for which a renewal application has not been received by the expiration date shall be deemed
to have forfeited its license under this Chapter. The Town shall not accept renewal
applications after the expiration date of such license.
D.
A licensee whose license expires shall not distribute or sell regulated marijuana
or regulated marijuana products until all necessary new licenses have been obtained.
E.
In the event that there have been no violations of this Chapter or Colorado
Marijuana Code during the preceding year, and if there is no other derogatory information
regarding the licensee, its partners, officers, directors, managers, or shareholders, then the
Town Clerk may administratively grant the renewal of a regulated marijuana business license,
transfer of ownership, change of corporate status, a request for modification of the licensed
premises that does not include an expansion of the licensed premises, or manager registration
on behalf of the local licensing authority. If, however, the Town Clerk's investigation discloses
any proved or alleged violations of the Colorado Marijuana Code or this Chapter or derogatory
information as described above, the Clerk shall schedule action on the application before the
licensing authority.
3-7-7: PERSONS PROHIBITED AS LICENSEES AND EMPLOYEES:
A.

No license shall be issued to, held by, or renewed by any of the following:

1.

Any person until all applicable fees have been paid;

2.

Any person who is not of good moral character satisfactory to the local
licensing authority;

3.

Any corporation, any of whose officers, directors or stockholders are not of
good moral character satisfactory to the local licensing authority;

4.

Any partnership, association or company, any of whose officers are not of
good moral character satisfactory to the local licensing authority;
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5.

Any person employing, assisted by, or financed in whole or in part by any other
person who is not of good character and reputation satisfactory to the local
licensing authority;

6.

Any sheriff, deputy sheriff, police officer, prosecuting officer, and state or local
licensing authority or any of its members, inspectors or employees;

7.

Any natural person under twenty-one (21) years of age;

8.

Any person for a licensed location that is also a retail food establishment or
wholesale food registrant;

9.

Any person who has discharged a sentence for a felony conviction within the
past five (5) years;

10.

Any person who, at any time, has been convicted of a felony for drug
possession, distribution, or use, unless such felony drug charge was based on
possession or use of marijuana or marijuana concentrate that would not be a
felony if the person were convicted of the offense on the date he or she applied
for the license;

11.

Any entity whose directors, shareholders, partners, or other persons having a
financial interest in said entity do not meet the criteria set forth above;

12.

Any person who employs another person at a regulated marijuana business
who has not submitted fingerprints for a criminal record history check or
whose criminal record history check reveals the employee is ineligible;

13.

Any person who has made a false, misleading, or fraudulent statement on his
or her application;

14.

Any person who fails to file any tax return with a taxing agency, stay out of
default on a government-issued student loan, pay child support, or remedy
outstanding delinquent taxes; or

15.

Any person whose license for a regulated marijuana business in another Town,
Town and county or state has been revoked.

B.
In addition to the prohibitions listed in Subsection A above, no medical
marijuana business license will be issued to or held by:
1.

A licensed physician making patient recommendations.

2.

An individual or other person whose authority to be a primary caregiver has
been revoked by the state health agency.

C.
No licensee shall employ or contract with any person to perform work
functions directly related to the possession, dispensing, selling, serving, or delivering of
marijuana for a licensed regulated marijuana business, any of the following:
13
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1.

Any person who is not of good moral character satisfactory to the local
licensing authority;

2.

Any person who is under twenty-one (21) years of age;

3.

Any person who has discharged a sentence for a felony conviction within the
past five (5) years;

4.

Any person who, at any time, has been convicted of a felony for drug
possession, distribution, or use, unless such felony drug charge was based on
possession or use of marijuana or marijuana concentrate that would not be a
felony if the person were convicted of the offense on the date he or she applied
for the license; or

5.

Any sheriff, deputy sheriff, police officer, prosecuting officer, and state or local
licensing authority or any of its members, inspectors, or employees.

D.
In investigating the qualifications described herein, the local licensing authority
may have access to criminal history record information furnished by a criminal justice agency
subject to any restrictions imposed by such agency. In the event the local licensing authority
takes into consideration information concerning the applicant's criminal history record, the
local licensing authority shall also consider any information provided by the applicant
regarding such criminal history record, including without limitation evidence of rehabilitation,
character references, and educational achievements, especially those items pertaining to the
period of time between the applicant's last criminal conviction and the consideration of the
application for a license.
3-7-8: ANNUAL OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEES:
In addition to application, renewal, late renewal, and an annual operating fee, the Town shall
impose administrative fees for services, which include without limitation the transfer of
ownership, background investigations, change of business manager, employee application,
modification of premises, change of location, application modification, license modification,
change of corporate structure, change of financier, zoning verification, duplicate license,
temporary permit, change of trade name, with all such fees to be established by resolution of
Town Council.
3-7-9: MEDICAL MARIJUANA DELIVERY
A.
The Authority may issue to any duly licensed medical marijuana center a
marijuana delivery permit, subject to obtaining a state delivery permit by the State Licensing
Authority, which shall authorize the permit holder to deliver medical marijuana and medical
marijuana products to private residences only. A marijuana delivery permit is valid for one
year and may be renewed annually upon renewal of the retail marijuana store license or medical
marijuana center license.
B.
Only duly licensed medical marijuana centers with a valid marijuana delivery
permit may deliver medical marijuana and medical marijuana products to private residences in
Grand County; provided that such delivery complies with C.R.S. § 44-10-501(11) and any
14
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applicable rules or regulations of the Colorado Marijuana Code. Delivery outside of Grand
County is prohibited.
C.
Delivery of medical marijuana and medical marijuana products from
businesses located outside of the Town's jurisdictional boundaries to an address within the
Town's jurisdictional boundaries is permitted so long as the delivery is made by a licensed
medical marijuana center delivering medical marijuana and medical marijuana products only,
which holds a delivery permit issued by the state or another local entity, and which is located
in Grand County. Delivery of retail marijuana and retail marijuana products is prohibited,
regardless of whether the business holds a delivery permit issued by the state or another local
entity.
D.
A licensed medical marijuana center with a marijuana delivery permit may
deliver medical marijuana and medical marijuana products only to the patient or parent or
guardian who placed the order and who:
1.

Is a current registrant of the medical marijuana patient registry and is twentyone years of age or older or the parent or guardian of a patient who is also the
patient's primary caregiver;

2.

Receives the delivery of medical marijuana or medical marijuana products
pursuant to rules adopted by the state; and

3.

Possesses an acceptable form of identification.

E.
Prior to transferring possession of the order to an individual, the person
delivering the order shall inspect the individual's identification and verify that the information
provided at the time of the order matches the name and age on the individual's identification.
F.
The licensed medical marijuana center shall charge a one-dollar surcharge on
each delivery. The licensee shall remit the surcharges collected on a monthly basis to the
Town for local law enforcement costs related to marijuana enforcement. Failure to comply
with this subsection may result in nonrenewal of the delivery permit.
G.
All sales of medical marijuana and medical marijuana products delivered to an
address within the Town are subject to the Town's applicable sales tax.
H.
A delivery permit issued by the Authority is deemed a revocable privilege of a
licensed medical marijuana center. A violation related to a delivery permit is grounds for a
fine or suspension or revocation of the delivery permit or medical marijuana center license.
3-7-10:
OPERATIONAL
BUSINESSES:

RESTRICTIONS

OF

REGULATED

MARIJUANA

A.
Any storage, display, sales, or other distribution of marijuana shall occur only
within the restricted area of a regulated marijuana business and shall not be visible from the
exterior of the licensed premises.
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B.
A regulated marijuana business shall be closed to the public and no sale or
other distribution of marijuana shall occur upon the premises between the hours of 10:00 p.m.
through and including 8:00 a.m.
C.
A retail marijuana store may sell retail marijuana or retail marijuana products
to persons twenty-one (21) years of age or older only in the quantities permitted by state law.
D.
A medical marijuana center may sell within any seven-day period of time to
any one registered patient or primary caregiver only the quantities of medical marijuana or
medical marijuana products permitted by state law.
E.

Dual operations.

1.

If a medical marijuana center that allows medical marijuana patients under the
age of twenty-one (21) years to be on the premises is dually located with a retail
marijuana store, the medical marijuana store and the retail marijuana store
must maintain complete and distinct physical separation of the licensed
premises, including without limitation separate sales and storage areas, separate
entrances and exits, separate inventories, separate point-of-sale operations, and
separate record-keeping. For other dual operations, the licensee shall maintain
visual and operational separation of the two (2) licensed operations.

2.

A medical marijuana center that does not authorize patients under the age of
twenty-one (21) years to be on the premises may hold a retail marijuana store
license and operate a dual operation retail business at a shared licensed
premises with the same entrances and exits to the shared premises and medical
and retail marijuana may be separately displayed on the same floor.

3.

Licensees of a dual operation shall maintain separate and distinct inventory
tracking processes for medical marijuana and retail marijuana inventories. The
inventories must be clearly tagged or labeled so that the products can be
reconciled to a particular medical or retail business.

F.
The regulated marijuana offered for sale and distribution must be packaged
and labeled in accordance with state law.
G.
Regulated marijuana businesses are prohibited from selling, soliciting, or
receiving orders for regulated marijuana or regulated marijuana products over the internet.
H.
Regulated marijuana business licensees are prohibited from selling or giving
away any consumable product that is not a regulated marijuana product, including without
limitation cigarettes or tobacco products, alcohol beverages, and food products or nonalcoholic beverages that are not regulated marijuana products.
I.
A regulated marijuana business shall be ventilated to ensure the odor of
marijuana cannot be detected by a person with a normal sense of smell at the exterior of the
regulated marijuana business or at any adjoining property.

16

6/30/2021
I:\CLERK\COUNCIL\ORDINANCES\559 REVISED FROM TABLED.DOCX

J.
No regulated marijuana business may store regulated marijuana or any
regulated marijuana product in any off-premises storage facility located within the Town.
K.
Licensees who are natural persons shall either manage the licensed premises
themselves or employ a separate and distinct manager on the premises and report the name
of such manager to the local licensing authority. Licensees that are entities shall employ a
manager on the premises and report the name of the manager to the local licensing authority.
All managers must be natural persons who are at least twenty-one (21) years of age. No
manager shall be a person who has discharged a sentence for a felony conviction within the
past five (5) years, or who has been convicted of a felony for drug possession, distribution or
use, unless such felony drug charge was based on possession or use of marijuana or marijuana
concentrate that would not be a felony if the person were convicted of the offense on the date
he or she applied for the license. The manager must be a Colorado resident at the time of
reporting and at all times the individual is acting as manager for the licensed premises.
L.
A legible sign shall be posted in a conspicuous location in each regulated
marijuana business containing the following warnings:
1.

That the use of marijuana or marijuana products may impair a person's ability
to drive a motor vehicle or operate machinery, and it is illegal under state law
to drive a motor vehicle or to operate machinery when under the influence of
or impaired by marijuana;

2.

That loitering in or around a regulated marijuana business is prohibited by law;

3.

That possession and distribution of marijuana is a violation of federal law; and

4.

That no one under the age of twenty-one (21) years is permitted on the
premises.

M.
Security measures at regulated marijuana businesses shall follow all
requirements of state law and shall include, at a minimum, the following:
1.

Security surveillance cameras installed to monitor all entrances, along with the
interior and exterior of the premises, to discourage and facilitate the reporting
of criminal acts and nuisance activities occurring at the premises. All security
recordings shall be preserved for at least forty (40) days by the licensee and be
made available to the Fraser Winter Park Police Department upon request for
inspection;

2.

Robbery and burglary alarm systems that are professionally monitored and
maintained in good working condition;

3.

A locking safe permanently affixed to the premises or secure room that is
suitable for the storage of cash if cash will be stored overnight on the licensed
premises;
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4.

Exterior lighting that illuminates the exterior walls of the licensed premises
and complies with applicable provisions of this Chapter and other applicable
provisions of the Winter Park Town Code; and

5.

Deadbolt locks on all exterior doors.
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3-7-11: SIGNAGE:
A.
All signage and advertising for a regulated marijuana business shall comply
with all applicable state laws as well as the provisions of this Chapter and other applicable
provisions of the Winter Park Town Code.
B.
It is unlawful for any person licensed under this Chapter or any other person
to advertise any retail marijuana or retail marijuana product anywhere in the Town where the
advertisement is visible to members of the public from any street, sidewalk, park, or other
public place, including advertising, utilizing any of the following media: any billboard; any sign
mounted on a vehicle, any hand-held or other portable sign; or any handbill, leaflet or flier
directly handed to any person in a public place, left upon a motor vehicle, or posted upon any
public or private property without the consent of the property owner. The prohibition set
forth in this Section shall not apply to:
1.

Any sign located on the same lot as a regulated marijuana business that exists
solely for the purpose of identifying the location of the regulated marijuana
business and that otherwise complies with the Town's zoning requirements
and any other applicable Town laws and regulations; provided, however, that
the maximum sign area for any regulated marijuana business shall be one-half
of the sign area otherwise permitted by Section 6-2-7-7 of the Winter Park
Town Code, as amended.

2.

Any advertisement contained within a newspaper, magazine, or other
periodical of general circulation within the Town; or

3.

Advertising that is purely incidental to sponsorship of a charitable event by a
regulated marijuana business.

3-7-12: NUMBER AND LOCATION OF REGULATED MARIJUANA BUSINESSES:
A.
Subject to the following number limits, a regulated marijuana business shall be
permitted to locate only within the following two districts, defined as follows for purposes of
this Chapter only: the old town district, and the downtown district, both as described on the
map attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit A. Within both districts, zoning regulations and
all land use approvals and requirements continue to apply.
1.

Within the old town district: one (1) retail marijuana store, licensed medical
marijuana center or dual operation.

2.

Within the downtown district: up to two (2) retail marijuana stores or licensed
medical marijuana centers or dual operations or any combination thereof not
exceeding two (2) businesses.

3.

The maximum aggregate number of regulated marijuana business within the
Town shall not exceed three (3) at any point in time, which may be retail
marijuana stores, licensed medical marijuana centers, dual operations, or any
combination thereof.
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4.

For purposes of this limitation, a dual operation shall be considered a single
marijuana business.

5.

If a regulated marijuana business is operating and in good standing with the
Colorado Department of Revenue Marijuana Enforcement Division at the
time of annexation into the Town, the existing regulated marijuana business
shall not count toward these number limits. Except for the random selection
process in Section 3-7-5 (E) and this exemption from the number limits, all
licensing requirements of this Chapter shall apply.

B.

No regulated marijuana business may be located within:

1.

Five hundred (500) feet of any other regulated marijuana business; or

2.

Upon any Town of Winter Park owned property.

3.

The distances set forth in this Section are to be computed by direct
measurement from the nearest property line, right-of-way boundary, or
portion of the footprint of the land uses set forth herein to the nearest portion
of the footprint of the regulated marijuana business.

C.
The licensed premises of a regulated marijuana business shall not exceed three
thousand (3,000) square feet.
D.
Each regulated marijuana business shall be operated from a permanent
location. No regulated marijuana business shall be permitted to operate from a moveable,
mobile or transitory location.
E.
The suitability of a location for a regulated marijuana business shall be
determined at the time of the issuance of the first license for such business. The fact that
changes in the neighborhood occurring after the issuance of the first license might render the
site unsuitable for a regulated marijuana business under this Section shall not be grounds to
suspend, revoke or refuse to renew the license for such business so long as the license for the
business remains in effect.
3-7-13: INSPECTION OF BOOKS, RECORDS, AND LICENSED PREMISES:
A.
Every licensee shall maintain an accurate and complete record of all regulated
marijuana purchased, sold, or dispensed by the regulated marijuana business in any usable
form. Such record shall include the following:
1.

The identity of the seller and purchaser involved in each transaction;

2.

The total quantity of and amount paid for the regulated marijuana and/or the
regulated marijuana product(s); and

3.

The date, time, and location of each transaction.
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B.

All transactions shall be kept in a numerical register in the order in which they

occur.
C.
All records required to be kept under this Chapter must be kept in the English
language in a legible manner and must be preserved and made available for inspection for a
period of three (3) years after the date of the transaction. Information inspected by the Winter
Park Police Department or other Town departments pursuant to this Chapter shall be used
for regulatory and law enforcement purposes only and shall not be a matter of public record.
D.
The licensed premises shall be subject to inspection by the local licensing
authority, its duly authorized representatives, and the Winter Park Police Department during
all business hours and other times of apparent activity, for the purpose of inspection or
investigation. For examination of any inventory or books and records required to be kept by
the licensees, access shall be required during business hours. Where any part of the licensed
premises consists of a locked area, upon demand to the licensee by the local licensing authority
or any other authorized Town personnel, such area shall be made available for inspection
without delay.
3-7-14: UNLAWFUL ACTS:
It shall be unlawful for any person or licensee to:
A.
Employ any person at a regulated marijuana business who is not at least
twenty-one (21) years of age or who has a criminal history as described in Section 3-7-7.
B.
premises.

Allow marijuana or marijuana products to be consumed upon its licensed

C.
Sell regulated marijuana or regulated marijuana products to a person under
twenty-one (21) years of age or to a person who does not present a government-issued
identification at the time of purchase.
D.

Sell medical marijuana or medical marijuana products to non-patients.

E.
Purchase or otherwise obtain regulated marijuana from any source that is not
properly authorized under state and local law to sell or dispense regulated marijuana.
F.

Permit the sale or consumption of alcohol beverages on the licensed premises.

G.
Dispense regulated marijuana to a person that is or appears to be under the
influence of alcohol or under the influence of any controlled substance, including marijuana.
H.
Refuse to allow inspection of a regulated marijuana business upon request of
an authorized Town employee. Any licensee, owner, business manager, operator of a regulated
marijuana business, or owner of the property where a regulated marijuana business is located
may be charged with violation of this requirement.
I.
Violate any provision of this Chapter or any condition of an approval granted
pursuant to this Chapter, or any law, rule, or regulation applicable to the use of regulated
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marijuana or the operation of a regulated marijuana business, including without limitation any
provision, term, condition, or requirement of the Colorado Marijuana Code.
J.
Engage in any form of business or commerce involving the sale, distribution,
or consumption of marijuana other than that form of business and commerce that is expressly
permitted by Section 16 of Chapter XVIII of the Colorado Constitution, the Colorado
Marijuana Code, and this Chapter, which permits only regulated marijuana business.
3-7-15: CHANGE IN MANAGER; CHANGE IN FINANCIAL INTEREST; TRANSFER
OF OWNERSHIP; CHANGE IN LOCATION:
A.
Change in Manager. Each licensee shall report any change in managers to the
local licensing authority within thirty (30) days after the change. Such report shall include all
information required for disclosing managers under this Chapter.
B.
Change in Financial Interest. Each licensee shall report in writing to the local
licensing authority any transfer or change of financial interest in the license holder or in the
regulated marijuana business that is the subject of the license. Such report must be filed with
the local licensing authority within thirty (30) days after any such transfer or change. A transfer
application shall be required for any transfer of the capital stock of a corporation or any other
interest totaling more than ten percent (10%) of the stock in any one (1) year, as well as any
transfer of a controlling interest in the corporation whenever a sufficient number of shares
have been transferred to effectuate the transfer of a controlling interest. No person having or
acquiring a financial interest in the regulated marijuana business that is the subject of a license
shall be a person who has discharged a sentence for a felony conviction within the past five
(5) years, or who has been convicted of a felony for drug possession, distribution or use, unless
such felony drug charge was based on possession or use of marijuana or marijuana concentrate
that would not be a felony if the person were convicted of the offense on the date he or she
applied for the license.
C.
Transfer of ownership. For a transfer of ownership, a license holder shall
apply to the state and local licensing authority on forms provided by the state and local
licensing authority. In considering whether to permit a transfer of ownership, the local
licensing authority shall consider only the requirements of this Chapter, the Colorado
Marijuana Code, and the regulations promulgated in conformance therewith. The local
licensing authority may hold a hearing on the application for a transfer of ownership, but such
hearing shall not be held until a notice of such hearing has been posted on the licensed
regulated marijuana business premises for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to such
hearing, and the applicant has been provided at least ten (10) days prior notice of such hearing.
D.

Change of location.

1.

A licensee from another jurisdiction that has previously obtained a license
from the state and any other local licensing authority as applicable may move
his or her permanent location to the Town of Winter Park so long as the
applicant and the new location conform to the requirements of this Chapter,
and a new local license is obtained.
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2.

A licensee within the Town that seeks to change its location, may move his or
her permanent location so long as the new location conforms to the
requirements of this Chapter. The local licensing authority shall schedule a
public hearing on the application, provided however, the local licensing
authority shall only consider the proposed location of the licensed premises
pursuant to this Chapter.

3-7-16: REPORTING REQUIRED:
Licensees shall immediately report to the Winter Park Police Department any unlawful act,
conduct, or disturbance committed upon the premises. In no case shall the report be provided
later than seventy-two (72) hours of the event.
3-7-17: VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES:
In addition to the possible denial, suspension, revocation or nonrenewal of a license under the
provisions of this Chapter, any person, including without limitation any licensee, manager or
employee of a regulated marijuana business, or any customer of such business, who violates
any of the provisions of this Chapter, shall be subject to the following penalties:
A.
Any person convicted of having violated any provision of this Chapter shall
be punished as set forth in Section 1-4-1C of this Code.
B.
The operation of a regulated marijuana business without a valid license issued
pursuant to this Chapter may be enjoined by the Town in an action brought in a court of
competent jurisdiction, including the Winter Park Municipal Court.
C.
The operation of a regulated marijuana business without a valid license issued
pursuant to this Chapter is specifically determined to be a public nuisance.
3-7-18: NO TOWN LIABILITY; INDEMNIFICATION:
A.
By accepting a license issued pursuant to this Chapter, the licensee waives and
releases the Town, its officers, elected officials, employees, attorneys, and agents from any
liability for injuries, damages or liabilities of any kind that result from any arrest or prosecution
of regulated marijuana business owners, operators, employees, clients, or customers for a
violation of state or federal laws, rules, or regulations.
B.
By accepting a license issued pursuant to this Chapter, all licensees, jointly and
severally, if more than one (1), agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town, its
officers, elected officials, employees, attorneys, agents, insurers and self-insurance pool against
all liability, claims and demands on account of any injury, loss or damage, including, without
limitation, claims arising from bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property
loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever arising out of or in any manner
connected with the operation of the regulated marijuana business that is the subject of the
license.
Section 5.
Section 7-2-3 of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby amended by the
addition of the following new definitions, to be inserted in alphabetical order:
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REGULATED MARIJUANA BUSINESS: Any business authorized and duly licensed by Chapter 7
of Title 3 of this Code to sell regulated marijuana and regulated marijuana products.
Section 6.
Section 7-3-19 of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby repealed and
reenacted to read as follows:
7-3-19: MEDICAL MARIJUANA PROHIBITIONS:
A.
Authority: The Town Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that it
has the power to adopt this section pursuant to: article XVIII, section 16 of the Colorado
Constitution; Colorado Revised Statutes section 44-11-104(6); article XX of the Colorado
Constitution; the Town of Winter Park Home Rule Charter; and the Local Government Land
Use Control Enabling Act, article 20 of title 29, Colorado Revised Statutes.
B.
Findings: Based on the foregoing authority and after careful consideration and
evaluation of the potential secondary impacts associated with the operation of medical
marijuana establishments, the Town Council finds and determines that such businesses, other
than a limited number of licensed medical marijuana businesses, would have an adverse effect
on the health, safety and welfare of the Town and its inhabitants and that no suitable location
exists in the Town for the operation of medical marijuana establishments other than the
limited number of licensed medical marijuana businesses permitted by Chapter 7 of Title 3 of
this Code.
C.
Prohibition: It is unlawful for any person to operate, cause to be operated, or
permit to be operated any medical marijuana establishment, other than a duly licensed medical
marijuana business, in the Town, and all such uses are hereby prohibited in any location in the
Town.
D.
Penalty: Violations of this Section shall be punished as set forth in subsection
1-4-1C of this Code.
Section 7.
Section 7-3-21 of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby repealed and
reenacted to read as follows:
7-3-21: RETAIL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS:
A.
Authority: The Town Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that it
has the power to adopt this section pursuant to: article XVIII, section 16 of the Colorado
Constitution; Colorado Revised Statutes section 44-11-104(6); article XX of the Colorado
Constitution; the Town of Winter Park Home Rule Charter; and the Local Government Land
Use Control Enabling Act, article 20 of title 29, Colorado Revised Statutes.
B.
Findings: Based on the foregoing authority and after careful consideration and
evaluation of the potential secondary impacts associated with the operation of retail marijuana
establishments, the Town Council finds and determines that such businesses, other than a
limited number of regulated marijuana businesses, would have an adverse effect on the health,
safety and welfare of the Town and its inhabitants and that no suitable location exists in the
Town for the operation of retail marijuana establishments other than the limited number of
regulated marijuana businesses permitted by Chapter 7 of Title 3 of this Code.
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C.
Prohibition: It is unlawful for any person to operate, cause to be operated, or
permit to be operated any retail marijuana establishment, other than a duly licensed retail
marijuana store, in the Town, and all such uses are hereby prohibited in any location in the
Town.
D.
Penalty: Violations of this Section shall be punished as set forth in subsection
1-4-1C of this Code.
Section 8.
Section 7-5B-2(B) of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby repealed and
reenacted to read as follows:
7-5B-2: USES PERMITTED:
*

*

*

B.
Special Use Permit: The following uses are permitted in the D-C district
subject to the provisions of this title and upon the issuance of a special use permit:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.

Commercial parking lots or structures;
Drive-through business;
Gasoline convenience stores;
Loading docks;
Mall and shopping center;
Outdoor storage;
Outdoor vendor;
Permanent outdoor sales and storage;
Public utilities;
Street vendor; and
Regulated marijuana businesses.

Section 9.
Section 7-5D-2(B) of the Winter Park Town Code is hereby repealed and
reenacted to read as follows:
7-5D-2: USES PERMITTED:
*

*

*

B.
Special Use Permit: The following uses are permitted in the C-1 district subject
to the provisions of this title and upon the issuance of a special use permit:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Commercial parking lots or garages;
Drive-through business;
Gasoline convenience stores;
Loading docks;
Outdoor storage;
Places of commercial recreation or amusement;
Public utilities; and
Regulated marijuana businesses.
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INTRODUCED, APPROVED ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED
IN FULL this __ day of __________, 2021. A public hearing shall be held at the regular meeting of
the Winter Park Town Council on the ___ day of ________, 2021 at 5:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter
as possible, at the Winter Park Town Hall.
TOWN OF WINTER PARK
________________________________
Nick Kutrumbos, Mayor
ATTEST:
________________________________
Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk

READ, ADOPTED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED on second and final reading by a vote
of ______ to ______ on the ___ day of ______, 2021.

TOWN OF WINTER PARK
________________________________
Nick Kutrumbos, Mayor

ATTEST:
_________________________________
Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk
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TO

Mayor and Town Council

FROM

Dani Jardee, Town Clerk

CC

Keith Riesberg, Town Manager

DATE

June 15, 2021

RE

Marijuana Fee Structure

Background
In November 2020, Winter Park voters approved a regulated marijuana sales tax of 5% for
the Town of Winter Park. Council has since discussed the topic of marijuana regulations at
the January 19, February 2, and April 6, 2021, Town Council Workshops. The Town Council
Workshops helped Staff and Legal Counsel to develop Ordinance 559 which amends the
Town Code to allow regulated marijuana businesses to operate in the Town of Winter Park.
Ordinance 559 had its first reading on June 1, 2021 and was approved with a vote of 7-0. On
June 15, 2021, the second reading and public hearing will occur.
Analysis
If Ordinance 559 is approved tonight per sections 3-7-5(A), 3-7-5(G), 3-7-6(B), and 3-7-8 of
the Winter Park Town Code fees are to be established by a separate resolution. Resolution
1868 presented tonight establishes fees related to licensing for regulated marijuana
business for the Town of Winter Park. The fee structure presented on Resolution 1868 will
cover the administrative costs of processing marijuana applications, renewals, etc. for the
Town. Town Council may review and change fees as they deem necessary.
Recommendation
It is Council’s discretion whether to approve the Fee Structure presented in Resolution 1868.
•

Should the Town Council wish to approve Resolution 1868 the following motion
should be made:

I move to approve Resolution 1868, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of
Winter Park to Establish Fees Related to Licensing for Regulated Marijuana
Businesses.

•

Should the Town Council wish to deny Resolution 1868, the following motion should
be made:

I move to deny Resolution 1868, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of
Winter Park to Establish Fees Related to Licensing for Regulated Marijuana
Businesses.

TOWN OF WINTER PARK
RESOLUTION NO. 1868
SERIES OF 2021
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WINTER PARK TO
ESTABLISH FEES RELATED TO LICENSING FOR REGULATED MARIJUANA
BUSINESSES
WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 44-10-803(3), as amended, a local jurisdiction may adopt
and impose fees on regulated marijuana businesses in the local jurisdiction in an amount determined
by the local jurisdiction; and
WHEREAS, Ordinance 559, Series of 2021, repealed and reenacted Chapter 7 of Title 3 of
the Winter Park Town Code ("W.P.C."), and authorized certain fees to be set by Town Council
resolution related to marijuana licensing; and
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires that marijuana businesses should cover the
administrative processing costs the Town incurs in reviewing and processing such license applications
and in administering the licenses once issued; and
WHEREAS, such local fees are in addition to the State licensing fees.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of Winter Park, Colorado,
marijuana licensing fees shall be as follows:
Type of Fee
Annual Operations Fee

Amount
$2, 000.00

Source
W.P.C. § 3-7-8

Phase 1 Application Fee

W.P.C. § 3-7-5(A)

Late Renewal Application Fee

$1750.00
(non-refundable
application fee)
$2,000.00
(non-refundable
application fee)
$1500.00
(non-refundable
application fee)
$500.00

Change of Location

$1,000.00

W.P.C. § 3-7-8

Change of Ownership

$1,000.00

W.P.C. § 3-7-8

Phase 2 Application Fee
Annual Renewal Application Fee

W.P.C. § 3-7-5(G)
W.P.C. § 3-7-8
W.P.C. § 3-7-6(B)

Modification of Premise

$250.00

W.P.C. § 3-7-8

Personnel Changes

$100.00

W.P.C. § 3-7-8

Delivery Permit – Medical Only

$1000.00

W.P.C. § 3-7-8

APPROVED AND PASSED this

day of

2021 by a vote of

to

TOWN OF WINTER PARK

Nick Kutrumbos, Mayor
ATTEST:

Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk

.

TO

Town Council

FROM

Lizbeth Lemley, Finance & HR Director

CC

Keith Riesberg, Town Manager

DATE

June 10, 2021

RE

2021 Budget Amendment Ordinance 560

Attached for your review is an Ordinance titled “An ordinance appropriating additional sums
of money to defray expenses in excess of amounts budgeted and appropriated for the fiscal
year 2021 for the Town of Winter Park, Colorado”. The Ordinance revises the original
amounts budgeted and appropriated in the 2021 Budget by the Town Council adopted on
December 1, 2020.
This ordinance is being brought forward to address events that have occurred subsequent to
the approval of the 2021 budget. The proposed revisions are explained below. Please note
all funds with personnel expense include a 3% increase and additional costs related to the
increase (payroll taxes, retirement match, worker’s compensation insurance, etc).
Additionally, increases in sales tax revenues reflected below represent sales tax collected in
excess of budget for the months of January through April 2021.
Transit & Trails Fund – The Trails & Transit Fund will be transferring funds to the
Affordable Housing Fund to acquire the piece of property originally purchased by the
Affordable Housing Fund. This property is located adjacent to the site of the new Transit
Maintenance Facility and will be needed to address site constraints of the proposed
project. In addition, our transit bus manufacturer will have two buses originally
scheduled for purchase in 2022 available in 2021. Purchasing the buses will allow the
Town to have these buses placed in service prior to expected price increases in 2022.
State grants have been awarded to cover 80% of the total cost of the buses. The
amount below includes the two buses, wraps and the voice announcement system
approved by Council earlier this year. These additional expenditures will be covered
with sales tax dollars and grant funds. This fund will also be receiving additional federal
grant funds under the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations
Act in 2021.

Transfer to Affordable Housing Fund
Capital Equipment
Salaries
Benefits
Sales Tax
State Grants
Federal Grants
Total

Expenditures
800,000
1,004,000
5,000
900

1,809,900

Revenues

200,000
787,608
1,565,133
2,552,741

Affordable Housing Fund – The bids for the Hideaway Junction Phase II horizontal
infrastructure came in significantly over original estimates. Council has approved the bid
to move forward with this project. Additionally, annual inspections of the apartments at
Hideaway Place identified and required system repairs. These specific repairs were not
included in the original 2021 budget but were necessary to properly maintain this facility.
Lastly, as discussed above, the Trails & Transit Fund will be transferring funds to acquire
a piece of property originally acquired by the Affordable Housing fund.

Capital Outlay
Repairs and Maintenance
Transfer from Trails & Transit Fund
Total

Expenditures Revenues
600,000
19,000
800,000
619,000
800,000

Capital Fund - At the time the 2021 budget was approved the Town forecasted the cost
to complete the Public Works Facility project would be $1,000,000. We now estimate the
expenditures related to this project will exceed this estimate by $230,000 in 2021. These
expenditures are not project overruns but are the result to timing variances at year end.
Additionally, the Town is purchasing new lighted Christmas decorations at a significant
discount. These were included in the 2020 budget but were not expended. These
expenditures will be covered by increased sales tax revenue and a transfer from the
General Fund.

Capital Outlay
Sales Tax Revenue
Transfer from General Fund
Total

Expenditures Revenues
257,000
90,000
167,000
257,000
257,000

Law Enforcement Fund –The are no addition appropriations requested in this fund in
addition to the 3% wage increase discussed above. These expenditures will be covered
by a transfer from the General Fund as well as a related increase in intergovernmental
revenue in accordance with the Town’s IGA with the Town of Fraser.

Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Transfer from General Fund
Total

Expenditures Revenues
31,000
6,000
13,690
23,310
37,000
37,000

Building Services Fund – The are no addition appropriations requested in this fund in
addition to the 3% wage increase discussed above These expenditures will be covered
by fund balance.

Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Fund Balance
Total

Expenditures Revenues
6,200
1,200
7,800
7,800
7,800

General Fund – In addition to the 3% wage increase, the chart below includes an
additional position in the Finance department to manage the short-term rental
registration process and other finance duties. We have also included one additional
employee to further sustainability initiatives through the state’s Best and Brightest
program. This position anticipates receiving state grants to fund a portion of the position
costs. Administrative expenses reflected below represent the programming costs to
expand our current business license/sales tax platform to include short term rental
registrations, retail marijuana tax and other updates. This chart also reflects the transfers
to the Capital Fund and Law Enforcement Fund discussed in the corresponding funds
above. These additional expenditures will be funded by an increase in sales tax
revenue, projected short term rental registration fees and a state grant. The Town will
also be receiving additional federal grant dollars under the American Rescue Plan Act of
2021.

Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Administrative Services
Transfer to Capital Fund
Transfer to Law Enforcement Fund
Sales Tax Revenue
Short Term Rental Registration Fees
State Grants
Federal Grants
Total

Expenditures Revenues
102,000
18,500
10,000
167,000
23,310
400,000
75,000
12,500
136,986
320,810
624,486

Recommended Motions
Staff recommends the Town Council approve the 2021 Budget Revisions as presented by
approving the attached Ordinance.

TOWN OF WINTER PARK
ORDINANCE NO. 560
SERIES OF 2021
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL SUMS OF MONEY TO DEFRAY
EXPENSES IN EXCESS OF AMOUNTS BUDGETED AND APPROPRIATED FOR THE FISCAL
YEAR 2021 FOR THE TOWN OF WINTER PARK, COLORADO
WHEREAS, Section 9.12 of the Town of Winter Park Home Rule Charter provides that the Town
Council by ordinance may make supplemental appropriations; and
WHEREAS, Keith Riesberg, Town Manager, has certified funds available in excess of the
appropriated expenditures as presented in the 2021 Adopted Budget.
WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published or posted in accordance with state law, a public
hearing was held on July 6,2021, and interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or register any
objections to said supplemental appropriations, and;
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winter Park,
Colorado:
Section 1.

That the 2021 supplemental appropriations shall be added to the following funds:

Transit & Trails Fund
Transfer to Affordable Housing Fund
Capital Equipment
Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Sales Tax Revenue
State Grants
Federal Grants
Total

Expenditures
800,000
1,004,000
5,000
900

1,809,900

Revenues

200,000
787,608
1,565,133
2,552,741

Affordable Housing Fund
Capital Outlay
Repairs and Maintenance
Transfer from Transit & Trails Fund
Total

Expenditures
600,000
19,000
619,000

Revenues

800,000
800,000

Capital Fund
Capital Outlay
Sales Tax Revenue
Transfers from General Fund
Total

Expenditures Revenues
257,000
90,000
167,000
257,000
257,000

Law Enforcement Fund
Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Transfers from General Fund
Total

Expenditures Revenues
31,000
6,000
13,690
23,310
37,000
37,000

Building Services Fund
Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Fund Balance
Total

Expenditures Revenues
6,600
1,200
7,800
7,800
7,800

General Fund
Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Administrative Services
Transfer to Capital Fund
Transfer to Law Enforcement Fund
Sales Tax Revenue
Short Term Rental Registrations
State Grants
Federal Grants
Total

Expenditures
102,000
18,500
10,000
167,000
23,310

320,810

Revenues

400,000
75,000
12,500
136,986
624,486

Section 2.
That the supplemental appropriation as submitted, amended and herein above
summarized by fund, hereby is approved and adopted providing additional appropriations to the
Budget of the Town of Winter Park for the year stated above.
INTRODUCED, APPROVED ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED IN FULL this
15rd day of June 2021. A public hearing shall be held at the regular meeting of the Winter Park Council on
the 6h day of July, 2021 at 5:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible, at the Winter Park Town Hall.

TOWN OF WINTER PARK

Nick Kutrumbos, Mayor
ATTEST:

Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk

READ, ADOPTED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED on second and final reading by a vote of ______ to
______ on the 6th day of July, 2021.
TOWN OF WINTER PARK

Nick Kutrumbos, Mayor
ATTEST:

Danielle Jardee, Town Clerk

Council objectives/priorities for 2021 - 2022
1.
2.
3.

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Advance housing projects within Winter Park and Fraser Valley
Increase Winter Park’s efforts for developing a year-round economy consistent with the Town’s
adopted vision statement
Pursue infrastructure improvement plans (broadband & community connectivity through transit,
trails, train) and address negative impacts where infrastructure is lacking or fire mitigation is
needed (dispersed camping areas) to preserve Winter Park’s natural areas
Improve communication and relationship building w/ Town’s strategic partners
Advance environmental sustainability initiatives through commitment of staff resources, pursuit of
grant funding and working with community partners
Form an economic development committee
Continue planning efforts for the downtown/resort connection (gondola)
Financial planning and stabilization – diversification of revenues, development of planning models
Continue the Town’s marketing strategy through partnerships with the Chamber of Commerce,
Winter Park Resort, and other community partners.
Update zoning code and development regulations

Council objectives/priorities for 2020 - 2021
1.
2.
3.
4.

5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.

Coordinated response to COVID-19 impacts – short-term needs and long-term effects
Advance housing projects within Winter Park and Fraser Valley
Increase Winter Park’s year-round population = be in line w/ the vision statement
Pursue infrastructure improvement plans (broadband & community connectivity through transit,
trails, train) and address negative impacts where infrastructure is lacking (Vasquez Road dispersed
camping issues)
Improve communication and relationship building w/ Town’s strategic partners
Update the Town’s marketing/special events strategy and direction for the Chamber of Commerce
Form an economic development committee
Continue planning efforts for the downtown/resort connection (gondola)
Financial planning and stabilization – diversification of revenues, development of planning models
Environmental sustainability initiatives
Update zoning code and development regulations

Council objective for 2019-2020
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.

Housing projects – want substantive movement (beds on-line in 18 months)
Creation of a new/updated vision statement
Analysis and outline of direction for activation and management of Hideaway Park
Clearly outline budgets and expectations for Chamber of Commerce agreement
Develop measure for gauging the health of the community/citizen satisfaction
Elevate community awareness, pursue partnerships and research options for addressing
community health issues.
Maintain strong inter-governmental relationship efforts – including USFS
Develop and host a citizen academy/Winter Park 101 program
Advance the Public Works and Transit facility projects
Pursue the voluntary annexation of Beaver Village
Formalize sustainability action plan and implement projects, pursue membership in policy
formation group such as CC4CA
Continue efforts/plans for the annexation and potential development of the Pyne property
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INTRODUCTION

The Mountain Migration Report • 2021

Study Purpose
Since the COVID-19 pandemic escalated in March of 2020, national media reported an outflow of residents flocking
from cities to high quality-of-life places such as the mountain resort communities covered in this report. Residents of
these communities observed that their communities were busier—and consistently so, breaking the typical patterns
of high and low visitation. But was the in-migration real? And what did we know about the people coming to these
places who appeared more like residents than visitors? Was it only a COVID driven wave that would recede? How
would it impact known community challenges such as workforce retention, affordable housing, rental stock and that
mountain community holy grail that is quality-of-life? A desire for a better understanding of the answers to these and
many other questions being asked led to this Mountain Migration report.
We listened to our membership through 2020, there was a sense among those reflecting already that the COVID
Mountain Migration experiment might prove instructive, providing a glimpse ahead for those who drive policy. That
idea was the origin of this report. To get it done, Northwest Colorado Council of Governments (NWCCOG) sought
a partnership with Colorado Association of Ski Towns (CAST) to scope and fund this report. That partnership led
to a grant from the Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA), and funding from a recovery grant from the
Economic Development Administration (EDA) to match dues from NWCCOG and CAST membership. NWCCOG is
deeply appreciative of these partners, the many contributors listed in the Acknowledgements page and the amazing
communities that we are honored to serve.
The findings of this report should help local leaders better understand current trends and motivate them to address
evolving community needs. While the data was gathered from six Colorado mountain resort counties, the results
should provide widespread insights for other high amenity places throughout the Mountain West. In Colorado, most
solutions are local, but many of the impacts outlined in this report can only be addressed through regional and statelevel cooperation, and in some cases structural changes to policy, practice and law.
Many public and private sector professionals have spent their careers on these issues, many of the communities
studied have been “doing housing” for decades, and many are innovating in the housing sector right now, though, few
are putting all options on the table. There is always that sticky matter of political courage and public resistance to
change. We think this Mountain Migration trend reveals a tipping point for these communities that cannot be ignored.
We thought such a report without ANY suggestions would be a mistake. To that, NWCCOG and CAST would like to
thank Wendy Sullivan and Melanie Rees, the consultants who we sought out for this work. The Possible Solutions/
Next Steps section at the end derived from their years of experience combined with input during this project.
Although they tolerated edits and input from us as NWCCOG and CAST Executive Directors, the report is their work,
and is intended as a tool for reference. It is not a reflection of the positions of either organization or our membership.
That said, we don’t mind going out on a limb here. May this report be a wakeup call for local leaders, a renewed call
to action for those already involved in tackling community challenges, and a reference point for those seeking to
understand the trends so they can have a positive impact on the places they live. The consequences are real.
Will some communities reach a tipping point of unfillable jobs that are necessary to sustain their reputations and
quality of life? Will some communities be fully commoditized and lose their soul? The report notes that no place yet
has “built their way out” of the issue. Is that possible? Does that mean that a community “couldn’t?” There are many
approaches to the issue. We recommend looking at each of them again.
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We hope this report may provide some cover for bold elected officials partnering with others to propose such
structural changes. Policies that made sense need to be reassessed, could include reviewing deed restriction
language to address remote work, or recalibrating Area Medium Income limits because even locally employed
professionals are being priced out. These are incremental, known things to tweak. Some things that were taboo
may need to be put on the table, those could include inventorying all lands owned by public taxing entities for
viability for affordable housing – school lands, oversized parking lots, and prized civic properties like adjacent federal
lands and, (gasp) open space. There is open talk these days about whether STRs should be taxed as commercial
properties? The conversation these days isn’t all about local or state policies. What about federal lending practices
that favor single family homes over multi-family developments? This is returning as an equity issue. Some states
such as California have streamlined multi-family developments as a by-right development for affordable projects
where density is not a public input point. Others states legislatures in the West are discussing abandoning single
family zoning altogether. And then there is the question, where is that in the budget? Most solutions like public land
banking, purchasing deed restrictions from existing residents cost money and often require additional taxes. For
those who wish to open the barn door, break the glass (insert your metaphor here), there are no shortage of ideas
being discussed somewhere out there today.
The countervailing challenge is this. People really like it up here because it isn’t the city. Periods of intense growth
pressure in mountain communities often result in a not-in-my-backyard backlash which creates resistance to the
very actions necessary to address the challenges outlined in this report. Such reactions often impact attempts
to create affordable housing more than they do higher-end projects. Whether this dynamic can be overcome will
require considerable finesse, vision and community buy-in earned by community leaders. We applaud those who
endeavor to do so.

Margaret Bowes
Jon Stavney
Executive Director NWCCOG

Margaret Bowes
Executive Director CAST

ALPINE AREA AGENCY ON AGING
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Geographic Area

Aside from each county or municipality therein being
members of NWCCOG and/or CAST, additional criteria
were used to focus the study area to ensure that this
analysis will have wide applicability to a variety of other
amenity-rich communities throughout the west. First,
high-profile resort communities are located in each
county. These have long attracted investment from
second homeowners and strong interest from visitors.
On average only about 50% of homes are occupied
by full-time residents in the entire study area, with the
rest being owned and occupied by part-time residents,
investment buyers, and visitors. Second, each county
differs in its relative accessibility from population centers,
with some being easily accessible from the more urban
Colorado Front Range cities and others being relatively
isolated. This leads to variability among these counties,
reflected in other unique factors such as each county’s
demographic, economic, and visitor profiles. Communities
not directly included in the study should, therefore, be able
to reference a county or combination of counties that best
resemble their area to get a picture of the most applicable
migration profiles presented in this report.

This study includes six counties within the
NWCCOG and CAST network:
Eagle County, Pitkin County, Summit County,
Routt County, Grand County, and San Miguel County.

Methodology

ONLINE RESIDENT SURVEY

The resident survey conducted as part of this study provides the core information presented in this report. The
survey was distributed with significant local assistance to reach full-time residents, part-time residents, and new
residents. Nearly 5,000 responses were received, about one-fourth of which were from part-time residents, as
summarized in the table below.
RESIDENCY
STATUS

COUNTY
Eagle

Grand

Pitkin

Routt

San Miguel

Summit

TOTAL

Full-time

508

769

254

400

496

1,048

3,475

Part-time

91

446

192

64

62

380

1,235

599

1,215

446

464

558

1,428

4,710

TOTAL

Reaching the desired mix of respondents required a diverse outreach plan. The survey was advertised through
local media and newspapers and distributed with the cooperation of local boards of REALTORS®, school districts,
water and utility billings, chambers of commerce, and local non-profits, among other avenues, as indicated in the
Acknowledgements section.
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Results were weighted to coincide with the proportion of total full- and part-time resident households that each
county comprises in the study region. Given that the purpose of the study was to gauge differences in home usage
and service needs in the community based on residency status, other weighting was not applied. The demographic
profile of respondents is provided in the Appendix.
Survey results are primarily reported based on the residency status of respondents, as follows:
•

PART-TIME RESIDENT: include respondents that reported that
they do not live in their respective county on a full-time or primary
residence basis. Part-time respondents predominately reside in their
respective mountain county for 6-months or less
each year (90%).

•

FULL-TIME RESIDENT: include respondents that reported that they
live in their respective county on a full-time or primary residence
basis. Full-time respondents predominately reside in their respective
mountain county for more than 6-months each year (91%).

•

NEWCOMERS: include respondents that started residing in the
area as a full- or part-time resident within the past two years.
Forty-four percent of newcomers did not spend time in their
respective mountain county on a regular basis prior to the COVID
outbreak in 2020.

•

LONG-TIMERS: include respondents that have resided in their
respective mountain county for ten years or more either full-time,
part-time, or both.

Significant differences that were observed by county are also noted.

44%
Forty-four percent of

newcomers did not spend
time in their respective
mountain county on a

regular basis prior to the

COVID outbreak in 2020.

PROPERTY MANAGERS, REAL ESTATE AGENTS & HOUSING MARKET DATA

Interviews were conducted with nine property managers throughout the six counties. A focus group was conducted
with eight real estate agents representing each county within the study area. The purpose was to gather housing
market changes (prices, availability and competition), gain insights into changes in unit use, such as from year-round
rentals into short-term rentals, and understand new resident motivations, preferences and needs. Housing market
analyses from Land Title Guarantee Company, the predominant title company for each county in the study area,
provided the housing sales data presented in this report.

OTHER LOCAL DATA

Discussions with various water and sanitation districts, school districts, chambers of commerce, and tourism boards
and districts were conducted to identify various local indicators that communities in the study area were tracking to
try to understand changes. This research led to compilation of several indicators presented in this report, including
sales and lodging tax collections, vacation rental occupancy through DestiMetrics and Key Data tracking systems,
and water usage and wastewater data. It is important to note that the scope of this report did not attempt to capture
information about traditional tourism or visitors.
Base Survey Data is available only to members for CAST and NWCCOG upon request.
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SUMMARY OF KEY
FINDINGS
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Key Findings
Have part-time residents changed the amount of time they
spend in the region?

The short answer is yes. About one-fifth did spend more time in their part-time residence in 2020. Interestingly,
however, about an equal number spent less time, effectively balancing out their impacts over the year.
This does not mean that the impacts of part-time residents that increased their stay was not felt. Many did so during
periods when they have typically been elsewhere and, therefore, did help to boost sales tax collections and contribute
to the busier-than-usual feeling in most communities during typically slower times of the year (i.e., mid-week and fall
months).
There was much speculation before this study that the increased crowds, parking impacts, and other effects of
having more people than typical in these communities was due primarily to part-time owners occupying their homes.
While part-time residents were a contributor, the greater population surge and the crowds about which so many
residents commented were instead caused by a combination of:
¿

Newcomers moving in and either buying or renting;

¿

Growth in the demand for and use of homes for a month or season;

¿

Visitors who stayed in lodging, short-term, and mid-term rentals, or camped
with many others in the backcountry;

¿

Residents and visitors alike staying for consistent and longer stretches, rather
than coming up only on the weekends or during holidays, thereby flattening
out the typical peaks and valleys in visitation during the week and certain
times of the year;

¿

Year-round residents traveling out of the area less frequently during COVID;

¿

Day trippers and drive-in traffic seeking relief from COVID isolation; and, also,

¿

Part-time residents occupying their homes.

This surge illustrated yet another impact of the strong part-time and visitor
occupancy of homes in these counties. With currently only 50% of housing
units in the study area being occupied by full-time residents, the influx of more
owners and visitors staying in part-time homes and short- and mid-term
accommodations can, in theory, allow the population in the area to double
seemingly overnight; and this does not include visitors that may be in commercial
(hotel) lodging units. This, for example, occurred in Telluride last fall when the total
population in town was about twice the resident population of 4,145 people.

With currently only 50%
of housing units in the
study area being occupied
by full-time residents,
the influx of more owners
and visitors staying in
part-time homes and
short- and mid-term
accommodations can,
in theory, allow the
population in the area
to double seemingly
overnight; and this does
not include visitors that
may be in commercial
(hotel) lodging units.

When stays are increased and extended over longer periods of time, as occurred during COVID, the stress on the
community and infrastructure is felt by all.
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Do part-time residents have plans to permanently relocate?
Part-time residents expect to increase the time they spend in their homes by an
average of 30% (1.2-month increase) in 2022 to 2025 from pre-COVID averages.
A small percentage, however, plan to become full-time residents, which are largely
offset by plans of full-time residents to leave the area or reduce the time they
spend in the county.
Newcomers are also mixed, with some stating that they will move out of the
county and others hoping to buy a home in the county. About 18% are uncertain.
Evaluating the motivations for newcomers and part-time residents to move to
or spend more time in the area sheds light on factors that will influence their
staying power:

Part-time residents

expect to increase the

time they spend in their
homes by an average of

30% (1.2-month increase)
in 2022 to 2025 from

pre-COVID averages.

¿

Changes in employer remote work policies. Home is now the workplace for most newcomers and part-timers.
One-half of newcomers were motivated to spend more time in the area because they could work remotely.
About 20% who work remotely are uncertain about their ability to do so in the future, pending remote worker
policy changes by their employer.

¿

Concerns about COVID and, to a lesser extent, civil unrest. Safety/security was one of the most important
considerations among residents when choosing where to live. Newcomers will stay and more people will want to
move in should the pandemic continue and possibly worsen.

¿

The availability of housing stock to absorb newcomers. The housing shortage is felt by all. Newcomers earn much
higher incomes and are in a stronger position to compete for homes than are existing residents who make their
living in the community. As raised in more detail below, however, for sale inventory is at historic lows and rental
inventory is largely non-existent, meaning that even newcomers cannot acquire housing if it is not available. The
housing crisis is at a peak.

Are residents working remotely, employed locally or retired?
The location neutral, or remote, worker is a trend that was already occurring, which the pandemic rapidly accelerated.
It is also a trend that will continue to make mountain towns popular places to live for location neutral workers.
Over half of all newcomers, full-time residents, and part-time residents surveyed include at least one person who
works at home. About 60% of newcomers and 70% of part-time residents work for an employer outside of the
county, compared to about one-fourth of full-time residents.
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This accelerated location-neutral worker trend brings potentially positive changes,
but also brings some challenges:
¿

Rising interest from location neutral workers to relocate to the mountain
communities has the potential to bring more economic diversification. New
location-neutral worker residents earn more and can spend more at local
businesses. Their incomes are not tied to employment generated in the
mountains. If the ability for location neutral workers to work from home
changes, instead of leaving the community to again commute to their
job, some may instead choose to stay in the community, increasing the
entrepreneurial potential in these communities.

About 60% of newcomers
and 70% of part-time
residents work for an

employer outside of the
county, compared to
about one-fourth of
full-time residents.

¿

In addition, with more residents to support local businesses, shifting economic priorities for some communities
may be on the horizon. For example, tourism marketing and expenditures focused primarily on the visitor
experience may become less of a need, with increased focus on capital projects that support livability and
quality-of-life improvements for new residents. Visitors may always anchor the resort economy, but as these
communities add year-round residents, tourism may become a less dominant economic driver.

¿

On the other hand, finding employees to fill resident and visitor service jobs necessary to maintain a community
will likely become even more challenging. Incoming location-neutral workers will not be filling local jobs and
will outcompete local workers for housing. This hurts the ability for local businesses to find, keep, and attract
employees, lowering the level and quality of services they can provide to residents and visitors alike. This has been
a struggle for resort communities for years; and is primed to get worse, at least in the near term. Businesses,
existing residents, and communities may face a tough transition in the years ahead.

Will the sharp rise in home prices and high demand for housing

continue & what does this mean for residents holding local jobs?
The ability for people working in these mountain towns to live in the same communities as they work took a big hit
from the pandemic. Housing availability and affordability, which were by no means new problems, became significantly
worse.
¿

Home prices reached record highs.

¿

Availability of homes for rent and purchase plummeted to critical levels in many communities.

¿
¿

Rents increased 20% to 40% in one year.

Newcomers with significantly higher incomes than year-round residents more often won the competition for
scarce housing units.

Some correction is possible for home prices and rents; however, the wide perception among area real estate agents
was that the high-demand, short supply housing market is here to stay, at least for a while. Construction activity
picked up, but current activity levels cannot produce anywhere near the rate nor volume to meet the demand. The
shortage in construction labor and building materials, lack of developable land, topography constraints, and limited
infrastructure capacity are just a few of the limiting factors. It is widely recognized that these communities have been
unable to build their way out of this problem.
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Home prices in mountain towns tend to be more volatile than in diversified urban areas, as witnessed during the Great
Recession of 2008, when downward adjustments were significant. Given how far prices have moved beyond levels
affordable for locally employed residents, however, property values would need to plummet further than they did
during the Great Recession to bring affordability back for local workers in these communities. It seems unlikely that
prices will correct to the extent that year-round residents will be able to purchase market homes or compete with
part-time renters and newcomers for rental housing. In most communities in the six-county region this is already the
case, where the only housing that the majority of local employees can afford are homes that are deed restricted for
local workforce occupancy and/or price limited. There are fewer and fewer full-time residents employed locally that
will be able to afford free market construction if trends continue.
The negative impacts on housing affordability and availability were recognized by newcomers, long-time residents,
and part-time residents to almost the same extent as full-time residents. With the increase in the severity of the
problem and the widespread acknowledgment of it, now is the time to mobilize governments, communities, and
regions to strengthen, broaden, and reinvent workforce housing polices, programs, and efforts.
The rising focus of residential units being used as employment centers by location-neutral workers presents new
challenges for the traditional housing programs implemented in many of these communities. Innovative strategies
to increase the supply of deed restricted homes that are limited to occupancy by persons who are employed in local
businesses allow local workers to compete against the strong outside demand for housing in these amenity-rich
communities. Practices protecting those deed restrictions are clearly needed to fill local jobs, support the economy,
and sustain communities. The “Next Steps” section of this report presents several concepts for consideration.

Do community service needs differ among existing and new
residents and what are their priorities?

One purpose of this study was to evaluate if significant shifts in current community service priorities would occur as
new migrants came to the area and some part-time residents increased their time in their homes.
Results indicate that there is not much difference in community and business service priorities and needs among
newcomers, full-time, and part-time residents. Full-time residents may use s ervices more frequently, but all residents
report a similar need for each service. Interestingly, part-time residents generally feel that existing services are higher
quality than do full-time residents.
The results indicate that communities do not need to make significant changes to the way they deliver basic services
to their residents, but they will need more of the same if increased home usage continues and newcomers keep
coming. Providing higher levels of services to meet the larger population should be the focus rather than necessarily
providing different or new services.
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UNDERSTANDING CHANGES
IN HOUSING OCCUPANCY
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The number of homes occupied by full-time and part-time residents was higher in all counties

in the study area in June through December 2020 compared to the prior year. The scale of this

increase and whether increased home occupancy by part-time residents in particular are here to
stay are larger questions that this section seeks to address.

This section first summarizes several indicators that communities in the study region have

been tracking to varying degrees to better understand changes experienced during the COVID

pandemic in 2020. The indicators presented herein – sales and lodging tax collections, vacation
rental occupancy, and water usage and wastewater data - all point to increased occupancy of

homes by residents in the summer and fall of 2020, after COVID-19 public health restrictions
were put into place at state, county, and local levels in the region.

This is followed by information from the resident survey to understand more specifically how

much more time residents spent in their homes, future resident plans, and motivations behind
occupancy changes.

Sales & Lodging Taxes
Despite COVID-19 restrictions that were tough on businesses, the counties and communities in the six-county study
area experienced less negative effect on sales taxes than anticipated, with some areas showing sales tax gains from
the prior year.
Overall, for the region sales1 taxes declined by about 5% in 2020 compared to 2019. As illustrated in the following
chart, sales tax collection changes varied throughout the year:
•

The largest negative impact occurred in March, when COVID-19 public health orders closed or decreased
capacity for many businesses, including in particular restaurants, hotels/short-term rentals, and retailers. This
impact was felt throughout the spring.

•

Some recovery and positive gains occurred throughout the summer as public health were orders lifted, lodging
occupancy permissions were increased, and businesses reopened.

•

Collections again dropped into the late fall when COVID cases started rising and tighter restrictions were again
put into place in many counties.

1
Sales taxes by month were consolidated for the region and included collections for five of the six counties, plus many of the primary resort communities in each county for
2019 and 2020 tax years. Routt County and Steamboat Springs; Summit County and Breckenridge, Frisco and Silverthorne; Eagle County and Vail; Pitkin County and Aspen and
Snowmass Village; Winter Park in Grand County; and San Miguel County and Telluride.
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•

Collections again dropped into the late fall when COVID cases started rising and tighter restrictions were again put into place
in many counties.

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN SALES & LODGING TAX COLLECTIONS
Percentage Change in Sales and Lodging Tax Collections:
Six County Region • 2019-2020
% Change in Tax Collections: 2019 to 2020

Six County Region: 2019 to 2020
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The hardest hit tax collection sectors included businesses with a higher reliance on tourism and visitor traffic:

The hardest hit tax collection sectors included businesses with a higher reliance on tourism and visitor traffic:
•

•

Lodging tax collections were down about 14% in total for the region and as much as 40% in some areas.
Residential vacation rental collections, where tracked separately from commercial lodging (e.g., hotels, etc.),
WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
and were much less impacted, with some communities reporting increased 2020 collections (e.g., Frisco,
Breckenridge, Vail); and

13

Bar/restaurant collections falling 20% or more were not uncommon.

Sectors that tend to be more impacted by resident spending, including essential businesses which stayed open
throughout the pandemic, were more likely to show collection gains. This includes, for example, grocery and home
improvement/construction. If the migration persists these trends are likely to continue.
Online tax collections were able to begin in November 2018 in Colorado, although many communities did not receive
distributions until well into 2019 after 2020 budget revenue projections were established. This unpredictable windfall
from the Wayfair Supreme Court decision was timely during the COVID year. The increases will be predicted and
absorbed in upcoming years. The ability to collect online sales taxes helped make up for declines from local business
collections. As online sales continue to weaken main street businesses it will be interesting how it plays out over time
for Colorado communities which are largely dependent on sales tax to provide many basic services.
Finally, liquor and marijuana sales were generally up in every county and community, attributed to a mix of resident and
visitor spending. This could be simply a COVID isolation bump.

Vacation Rental Occupancy
Information was available for five of the six counties in the study area that track lodging occupancy stays for a portion
of the professionally managed commercial and residential vacation properties.2 Overall, the below information
substantiates the perceptions by residents that more part-time residents were occupying their homes in the
summer and fall of 2020 compared to 2019.
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Paid stays by visitors can be differentiated from unpaid stays, which typically means owners and/or friends/family of
owners are occupying the unit.3 In general, increases in unpaid stays decreases the availability of units for visitors and
impacts lodging tax revenue. Longer-term part-time resident use of units also impacts infrastructure, traffic, parking,
services, and many other factors, as discussed later in this report.
Eagle, Routt, Pitkin, and Summit counties collect occupancy data for approximately 67% (10,225 units) of the
professionally managed inventory in the four-county region utilizing DestiMetrics. For purposes of this study, Inntopia
compiled this information and evaluated the percentage of total stays that were due to unpaid (or owner) stays in
2019 compared to 2020. As shown below:
•

Unpaid stays as a percentage of total lodging stays showed a dramatic increase beginning in April 2020, with
increased owner stays lasting through December 2020. The large increase in April was due a combined reduction
in total stays (due to lodging occupancy restrictions beginning in March) and a rise in owners occupying their units.

•

The percentage of unpaid stays decreased in mid-summer as lodging occupancy restrictions were reduced and
more paying visitors returned, but still remained 20 percent higher through the summer than in 2019.

•

Unpaid stays were over 30 percent higher in September through November compared to 2019, contributing to
the more crowded feel of the mountain communities during this period when visitors typically decline.

Each of the four counties follow a similar pattern, just with different degrees of change throughout the year. Generally,
the trend is most pronounced in communities that are more isolated from a combination of urban center or major
interstate access (e.g., Pitkin County) and less pronounced in more readily accessible communities (e.g., Eagle and
Summit Counties).
The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021
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The Telluride area in San Miguel County followed a similar pattern as well. About 63% (over 1,000 units) of
professionally managed lodging in the Telluride area in San Miguel County is monitored through the Key Data system
#2 *excludes
properties (e.g. hotels)
by the Telluride Tourism Board. Unpaid (i.e., owner)
stayscommercial
of non-commercial
units increased from 2019 levels
Source: Inntopia Business Intelligence
beginning in June through December 2020. The percentage of units occupied by owners increased by about 40%
The Telluride
in San Miguel
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andarea
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(i.e., owner) stays of non-commercial units increased from 2019 levels beginning in June through December 2020. The percentage of
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may also be vacant or occupied by an unreported renter. This
measure is an indicator of increased owner usage rather than a definitive count.
2

WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
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Water Usage
Many communities do not track water usage as a data point for community policy and planning; one exception is Telluride.
The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021

The Telluride Tourism Board monitors wastewater data and associated daily population estimates that are provided
by the Telluride Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant. While estimating population from wastewater information
is notWater
a simple
task, with many complicated variables to consider, with diligent wastewater tracking and proper
Usage
adjustments, population estimates can be made.

The Telluride Tourism Board monitors wastewater data and associated daily population estimates that are provided by the Telluride
Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant. While estimating population from wastewater information is not a simple task, with many
Basedcomplicated
on tracking
wastewater
volumes,
the average
daily population
the Telluride
treatment
area
in October
and
variables
to consider,
with diligent
wastewater
tracking and in
proper
adjustments,
population
estimates
can be
made.

November 2020 was 25% to 31% higher than in 2019. It is estimated that 1,600 units, in addition to full-time resident
Based
on occupied
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volumes,Assuming
the averagean
daily
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in the Telluride
treatment
area in October
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2020
homes,
were
during October.
average
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2020Assuming
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above,
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that
a
significant
proportion
of
the
population
rise
was
due
to
more
owners
occupying
their
population of 4,145 people. Key Data visitation information, presented above, indicates that a significant proportion ofhomes.
the
population rise was due to more owners occupying their homes.

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN MONTHLY
POPULATION
Percentage Change in Monthly Population:
Telluride Wastewater Treatment
Area
•
2019-2020
Telluride Wastewater Treatment Area, 2019-2020
40%

31%

% change: 2019-2020

30%

25%
18%

20%
10%
0%
-10%

11%

4%

-3%
January

February

March

April
-13%

May

June

-20%

4%
July

August

-18%

September

October

November December

-21%

-30%
-40%

2%

-40%

-50%

Source: Telluride Tourism Board, Telluride Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant

#3 Source: Telluride Tourism Board, Telluride Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant

Water usage can also be used as an indicator of residential occupancy and commercial use; however, it has limited
utility to provide a clear narrative during high-irrigation periods. Comparing water usage in 2019 and 2020 for
communities within Pitkin, Summit, Eagle and Routt counties during the low irrigation months of October, November,
WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
and December exhibits a similar trend as that noted for Telluride, above.
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Residential water usage was up in most communities during this period and down among commercial users.
November had the largest increase in residential water consumption, which is typically a low visitation month.
The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021
December had the greatest drop in commercial water use.
Percentage
ChangeUSE
in Water
by Month: 2019 to 2020
PERCENTAGE CHANGE
IN WATER
BYUse
MONTH
Residential
and
Commercial
Compared
Residential & Commercial Compared • 2019-2020
Residential

40%

Oct

Commercial

Nov

Dec

Oct

Nov

Dec

% change: 2019 - 2020

30%
20%
10%
0%
-10%
-20%

Aspen

-30%

Breckenridge

Eagle River

Steamboat

Source: City of Aspen, Town of Breckenridge, Eagle River Water and Sanitation District, City of Steamboat Springs
#4 Source: City of Aspen, Town of Breckenridge, Eagle River Water and Sanitation District, City of Steamboat Springs
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Change in Resident Occupancy
of Homes
The indicators presented above do not indicate whether increased usage of homes by part-time residents will
continue. To understand future resident plans, survey respondents were asked a series of questions regarding the
estimated amount of time that they spent in their homes in each respective county in 2019 pre-COVID and 2020,
expected use this year (2021) and anticipated use in the next few years (2022-2025). This was followed by questions
on home use pattern changes that occurred in 2020 and how they expect their residency in the county to change in
coming years.
All residents on average have increased time spent in their respective county and expect to continue a higher rate
of usage of their homes. Existing and future home usage varied, however, depending upon the residency status of
respondents. This includes new residents who moved to a county in the study area within the past year, existing parttime residents, and existing full-time residents. As shown below:
•

New residents expect to reside in their respective county for close to 9-months per year on average this year
and in future years, increasing their time spent in the county pre-COVID by over 6-months. About 44% of new
residents did not spend any time in their respective county on a regular basis pre-COVID.

•

Even though 17% of part-time residents increased their time in their county home in 2020 for an average of
about 3-months, about 20% decreased their time in county since 2019. As a result, part-time residents showed
little change in their average length of stay in total last year (0.1 months). Looking ahead, however, part-time
residents expect to increase their time in their county home by about 30% (1.2-months) by 2022-2025.

•

Full-time residents showed little change in home occupancy and expect to continue to reside in county for over
11-months per year on average.

Part-time residents in five of the six counties also expect to increase their stay by about 30% by 2022-2025 from
pre-COVID stays, which is consistent with the region overall. Part-time resident respondents in Routt County, however,
indicated potentially doubling their average time in the county to about 6-months on average by 2022-2025.

ESTIMATED LENGTH OF STAY IN COUNTY HOME (MONTHS)
NEW RESIDENTS*
(<1 year)

FULL-TIME
RESIDENTS

PART-TIME
RESIDENTS

Pre-COVID

2.5

11.0

3.6

Year 2020

4.9

11.4

3.7

Current year (2021)

8.8

11.4

4.1

Future years (2022-2025)

8.9

11.2

4.8

Net change: pre-COVID to 2022-25

6.4

0.2

1.2

ESTIMATED LENGTH OF STAY

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

*New residents are differentiated from “newcomers” in that these are residents that moved within the past year. Newcomers moved within the past
two years (see definition on page 3). New residents may have spent time in the area on a regular basis as a visitor, but not a part-time or full-time
resident, which is why “pre-COVID” is not 0.
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The motivation for residents to alter their time in
TRAVEL & RESIDENCY CHANGES
the study area also varied – COVID was not the
Travel
and Residency
Related to COVID
RELATED
TO Changes
COVID
sole reason. Residents were asked whether
certain COVID-related or civil unrest factors
Move
spendbecause
more time
Move to or spend more time
in to
theorcounty
you
the county because you
could workinremotely
affected resident travel and occupancy in 2020.
could work remotely
As shown below:
tothe
or spend
time
Move to or spend moreMove
time in
county more
because
of
in therisks
county because pf
COVID contagion
COVIDd contagion risks

•

The ability to work remotely was a larger factor
Move
from
or spend
away from or spend less time
in away
an urban
area
due to
for newcomers (49%) and part-timeMove
residents
less time in an urban area
civil unrest
due to civil unrest
(36%) to spend more time in the county than
COVID contagion risks and concerns about
Spend less
time traveling
Spend less time traveling elsewhere
because
of COVID
elsewhere because of COVID
civil unrest combined.

•

Residents that increased their time in the
Part Time
Full Time
Newcomers
study area in 2020 were more likely to cite
2021 Mountain
Migration
Survey
Source:Source:
2021 Mountain
Migration
Survey
each of the below factors as influencing their
Finally,
respondents were asked whether they expect to change their residency status (e.g.,
decision. The ability to work remotely
(50%)
from part-time to full-time, full-time to part-time, leave the area, etc.) within the next three
and COVID contagion risks (44%) were
years.most
As shown below: HOW DO YOU EXPECTThe
Mountain Migration Report – May 2021
YOUR
common. Civil unrest influenced a lower
15%
• Newcomers are more
likely than other
make changes
in the coming years,
RESIDENCY
INresidents
THE to
COUNTY
TO
of respondents.
but
thedochanges
are relatively
mixed.inAbout
8% indicated
they
willthe
leave
the3 county
How
you expect
your residency
the county
to change
over
next
years? and

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

CHANGE OVER THE NEXT 3 YEARS?

16% desire to purchase a home in the county. About 18% are unsure.

56%

No Change
change
73%
Finally, respondents were asked whether they
• Most part-time residents will
remain part-time; however, about 9% desire to become
No
70%
full-time
residents.
Another
12%
are
unsure.
expect to change their residency status (e.g., from
16%
Buy home)
a homein(or
Buy a home (or another
thisanother
county
8%
• Of full-time residents,
about
plan to 4%
leave
the county and 8% desire to buy a home.
home)
in this6%
county
part-time to full-time, full-time to part-time,
8%
I willout
move
outcounty
of the
leave the area, etc.) within the next three years.
I will move
of the
Results are fairly consistent
across
allcounty
counties1%in6%
the study area, with part-time residents being
As shown below:
more likely to indicate they will become full-time residents in Grand and Routt counties.
1%
3%
2%

Sell my home
Sell
home

•

•

Newcomers are more likely than other
residents to make changes in the coming
years, but the changes are relatively mixed.
About 8% indicated they will leave the county
and 16% desire to purchase a home in the
county. About 18% are unsure.
Most part-time residents will remain part-time;
however, about 9% desire to become full-time
residents. Another 12% are unsure.

1%
1%
0%

I will become
I will become a part-time
residenta
part-time resident

4%
0%

I will become
I will become a full-time
residenta

full-time resident

9%

2%
1%
2%

Other
Other

18%
14%
12%

Unsure/still deciding
deciding
Unsure/still
0%

10%

20%

Newcomers

30%

40%

Full Time

50%

60%

70%

80%

Part Time

Source: 2021
Mountain
Migration
SurveySurvey
Source:
2021 Mountain
Migration
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•

Responses from full-time residents that rent shows the relative instability and uncertainty of
Of full-time residents, about 6% plan
to leave
renters
in the study area. Renters are much more likely to leave, desire to buy a home, or be
HOW DO YOU EXPECT YOUR RESIDENCY
uncertain of future changes.
the county and 8% desire to buy a home.

IN THE COUNTY TO CHANGE OVER THE
NEXT 3 YEARS?

How do you expect your residency in the county to change over the next 3 years?

Results are fairly consistent across all counties
in the study area, with part-time residents being
more likely to indicate they will become full-time
residents in Grand and Routt counties.

Full-time

renters
FULL-TIME RENTERS

I will move out of the county

17%
32%
No change
35%
Buy a home
Unsure/still
deciding(or another home) in this county
28%
BuyI awill
home
(or another
in county
this county
move
out home)
of the

17%

32%
Responses from full-time residents that rent shows
Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
the relative instability and uncertainty of renters
No change
35%
in the study area. Renters are much more
likely
to motivating factors for the changes or indecision noted by residents included:
The
primary
Unsure/still deciding
28%
leave, desire to buy a home, or be uncertain•of Housing reasons (30%). This encompassed both sides, from those looking to cash in,
move in, or purchase
homes
to those Migration
being unable
to afford to rent or purchase, having
future changes.
Source:
2021 Mountain
Survey
a lack of housing opportunities or inventory, and housing uncertainty and instability for
those working locally;
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The primary motivating factors for the changes or indecision noted by residents included:
•

Housing reasons (30%). This encompassed both sides, from those looking to cash in, move in, or purchase
homes to those being unable to afford to rent or purchase, having a lack of housing opportunities or inventory,
and housing uncertainty and instability for those working locally;

•

Job, retirement, age/health or other family changes (30%);

•

Undesirable changes or conditions in the county, mostly related to growth over the years (15%); and

•

Enjoyment of the area and a desire to stay (15%).

Lesser factors included financial conditions and cost of living, uncertainty about COVID and related concerns, and the
climate/cold winters.

Use of Homes

The majority of homeowners use the property themselves or for friends and family at least part, if not all, of the time.
When homes are not in use:
•

Part-time residents (24%) and newcomers (13%) are much more likely than full-time residents (3%) to lease their
homes short-term (less than one month at a time).

•

A small percentage of part-time owners rent their home mid-term for more than 30 days (4%), and a handful
lease homes long-term for 1- to 5-months.

•

Usage was similar across all counties in the study area, with the exception that part-time residents are more
likely to lease homes short-term in Pitkin County (32%) and less likely in Eagle County (11%). Mid-term was more
prominent in San Miguel County (11%).
The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021
WHEN YOU AND YOUR FRIENDS/FAMILY ARE NOT OCCUPYING
YOUR HOME, HOW IS IT TYPICALLY USED?
79%

Not occupied/vacant

72%

Rent my home short term (less than 1-month at a time)

13%

3%

24%

2%
1%
4%

Rent my home mid-term/seasonal (1- to 6-months at a time)

1%
1%
2%

Rent my home long term (more than 6-months at a time)
Always occupied, does not apply

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

83%

0%
0%

Newcomers

Full Time

Part Time

10%
14%
10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Over the next three years, another 8% of part-time owners and 4% of newcomers anticipate also renting their
homes short term.

HOW WILL THE USE OF YOUR HOME CHANGE OVER THE NEXT 3 YEARS?
#7 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

PART-TIME

FULL-TIME

NEWCOMERS

8%

1%

4%

Over the next three years, another 8% of part-time owners and 4% of newcomers anticipate also renting their homes short term.

Rent my home out short-term

How will the use of your home change over the next 3 years?
Part-time Full-time
Newcomers
Rent my home out long-term
2%
1%
Rent my home out short-term
8%
1%
4%
Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
Rent my home out long-term
2%
1%
2%

2%

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
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4

RESIDENT EMPLOYMENT
PATTERNS
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With the increase in residents occupying homes, it is important to understand whether residents
are working remotely, employed locally or retired. The source of employment can affect the

potential stability of new residents and the extent to which remote work policy changes may

impact their ability or desire to stay. It also impacts the local sustainability of businesses and their

ability to keep and attract employees if, for example, new residents with outside
employment
or– May 2021
The Mountain
Migration Report
retired part-time residents are displacing local employees that fill jobs.
Section 4 – Resident Employment Patterns

With the increase in residents occupying homes, it is important to understand whether residents are working remotely, employed
locally or retired. The source of employment can affect the potential stability of new residents and the extent to which remote work
policy changes may impact their ability or desire to stay. It also impacts the local sustainability of businesses and their ability to keep
and attract employees if, for example, new residents with outside employment or retired part-time residents are displacing local
employees that fill jobs.

Employment Status

The employment status of newcomer households is more similar to full-time resident
Employment Status
households than part-time, with about 90% of households having at least one employed person.
Theresidents
employment
of more
newcomer
moreone
similar
to full-time
resident
than part-time, with about 90% of
Part-time
arestatus
much
likelyhouseholds
to have atisleast
retired
person
in theirhouseholds
household
households
having
at
least
one
employed
person.
Part-time
residents
are
much
more
likely
to
have
at least one retired person in
than other residents.

90%

their household than other residents.

EMPLOYMENT STATUS OF Employment
RESIDENT
HOUSEHOLDS
Status
of Resident Households

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

91%

87%

Newcomers
70%

Ninety percent
of newcomer and
full-time resident
households
have at least one
employed person.

62%

29%
10%
Employed

Full Time

8%

28%

6%

Unemployed and searching for work

Retired

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey • *Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%

Employment Location
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#8 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

*Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%

WSW
Consulting;
Rees Consulting
Potential
changes
in Location
remote
working policies may affect newcomers more so than other residents. Newcomers are mostly
Employment
employed by an out-of-county employer and are less likely to be self-employed than full-time or part-time residents.
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Potential changes in remote working policies may affect newcomers more so than other residents. Newcomers are mostly employed

by an out-of-county
employer
andrelatively
are less likely
to be self-employed
than full-time
or part-time
residents.
Employment
location patterns
were
consistent
across all counties
in the
region, with
the exception that
full-time residents in Routt and Grand counties were slightly more likely to have a household member working for an
Employment
location patterns were relatively consistent across all counties in the region, with the exception that full-time residents
out-of-county
employer.
in Routt and Grand counties were slightly more likely to have a household member working for an out-of-county employer.

SOURCE OF EMPLOYMENT FOR
RESIDENTS
Source
of Employment for Residents
80%

Newcomers

70%

Full Time

Part Time

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Work for an employer in the county

Work for an out-of-county employer

Hold a seasonal job in the county

Self-employed

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey • *Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%
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#9 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
*Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%

Co

Over 50% of all households have someone working from home. Newcomers are more
likely than other residents to have a household member working from a home office.

Over fifty percent
of all households
have someone
working from home.

The majority of full-time households have at least one person who commutes to a job in
the county. With the high proportion of visitor service, retail, bar/restaurant, and lodging
jobs in the study area, not to mention construction, many full-time residents have jobs
that require at least some, if not all, of their work to occur at their place of employment.

The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021

DO RESIDENTS COMMUTE
TO A JOB
ORtoWORK
FROM
Do Residents
Commute
a Job or Work
fromHOME?
Home?
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Home office in the county

Travel to a job/office in the county
Newcomers

Full Time

Commute to an out-of-county job

Part Time

#10 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey *Multiple
• *Multiple
select
question,
meaning
percentages
add
to 100%
over 100%
select
question,
meaning
thatthat
percentages
add to
over

Most respondents expect to be able to continue working from home. About 20% indicated, however, that it depends upon work
policies of their employer. Changes in work policies is a key factor that can impact how many new and part-time residents can stay in
Most respondents
expect
befor
able
tolong.
continue working from home. About 20% indicated, however, that it depends
their respective
countyto
and
how

upon work policies of their employer. Changes in work policies is a key factor that can impact how many new and
Will Residents
Continue
to how
Worklong.
from Home in 2022-2025?
part-time residents can stay in their respective
county
and for
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WILL RESIDENTS CONTINUE TO WORK FROM HOME IN 2022-2025?
60%

50%
40%
30%

29

WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
20%
10%
0%

Yes, will work exclusively at home

Yes, will split time between home and
business/job location
Newcomers

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
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No, will no longer work at home

Full Time

It depends upon the work policies of
employer

Part Time

#11 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
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Household Income by
Employment Location
The household incomes of residents who work in local county jobs compared to residents who work for out-ofcounty employers illustrates the extreme difficulty that residents employed locally have when competing for homes
with newcomers and part-time residents. As shown below:

The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021

•

The majority of households working for county employers within the study area earn under $150,000
Income by Employment Location
perHousehold
year (70%).

•

Households
working for out-of-county employers, which predominately include newcomers and part-time
illustrates the extreme difficulty that residents employed locally have when competing for homes with newcomers and part-time
residents,
earn
over $150,000 per year (75%).
residents.mostly
As shown
below:

The household incomes of residents who work in local county jobs compared to residents who work for out-of-county employers

•

The majority of households working for county employers within the study area earn under $150,000 per year (70%).

In other words, the majority of full-time residents employed locally cannot successfully compete for housing when
• Households working for out-of-county employers, which predominately include newcomers and part-time residents, mostly
escalated demand
and$150,000
prices are
by households earning much higher incomes.
earn over
perdriven
year (75%).
In other words, the majority of full-time residents employed locally cannot successfully compete for housing when escalated
demand and prices are driven by households earning much higher incomes.

GROSS HOUSEHOLD INCOME
BY EMPLOYMENT TYPE/LOCATION
Gross Household Income by Employment Type/Location
45%
40%

% of respondents

35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

Work for County Employer
Under $50,000

$50,000 to $99,999

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
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Work for Out of County Employer
$100,000 to $149,999

County Seasonal Job

$150,000 to $199,999

Self Employed

$200,000 to $299,999

$300,000 or more

#12 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
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5

HOUSING MARKET IMPACTS
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The COVID pandemic rapidly accelerated trends that have been going on for years in amenity

rich mountain communities. Prior to COVID-19, the housing markets in the six-county study area
were already in a state of too much demand for too little supply, resulting in fast rising prices. High

part-time resident demand for homes, visitor demand for vacation rentals, and investment buyers
were all competing for the scarce housing inventory with residents who make their living locally.
The increased housing demand fueled by the ability to work from home and, to a lesser extent,

COVID fears and civil unrest, has further added to this competition, causing an explosion in home
prices and plummeting inventory.

The below chart illustrates the income disparity between full-time residents who
fill local jobs and newcomers and part-time residents, who primarily earn their
living elsewhere:
•

Close to 70% of newcomers and 80% of part-time residents have household
incomes over $150,000 per year.

•

In contrast, 60% of full-time residents earn under $150,000 in household
income per year.

The majority of full-time
residents making their
living in the county do
not have the income to
compete for housing
in the current high
competition environment.

The majority of full-time residents making their living in the county do not have
the income to compete for housing in the current high competition environment.
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GROSS HOUSEHOLD INCOME BY LENGTH OF RESIDENCY
60%

Percent of respondents

50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Newcomers
Under $50,000

Full Time

$50,000 to $99,999

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

$100,000 to $149,999

$150,000 to $199,999

Part Time
$200,000 to $299,999

$300,000 or more

#13 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

Newcomers and full-time residents are the most susceptible to housing problems related to the COVID pandemic and corresponding
high-demand and short-supply of housing. Despite their income advantage over full-time residents, about 16% of newcomers still
had severe difficulty finding a place to live. Job loss and significant rent increases were the next most common issues.
Housing Problems Affecting Respondents in 2020
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Newcomers and full-time residents are the most susceptible to housing problems related to the COVID pandemic
and corresponding high-demand and short-supply of housing. Despite their income advantage over full-time
residents, about 16% of newcomers still had severe difficulty finding a place to live. Job loss and significant rent
increases were the next most common issues.

HOUSING PROBLEMS AFFECTING RESPONDENTS IN 2020

The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021

18%
16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%
2%
0%

Miss rent or mortgage
payment(s)

Lose your job

Move when rental was
sold or converted into a
short term rental
Newcomers

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

Experience significant
rent increase

Full Time

Sell your home in the
county

Have severe difficulty
finding a place to live in
the county

Part Time

#14 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

Renters are commonly in the most unstable housing situations in these communities, as shown below. Nearly one-third had severe
difficulty finding a place to live, one-fourth lost a job, and almost one-in-five faced significant rent increase in 2020.
Housing situations
Problems Affecting
in 2020 as shown below. Nearly
Renters are commonly in the most unstable housing
in theseRenters
communities,
Full-time resident: Renters
one-third had severe difficulty finding a place to live, one-fourth lost a job, and almost one-in-five faced significant
Miss rent or mortgage payment(s)
8%
rent increase in 2020.
Lose your job
Move when rental was sold or converted into a short-term rental
Experience significant rent increase
Have severe difficulty
finding a place
to live in the county
HOUSING
PROBLEMS
AFFECTING
RENTERS

24%
8%
18%
31%

IN 2020

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

FULL-TIME RESIDENT RENTERS
Miss rent or mortgage payment(s)
Lose your job

WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting

Move when rental was sold or converted into a short-term rental

8%
24%
8%

Experience significant rent increase

18%

Have severe difficulty finding a place to live in the county

31%

35

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
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OWNERSHIP MARKET
Rapid Escalation in Sales,
Sharp Drop in Availability
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The buying
frenzyMarket
has resulted in a record-breaking year for gross sales volume and total transactions. Activity into
Ownership
2021 has not slowed down. From 2019 to 2020, transactions increased 26% and gross sales volume rose 64% in the
Rapidregion.
Escalation
in Sales,
Sharpbillion
Drop in
six-county
A total
of $13.4
in Availability
sales were logged in 2020, compared to $8.2 billion the year before. Gross
sales volume in four of the six counties increased about 50% or more.

The buying frenzy has resulted in a record-breaking year for gross sales volume and total transactions. Activity into 2021 has not
slowed down. From 2019 to 2020, transactions increased 26% and gross sales volume rose 64% in the six-county region. A total of
$13.4 billion in sales were logged in 2020, compared to $8.2 billion the year before. Gross sales volume in four of the six counties
CHANGE
increased
aboutIN
50%GROSS
or more. SALES VOLUME AND NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS

Six County Region • 2016-2020

Change in Gross Sales Volume and Number of Transactions: Six County Region

$16,000,000,000

12,000
10,000

$12,000,000,000
8,000

$10,000,000,000
$8,000,000,000

6,000

$6,000,000,000

4,000

$4,000,000,000

Total Transactions

Gross Sales Volume

$14,000,000,000

2,000

$2,000,000,000
$0

2016

2017

2018

Gross sales volume

2019

-

2020

Total transactions

Source:
Land
Title
Guarantee
#15
Source:
Land
Title
GuaranteeCompany
Company

Change in Gross Sales Volume and Number of Transactions: By County

2020 Gross Sales
% change:
Total
% change:
Volume
Transactions
2019-2020
2019-2020
GROSS SALES VOLUME & NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS
$3,493,843,331
53%
2,572
27%

CHANGE IN
Eagle County
By
County • 2019-2020

2020 GROSS
SALES VOLUME

% CHANGE:
2019-2020

TOTAL
TRANSACTIONS

% CHANGE:
2019-2020

$3,493,843,331

53%

2,572

27%

Grand County

$994,701,568

39%

2,016

15%

Pitkin County

$4,083,249,373

129%

1,028

46%

Routt County

$1,345,486,314

49%

1,883

36%

San Miguel County

$1,151,324,169

94%

811

50%

Summit County

$2,319,029,219

22%

2,800

15%

WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting

Eagle County
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With such a rapid escalation in buyer demand, the supply of homes for sale
are at record lows. Many communities are lucky if they have one month of
inventory. The buying frenzy at the start of the pandemic absorbed available
inventory faster than new units were coming onto the market.
•

“Demand is so high that
construction could not
keep up even if we had
the land capacity. ”

In Routt County during the first quarter of 2021, homes were selling
at nearly twice the rate that they have been coming available, quickly
depleting already scarce inventory.

Local Realtor

•

In Telluride, as of March 2021, only seven homes were on the market, placing availability in critical status.

•

In addition to an already depleted inventory, Grand County suffered the East Troublesome Fire in October 2020,
losing over 100 homes. While several short-term rental owners stepped up and helped house some of the
displaced residents, finding long-term replacement housing for those who lost homes has been a struggle.

The housing shortage has spurred some development activity in Eagle County in the down valley communities where
land is still available and there are approved projects. Other communities, such as Telluride, do not have that luxury.
Telluride are constrained by public lands and dramatic topography and is mostly built-out; the nearest meaningful land
available to develop is 45 minutes or more away. Pitkin County has a similar dynamic. The consensus among focus
group members from these communities is that the demand is so high, they could not keep up with the growing
housing shortage even if they had the land capacity upon which to build.

Prices at Record Highs
Housing prices in all counties are at record highs. Between 2019 and 2020, the average sale prices of all homes (single
family and multi-family combined) increased from 10% in Summit County up to of 55% in Pitkin County. These prices
continue to de-couple from those earning working wages from employment in these places.
•

In Telluride and Pitkin County, where average homes sale prices are multiple millions of dollars, fixer uppers sell for
$1 million or more.

•

Even in Grand County, which had the lowest average home sale price last year of about $670,000, only ten homes
are available on the for under $1 million.

•

It is not uncommon for properties to receive 20 offers per home; a good portion of them in cash.
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“We attempted to buy a
home in Grand County in
Oct of 2020. We offered
their asking price of
$749,000. We were one
of 7 offers, all higher than
ours. They accepted a
cash offer for $250,000
over asking.”
Full-time Resident

Workforce housing: All counties in the study area have workforce housing programs in place, with some communities having
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WORKFORCE HOUSING

All counties in the study area have workforce housing programs in place, with some communities having thousands
of homes permanently deed restricted for local workforce occupancy and/or price limited. By ensuring that a supply
of homes remain available for residents that make their living in the community, deed restrictions effectively remove
homes from the speculative buying market, meaning that residents do not have to compete with outside buyers and
that homes are protected from the resulting extreme escalation in prices, which can quickly outpace local wages.
While homes dedicated for residents working locally are needed now more than ever, the widespread consensus is
that, in this environment, the existing and currently pending supply is not nearly enough.
•

Summit County has 22 new deed restricted homes coming available. They had 66 applicants.

•

The employee housing program in Aspen has been in place since the 1970’s; they recently received 75
applications for one 1-bedroom home. They frequently have ten-times more applications than units available.

•

Many deed restrictions do not adequately address remote work.

LAND SALES

Where buyers had historically looked to build their own home as a less expensive alternative to
purchasing existing homes, this option is largely gone as well.
•

Land prices have escalated over 100% in some communities. In Aspen, a lot sells for $20 million.

•

Construction materials and labor costs have drastically increased. In Routt County, it is not
uncommon to pay $500 or more per square foot to build a home.

•

Labor is scarce. In Grand County and Telluride, contractors are commonly booked three-years
out. It is an ironic cycle – many contractors cannot hire laborers because there is no housing.

Many
contractors
cannot hire
laborers
because there
is no housing.

Full-time Residents Are Losing Ground
The demand for homes from part-time owners and other interests has long constrained the housing inventory that is
available to local workers. As shown below, only about 36% of all homes sales in 2020 were to full-time residents in the
study area. This varied from a low of 20% to a high of 50%, depending upon the county.

RESIDENCE OF BUYER
Six-County Region

RESIDENCE OF BUYERS BY COUNTY
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The percentage of homes purchased by local buyers dropped six
percentage points since 2016 in region the region – this is a loss of over
one point per year. As shown below:

Local buyers have been
losing ground for several
years, which accelerated in
most counties in 2020.

•

The largest decline occurred in Pitkin County, dropping nearly three
percentage points per year, followed by Summit County and Eagle
County. This loss accelerated in most counties in 2020.

•

Buyers from other areas in Colorado showed the largest rise in all but Pitkin and San Miguel counties, where out of
state buyers are more prominent.

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL SALES TO COUNTY RESIDENTS
2016 - 2020
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It should be noted that, although the percentage of homes sold to local residents dropped in 2020 compared to 2019, the total
number of homes sold to local residents increased in 2020 in every county in the study area, except Summit County. This is in large
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The counties in the study area have seen an exaggerated trickle-down effect during COVID due to constrained housing supplies and
2020,
the number of sales to local residents had been dropping in the study area as a whole since 2017.
fast rising prices in all counties. Where local buyers have had to compromise on their home location for years due to being priced
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The other side of the coin is “who is selling.” Real estate agents indicated that a mix of part-time and full-time
residents
have been
selling their homes, but at too slow of a pace to keep up with demand.
WSW Consulting;
Rees Consulting
•

Locals cashing out on their homes. The majority of these residents move away either by choice (e.g., to cash
out at a peak, move to warmer climates, to be nearer family, medical reasons, etc.) or because they do not have
a choice (e.g., cannot find another home). In Pitkin County, younger sellers move down valley, but older sellers
typically leave. In Eagle County, the 30% or so that stay in the county will move down valley where homes are
typically less expensive. Some are using the high prices to their advantage and retiring early.

•

Part-time owners upgrading. This includes selling ski condominiums to purchase properties in town center or
more rural areas. Or upgrading units, not necessarily location, with the intent to use it more.
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Buyer Preferences & Home Use
Real estate agents noted a shift of focus with new buyers compared to prior years.
•

More new buyers were motivated by their ability to work remotely than in the past. Many buyers during COVID
were reorienting priorities. Work from home opportunities opened up options to relocate where they wanted.
Most buyers were purchasing with the intent to use their homes, and for more time on average than in the past.
Others were coming to sample a community for a few months and see if it sticks.

•

Correspondingly, the speculative buyer, who purchased with the intent to flip or use homes solely for profit, was
not as prevalent during this migration period.

The motivation of the buyer affects the type of home product needed:
•

Fixer uppers were not preferred – most wanted turn-key homes or homes that were immediately livable.

•

Home office space was a premium.

•

Having enough room for families to live, rather than simply visit.

•

Rural and in-town locations were equally in demand.

Will the Buyer Frenzy Continue?
While the rapid rise in prices and buying frenzy mirrors the events prior to the
2007/08 recession, this market is driven by a different buyer – one who wants
to move in and use their home rather than investors. The prevalent perception
among area real estate agents was that the high-demand, short-supply
housing market is here to stay, at least for the foreseeable future:

“More to come” and
“interesting changes ahead.”
Local Real Estate Agents

•

Buyers last year were the first wave of location-neutral movers and others
that see “it can work” are continuing to come. Demand in the early part of
2021 is still accelerating.

•

The other side is shrinking supply. Despite demand remaining high, many areas are facing a stagnant market and
large drop in sales simply due to a supply problem. Some communities are already at critical low sale inventory.
In Aspen, brokers are calling homeowners asking if they want to sell to find homes. For the most part, those that
wanted to cash in have; others that might cash in are not because they will not find another home.
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The Start of a New Reality?
Many see the current boom being a start to a new reality for mountain towns, bringing some positive change, but also
increasing many historic challenges.
On the potentially positive side:
•

Rising interest from location-neutral workers to relocate to these mountain communities has the potential to
bring more economic diversification for these predominantly tourism-driven economies. New location-neutral
worker residents earn more and can spend more at local businesses. If the ability for location-neutral workers to
work from home continues, instead of leaving the community to again commute to their job, some may choose
to stay and invest locally, or start businesses, increasing the entrepreneurial potential in these communities.

•

With more residents in town to support local businesses, shifting economic priorities for some communities may
be on the horizon. Tourism marketing and expenditures focused primarily on the visitor experience may become
less of a priority. Pressure to complete capital projects supporting livability and quality-of-life improvements
will increase.

On the challenging side:
•

Finding employees to fill service jobs for residents as well as jobs geared for visitors will be increasingly difficult.
The basic human capital necessary to maintain a community will likely become even less possible. Incoming
location-neutral workers will not be filling these “local jobs” and will outcompete local workers for housing. This
hurts the ability for local businesses to find, keep, and attract employees, lowering the level and quality of services
they can provide to residents and visitors alike. This has been a struggle for resort communities for years; and is
primed to get worse, at least in the near term.

•

Barring a recession that surpasses the fall in property values seen in 2008, many do not see what could bring
affordability back for local workers.

Given these factors, businesses and communities are facing a potentially tough transition in the years ahead.
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RENTAL MARKET
The Big Picture –
From Shut Down to Frenzy

Governor Polis announced the closure of all Colorado ski areas on Saturday, March 14th, near the end of the 2019/20
season. While it caught many employees and visitors by surprise, the fortuitous timing minimally impacted the rental
market since it occurred at a time when many renters are in transition, out of work or without income for a month
or two. Communities had very few vacant long-term rental units prior to COVID. Most year-round renters remained in
their units during COVID, meaning that the availability of long-term rentals did not increase. Many seasonal workers left;
however, including J1 visa holders. As seasonal rentals were vacated, property managers responded by converting shared
bedrooms into single/couple occupancy and increased cleaning of common areas. Employers who provide housing
turned away all but their employees, unlike in typical years when they maintain full-occupancy by renting to the general
population. This contributed to a rental unit shortage.
By June, the market heated up with inquiries from people outside the community, most from urban areas, wanting
to move to the mountains. By July, rents were starting to spike above their already high levels. The frenzy continued
through the fall into winter with property managers in the six counties reporting a constant stream of inquiries. In
Summit County, a property manager who normally takes in $700/year in $30 application fees received about $4,000
from applications between October 1st and December 15th.
A Routt County property manager called the onslaught from people wanting to move to the mountains a trifecta
created by a combination of the ability to work remotely (the single biggest factor) in combination with concerns
about COVID contagion and civil unrest.

Impacts on Long-term
Rental Inventory – Gains & Losses

Although most property owners reported managing about the same number of units in 2020 as in 2019, there were
shifts in the rental inventory. Initially, there were some gains in the number of long-term rentals when the March
shutdown and cancellation of all festivals and other events fueled fears that tourism would be way down in the
summer. As such, some owners converted their short-term vacation rentals (STR’s) into long-term rentals. The local
workforce did not benefit from this increase, however, as newcomers working remotely could pay much higher rents.
The inventory of long-term rentals was reduced when some units were sold by their owners, as noted above. Rentals
were primarily purchased by new owners moving in and occupying their homes, although inventors were also active in
the market with high rents and low interest rates making it possible to cash flow units. Six 900 square foot multifamily
units in Aspen built for rentals sold at $1,800 to $1,900 per square foot and only one remained a rental unit.
One positive impact the pandemic had on the rental market was a reduction in the number of long-term rentals being
converted into short-term rentals. While the boom in the popularity of short-term rentals has negatively impacted
long-term workforce rental housing throughout the mountains in recent years, none of the property managers
interviewed reported this occurring in 2020.
The Mountain Migration Report • 2021
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Impacts on Rents – Locals Get Relief
But Market Rates Spike
The timing of the shutdown in the spring, when most leases in the mountain expire, turned out to be a stroke of luck
for many renters. With fears that tenant incomes would plummet, rents were held steady by many property owners.
At least one property owner in Telluride provided one month free. The town of Telluride provided a free month of
rent to residents in 187 town-owned rental housing in both April 2020 and January 2021, funding for which was later
provided by the Colorado Department of Local Affairs. The Town of Breckenridge forgave one month rent on about
150 Town-owned rentals if impacted by COVID and agreed to reduced payment plans if further assistance was
required. In Eagle County, all residents of Lake Creek Village Apartments received free rent in April and reduced rent in
May and June. Some property managers in Grand County and Summit County reported no increases in rents in 2020.
Rent delinquencies were not a widespread problem. Managers reported some renters had higher incomes than
typical in the spring, from a combination of unemployment, stimulus payments, and Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) payments. Rent assistance, however, was crucial for some. The Family and Intercultural Resource Center (FIRC)
in Summit County, with funds from the Colorado Department of Local Affairs and significant contributions from
local governments, provided rental assistance countywide. According to one property manager in Grand County,
some renters took advantage of the eviction moratorium imposed in Colorado and chose not to pay rent, but most
remained current with their payments.
Since these early concerns, market rents have skyrocketed beyond the level
that most locally employed renters can afford. In 2020 increases in market rents
ranged from about 20% to 40% on units that turned over, and on some where
leases were renewed. Rent escalations were highest among the larger, family
friendly, more expensive homes. While rents have long been high in Colorado’s ski
towns, this rate of increase was unprecedented. Some examples:

Market rents
skyrocketed 20% to
40% higher in 2020.

•

In Aspen, a three-bedroom townhome was renting for $6,800/month. When it turned over in October 2020, the
rent was raised to $10,000/month.

•

In Summit County, a unit at $6,000 was increased to $8,000/month, one at $4,500 went to $6,000, and another
at $3,900/month for one year went to $6,200/month for the ski season.

The overall market rent for listings in February and March in the six counties averaged $3,245 per month for all types
of units combined. This includes rentals for high-end properties as well as those for workers. While rents have long
been curtailed in the mountain towns by the dominance of low wage tourism-based jobs, the influx of renters who
work remotely has clearly increased rates far beyond levels that local wage earners can pay. As shown below:
•

Rents are highest in Pitkin County, followed by San Miguel County.

•

Rates are similar among Eagle, Routt,
and Summit counties.

•

Rents are lowest in Grand County.
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Rents now average over $5,000 per month for single family homes. Condominiums average over $3,000 per month in most of the
region.

Rents now average over $5,000 per month for single
family
Condominiums
Average
Renthomes.
by Unit Type
and County average over $3,000 per month in
most of the region.
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Rental Availability – What Availability?

In February and March 2020, tracking of online listings in the six counties identified a total of 260 listings for long-term units. This
equated to an extremely low vacancy rate of approximately 1.5%.
Some property managers stopped accepting inquiries. Others created waitlists for the first time. As of May 2021, there are no signs
that the market is softening.
Rental Listings – Mar/Apr 20202

WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
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Rental Availability – What Availability?
In February and March 2020, tracking of online listings in the six counties identified a total of 260 listings for long-term
units. This equated to an extremely low vacancy rate of approximately 1.5%.
Some property managers stopped accepting inquiries. Others created waitlists for the first time. As of May 2021,
there were no signs that the market was softening.

RENTAL LISTINGS
March & April 2020
COUNTY

APARTMENT*

CONDO SINGLE FAMILY

# OF LISTINGS

RENT RANGE

Eagle

$2,392

$3,227

$3,963

82

$1,100-$7,000

Grand

$2,227

$1,955

$1,200

26

$875-$6,000

Pitkin

$2,388

$4,478

$7,000

43 $1,500-$10,000

Routt

$1,588

$3,209

$5,583

26

$1,450-$7,500

San Miguel

$1,000

$3,753

$8,000

10

$1,000-$8,000

Summit

$1,787

$2,698

$5,436

73 $1,392-$10,000

Grand Total

$2,119

$3,207

$5,464

260

Consultant search of local and online for rent listings, February and March 2021
*Apartment refers to a unit in an apartment building in which all units are owned by one owner and individual units cannot be sold separately.
This is differentiated from a condo, which are homes that can be individually owned and sold, meaning that one building may have a different
owner for each unit.

Demand remained high for all types of rental units. Some property managers reported than one bedroom and other
small units were the most sought after by established locals because, with concerns about COVID contagion, it was
important to have few or no roommates. Larger units were very popular, however, with newcomers moving in since
many were families.
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Short-Term & Mid-Term Rentals
While some short-term rentals were converted into long-term rentals during the shutdown, other noteworthy
changes include:
•

Visitors stayed longer. Units that typically rented for several days to a week were often rented for several weeks.

•

Owners moved into their short-term rentals, removing them from the rental pool. A manager of high-end STR’s
in the Vail area reported that owners moved into three of their 14 units for most of 2020.

•

The mid-term (i.e, a one- to five-month rental) and seasonal rental market expanded. A Summit County manager
provided an example of a couple from New York who spent the summer on Nantucket, fall in New England, and ski
season in Breckenridge.

•

Cost was not an issue for many short- and mid-term renters. A Steamboat manager reported that the highest
increase in rents occurred among the most expensive units.

•

Size was important. Demand for large homes with enough bedrooms to accommodate extended families
became exceptionally strong.

Renter Profiles –
Demographics Changing
As reported by property managers, newcomers in 2020 differed from long-term residents in several ways, including
their commitment to community. They remained flexible by avoiding long-term commitments while testing living in
the mountains and exploring how long they might be able to work remotely. They often kept their homes elsewhere.
They rented to stay flexible and to avoid maintenance responsibilities.
Many new rental households included children. Historically, renters moving to mountain ski towns have been singles
and younger couples who do not have children until after becoming established in communities. The new renters are
generally older (30’s and 40’s), well established in their careers, and have children.
The characteristic of new renters that stands out most to property managers is their wealth. The income levels of
newcomers are much higher than renters who have moved to the mountains in the past. As one property manager
said, “Even young families with children have tons of money.”
The increase in rents and lack of inventory led some long-time residents to move away. Residents who sold homes
when prices climbed were seldom able to find a rental that would allow them to stay in their communities. As one
property manager in Telluride said, “Our community has moved to Ridgway.”
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6

SERVICES NEEDS
AND PREFERENCES
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Planning for the future provision of community, business and home services necessitates

understanding their importance to, usage of, and quality for residents needing and desiring
the services.

This section evaluates whether newcomers, full-time and part-time residents have varying

service needs or priorities. If increased use of properties continues, this information can help
communities plan for future needs.

Community Services & Amenities
The importance that residents place on community services is directly related to how often they use those services,
with a few exceptions.
In the time of COVID, health care/hospital ranked the most important community service of 13 services.
COVID increased the awareness of limitations in health care availability, such as the lack of ICU beds in many
mountain hospitals.
Town and county parks were also very important to residents as were cultural events/entertainment.
Full-time residents generally place greater importance on, and more often use, most community services. The
exceptions are cultural events/entertainment, religious/church services and public transit, which part-time residents
The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021
use more frequently than full-time residents.
Importance of Community Services
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Full-time residents more often use health care, schools, childcare, the library, recreation programs and parks than do part-time
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Full-time residents more often use health care, schools, childcare, the library, recreation programs and parks than
do part-time residents. There were a few differences between newcomers and long-timers in importance placed on
community services. The key difference was the greater importance long-timers placed on senior services (in home
care, meals on wheels, transit service, senior center, etc.), church services, food banks, and emergency housing or
utility assistance.
Also, this use of community services is similar among newcomers and long-timers. An interesting difference is that
newcomers placed slightly more importance on public transit and used it more often than long-timers.
Differences between full-time owners and renters are minimal, although renters place greater importance on three
community services – housing or utility assistance, food bank, and public transit, which they use more often than
owners.
There was only slight variation in the importance placed on community services among the six counties. Some
nuances include:
•

San Miguel County residents rated town/county parks, recreation programs, the library, and public schools
the highest.

•

Pitkin County residents placed greater importance on public transit and cultural events and entertainment.

Business Services
As with community services, newcomers and long-timers place a similar level of importance on business services.
The most notable difference was in professional services (printing, book keeping, computer support, tax support,
etc.), these were less important to newcomers who are less likely to be self-employed and more likely to work for outof-county employers for which this business support may be provided elsewhere. Quality high speed internet was
rated as the most important service by both long-timers and newcomers.

IMPORTANCE OF BUSINESS SERVICES
Newcomers & Long-timers Compared
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There were also few differences between full and part-time residents, except for professional services, which are
more important to and used more often by full-time residents, and airport shuttles, which are more important to
part-time residents.
The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021

IMPORTANCE OF BUSINESS SERVICES
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There are no notable differences between full-time owners and renters. Nor were there many differences based on the source of

Results
were –also
veryfor
similar
among
theout-of-county
six countiesemployers
except for
the little
quality
of commercial flights, which rated lower in
employment
working
in-county
versus
made
difference.
in Grand County (no commercial airport) and San Miguel County (small aircraft in good weather).
Results were also very similar among the six counties except for the quality of commercial flights, which rated lower in in Grand
County (no commercial airport) and San Miguel County (small aircraft in good weather).
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Home Services
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The influx of new residents will require more of the same services in about the same relative proportion. The
Home Services
frequency by which newcomers and long-timers used home services was very similar.

The influx of new residents will require more of the same services in about the same relative proportion. The frequency by which
newcomers and long-timers use home services is very similar.

USE OF HOME SERVICES
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full-time residents more often use child-related and pet care services. Full-time homeowners used all of the seven
than renters.
home services tested more than renters.
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Use of home services is similar among the six counties. Primary differences include:
•

Pitkin County residents more often use services related to home upkeep and are less likely to use home education services.

•

Summit County residents more often use landscaping services.
Home Services Used by County
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Use of home services is similar among the six counties. Primary differences include:
•
•

Pitkin County residents more often use services related to home upkeep and are less likely to use home
education services.
Summit County residents more often use landscaping services.
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Other Services

Other Services

When asked to write in other services used, most responses fell into the following categories:

• Grocery stores with comments focusing on need for additional and lower cost stores
• Home
maintenance
and repair
When asked
to write
in other services
used, most responses fell into the following categories:
• Snow removal
• Restaurants and food/restaurant delivery

•

Grocery stores with comments focusing on need for additional and lower cost stores

•

Home maintenance and repair

•

Snow removal

•

Restaurants and food/restaurant delivery

•

Cell phones, with remarks about poor/worsening coverage in Summit County

•

Home health care

•

Wellness and spa services

•

Veterinary and pet care services

•

Property management

•

Auto repair

•

Law enforcement with protection of homes and cars in parking lots

WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
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QUALITY OF LIFE
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With currently only 50% of housing units in the study area being occupied by full-time residents,
the influx of more owners and visitors staying in part-time homes and short- and mid-term

accommodations can, in theory, allow the population in the area to double overnight. This does
not include visitors that may be in commercial (hotel) lodging units. When stays were extended

over longer periods of time during COVID, the stress on the community and infrastructure was
felt by all, as indicated in this section.

Factors Influencing Community Choice
Safety and security, sense of community, and skiing quality and/or access topped the list in importance overall
when choosing where to live among nine attributes offered. There was little difference between long-timers and
newcomers; however, the size of community and the quality of/access to the backcountry were more important to
long-time residents.

The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021

COMMUNITY ATTRIBUTES BY LENGTH OF RESIDENCY
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COMMUNITY ATTRIBUTES FULL VS PART-TIME

Community Attributes, Full vs Part-time

Sense of community
Safety/security
Size of community
Skiing - quality and/or access
Cost of housing
Backcountry - quality and/or access
Arts/music/entertainment/culture
WSW
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owners and
renters were similar in the relative ranking they placed on community attributes when they chose
where
live. In general, owners rated most considerations higher. One exception -- renters scored the cost of housing slightly higher than

Full-time owners and renters were similar in the relative ranking they placed on community attributes when they
chose where to live. In general, owners rated most considerations higher. One exception – renters scored the cost of
housing slightly higher than owners. Among part-time residents, renters ranked the cost of housing, safety/security,
and proximity to an airport higher than owners.
Ratings were similar among the six counties. Notable exceptions included:
•

Proximity to Denver/the Front Range were more important for residents in Grand and Summit counties.

•

Proximity to an airport was more important for Pitkin County residents.

•

While differences by county in the importance of the cost of housing were slight, it was most important for
residents of Grand County, which has the lowest housing costs of the six counties, and least important in Pitkin
County, where housing costs are the highest.
The Mountain Migration Report – May 2021
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Community Impacts in 2020
Since COVID, mountain residents noticed many changes in their communities and far more residents perceived the changes to be
more negative than positive. The perceptions about the impacts of this year provide a glimpse into the future of these communities,
whether or not the current influx of new residents and part-time residents are here to stay. These communities have been
discovered, and will continue to attract new residents. Learning from this experience and working to address the negative impacts
can only better prepare these communities for what is on the horizon.

Community Impacts in 2020

As shown
below, an residents
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Since COVID,
mountain
noticed
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Far more residents perceived the changes to be more negative than positive.
environmental impacts, quality of life, and parking were worse.
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The perceptions about the impacts of this year provide a glimpse into the future
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66
WSWresidents
Consulting; Rees
part-time
are Consulting
here to stay. These communities have been discovered,
to be more negative
and will continue to attract new residents. Learning from this experience
than positive.
and working to address the negative impacts can only better prepare these
communities for what is on the horizon.

As shown below, an overwhelming percentage of respondents felt that housing availability, housing affordability, and
crowds in the backcountry were worse than before the migration began. About 50% of respondents felt that each of
traffic congestion, environmental impacts, quality of life, and parking were worse.
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OBSERVED CHANGES IN 2020

Observed Changes in 2020
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Perceptions about crowds in the backcountry were also so negative as to indicate actions to correct the problem (additional
restrictions/limits on access and use) could have support among residents. The impacts of the migration on recreation are worthy
of study, and are largely beyond the scope of this report.

Com
find

Long-time residents (>10 years) perceived changes to be worse than newcomers, which is not surprising given their greater
knowledge about pre-2020 conditions. Long-time residents were much more likely to feel their quality of life had worsened. They
were in close alignment, however, in their perceptions about housing affordability and availability regardless of when they moved to
their mountain community.
Worse in the Past Year

WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
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Perceptions about crowds in the backcountry were also so negative as to indicate actions to correct the problem
(additional restrictions/limits on access and use) could have support among residents. The impacts of the migration
on recreation are worthy of further study.
Long-time residents (>10 years) perceived changes to be worse than newcomers, which is not surprising given their
greater knowledge about pre-2020 conditions. Long-time residents were much more likely to feel their quality of life
had worsened. They were in close alignment, however, in their perceptions about housing affordability and availability
regardless of when they moved to their mountain community.
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Part-time residents more often noticed no change in the past year.
Full-time owners and renters were generally comparable in terms of how they felt about changes in the past year.
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housing affordability, and crowds in the backcountry were the top three concerns. Residents in Pitkin County, however,
were less likely to indicate worsening among all factors, whereas San Miguel County residents noticed the highest
overall level of negative change.
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The survey also asked a write-in question, “Are there other changes you feel have occurred that affect your quality of life in the
community? Nearly 1,900 responses were received in the following categories:
•

742 related to crowds -- “too many visitors”, “too many people” and the impacts created by crowds throughout the

community
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The survey also asked a write-in question, “Are there other changes you feel have occurred that affect your quality of
life in the community? Nearly 1,900* responses were received in the following categories:
•

742 related to crowds -- “too many visitors”, “too many people” and the impacts created by crowds throughout
the community and back country. Numerous respondents commented on the behavior of visitors and
newcomers, calling it rude, insensitive to locals, and disrespectful.

•

542 about COVID that revealed much division on how the pandemic was managed. Some complained about
masks mandates while others expressed concerns about how people, visitors especially, did not wear masks or
practice social distancing.

•

236 on housing, the cost of living and short-term rentals focused primarily on escalating housing costs, and the
impacts of short-term rentals on rents and neighborhoods.

•

91 about services, particularly the lack of availability and the high cost of groceries and lack of adequate childcare.

•

60 on the environment with many expressing concerns about wildfire, especially the East Troublesome fire in
Grand County, litter and damage in the backcountry, and an increase in dog waste.

•

200+ on government, development, jobs and how difficult it is to find employees, more traffic, increasing crime
and health (lack of services and impacts of the pandemic on mental health).

*Baseline data for this report is available upon request only to CAST and NWCCOG member jurisdictions.
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More residents spending time in their mountain towns should improve the financial stability of community
organizations or the type of organizations that get financial support. The demographic shift may have other impacts
on these organizations, especially those who address community-support needs.
•

Full-time residents support more community organizations than part-time residents with donations,
volunteering time and attending events. While the dollar value of donations may be similar between full and parttime residents, spending more time in mountain communities should result in community organizations receiving
more financial support.

•

The percentage of full-time residents that volunteer time far surpasses part-time residents, lending needed
hands to help organizations undertake tasks and programs. In communities with a small full-time resident base,
finding volunteer community participants is often a challenge.

•

Even though their incomes are lower, renters tend to support almost as many organizations as owners.

NUMBER OF ORGANIZATIONS SUPPORTED
AVERAGE # SUPPORTED

FULL-TIME

PART-TIME

Donations

3.4

1.6

Volunteering Time

1.6

0.3

Attendance at Events

3.1

1.7

% PROVIDING NO SUPPORT

FULL-TIME

PART-TIME

Donations

16%

32%

Volunteering Time

33%

81%

Attendance at Events

19%

36%

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey

Nonprofit and other community organizations need to reach out to newer residents for support. There is a clear
relationship between the amount of support given and the length of residency. Long-term residents (> 10 years)
donate to four times as many community organizations than newcomers, and also volunteer and attend more events.
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The near-term future looks good for community organizations.
About half of residents, both full and part-time, will continue to support at the same levels as in the past and roughly onethird
will increase
donations and/or volunteer time.
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• Newcomers, however, plan to increase both donations and volunteer time, indicating interest in investing more time and
•

The near-term future looks good for community organizations.
•

About half of residents, both full and part-time, will continue to support at the same levels as in the past and
roughly one-third will increase donations and/or volunteer time.

•

Newcomers, however, plan to increase both donations and volunteer time, indicating interest in investing more
time and resources in their community.

•

Relatively few residents plan to decrease their support in the next two to three years; renters are more likely than
owners to provide lower levels of support in the future.

SUPPORT OVER THE NEXT 2 TO 3 YEARS
FULL-TIME

PART-TIME

NEWCOMERS

LONG-TIMERS

Stay the same

50%

52%

26%

53%

Increase donations

35%

43%

60%

34%

Increase volunteer time

39%

25%

57%

32%

Decrease donations

4%

1%

2%

4%

Decrease volunteer time

3%

1%

1%

3%

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
*Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%

Support for community organizations varies by county. The number of organizations receiving support through
donations and time are highest in Routt and San Miguel counties; attendance at events is highest in San Miguel
County. Fewer organizations receive support on average in Grand and Summit counties.

AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORGANIZATIONS SUPPORTED BY COUNTY
EAGLE

GRAND

PITKIN

ROUTT

SAN MIGUEL

SUMMIT

Donations

3.1

2.2

3.2

4.1

3.7

2.5

Volunteering Time

1.4

1.1

1.2

1.5

1.7

1.2

Attendance at Events

2.9

2.1

2.7

2.9

4.1

2.5

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
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SCHOOL ENROLLMENT
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The K-12 education system in all counties in the study area underwent significant challenges and

changes under the COVID pandemic, as did schools throughout the country. Many schools in the
study area experienced a surge of inquiries into new enrollment and programs over the summer
of 2020 from newcomers and from parents of existing students interested in COVID protocols,
but most schools had actual fall enrollments that were lower than in 2019, primarily due to
concerns about COVID transmissions.

Being located in resort areas, most schools are used to a lot of in- and-out-migration of students
at different times of the year, with part-time or new residents arriving and enrolled students

moving or leaving. This year also had increased incidence of parents undertaking homeschooling
or enrolling in online education programs from other schools, rather than enrolling locally, given
the variety of options. Most schools in the study region implemented online learning platforms

and hybrid online and classroom programs. A handful kept schools open for full-time classroom
learning from the start.

This section presents information on school enrollment by residents in the study area and
planned enrollment for the next 2021/2022 school year. The scope of this study did not

differentiate between school systems within the studied communities, or compare these to

schools in the specific communities from which new residents came or in which some part-time
residents enrolled their children. A number of the communities in the study area also have highend private school options. The study did not differentiate between these and the public school
system, but rather asked about public and private enrollment generally.

For the most part, residents that are currently enrolled in local schools indicated that they will

again enroll in 2021/2022, with many home-schooled children likely returning to the local school
system. A few respondents remain undecided about future plans.

Current School Enrollment
About one-third of survey respondents had at least one school-aged child in
their household.
•

Newcomers and full-time residents are similarly as likely to have
children, but newcomers were more likely to have young children
between 0 and pre-K.

•

Part-time residents that have children are likely to have older children.
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likely to have children, but
newcomers were more
likely to have young children
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The near-term future looks good for school districts.
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HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN
BY RESIDENCY
Households With Children by Residency
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

No

Yes, age 0 through pre-K
Newcomers

Full Time

Yes, grade K-12

Part Time

#38 Source:
2021meaning
Mountainthat
Migration
Survey add to over 100%
Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey • *Multiple select
question,
percentages
*Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%

Full-time residents are likely to enroll their children in local schools. Part-time residents are likely to enroll their children outside of

Full-time
are likely have
to enroll
their
children in local schools. Part-time residents are likely to enroll their children
theresidents
county. Newcomers
mixed
enrollment.
outside of the county. Newcomers have mixed enrollment.
The vast majority of newcomers that have children enrolled locally are full-time residents. Newcomers with children enrolled
outside of the county (29%) may be less likely to stay in the area.

The vast majority of newcomers that have children enrolled locally are full-time residents. Newcomers with children
Location
of K-12
School
Enrollment
enrolled outside of the county (29%) may be
less likely
to stay
in the
area. by Residency

LOCATION OF K-12 SCHOOL ENROLLMENT BY RESIDENCY
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100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%

79

WSW
Consulting; Rees Consulting
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Enrolled in a K-12 public school in the Enrolled in a K-12 private or non-profit
county
school in the county
Newcomers

Full Time

Home schooled

Enrolled in a K-12 school outside of
the county

Part Time

Source:
2021 Mountain
Migration
Survey add to over 100%
Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey • *Multiple#39
select
question,
meaning that
percentages
*Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%

Future School Enrollment
Residents report little change in expected K-12 enrollment for 2021-2202. The slight decline in full-time resident enrollment is
mostly due to students graduating or households moving out of the county. About 5% of residents are unsure about their plans.
K-12 Enrollment Plans for 2021/2022 School Year by Residency

WSW Consulting; Rees Consulting
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Future School Enrollment
Residents report little change in expected K-12 enrollment for 2021-2202. The slight decline in full-time resident
enrollment is mostly due to students graduating or households moving out of the county. About 5% of residents are
unsure about their plans.
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K-12 ENROLLMENT PLANS FOR 2021/2022 SCHOOL YEAR BY RESIDENCY

100%

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Yes - public

Yes - private or non-profit
Newcomers

No
Full Time

Unsure

Part Time

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey • *Multiple#40
select
question,
meaning that
percentages
Source:
2021 Mountain
Migration
Survey add to over 100%
*Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%

Evaluating future enrollment plans by current enrollment status shows that:
• future
Currently
enrolled families
largely enrollment
stay enrolled;status shows that:
Evaluating
enrollment
plans bywill
current
•

The majority of students that are home schooled will enroll locally;

•

About 5% of residents are unsure. Residents with home schooled children are the most uncertain.

•

Currently
enrolled
will largely
stay
enrolled;
• A handful
offamilies
out of county
enrollees
will
enroll locally (10%); and

•

The majority of students that are home schooled will enroll locally;

•

A handful of out of county enrollees will enroll locally (10%); and

•

About 5% of residents are unsure. Residents with home schooled children are the most uncertain.
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K-12 ENROLLMENT PLANS FOR 2021/2022 SCHOOL YEAR
BY CURRENT ENROLLMENT
STATUS
K-12 Enrollment Plans
for 2021/2022 School Year by Current Enrollment Status
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100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Yes - public

Yes - private or non-profit
Enrolled in county (public or private)

No
Home schooled

Unsure

Enrolled outside of county

Source:
2021 Mountain
Migration
Survey add to over 100%
Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey • *Multiple#41
select
question,
meaning that
percentages
*Multiple select question, meaning that percentages add to over 100%

The vast majority of families that are not enrolling their children locally or are unsure reported that they live elsewhere and will
continue to do so, have children that are graduating from the K-12 system, and/or are moving out of the county (80%). Less common
reasons include:
•

Concerns over the quality of education, including curriculum diversity and options, instruction methods, and quality of online
programs offered (10%).

•

Preference for homeschooling in general (5%).

•

Frustration with COVID restrictions, mostly desiring classes to again be full-time, mask-free, and uninterrupted by
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The vast majority of families that are not enrolling their children locally or are unsure reported that they live elsewhere
and will continue to do so, have children that are graduating from the K-12 system, and/or are moving out of the
county (80%). Less common reasons include:
•

Concerns over the quality of education, including curriculum diversity and options, instruction methods, and
quality of online programs offered (10%).

•

Preference for homeschooling in general (5%).

•

Frustration with COVID restrictions, mostly desiring classes to again be full-time, mask-free, and uninterrupted
by quarantines (5%).

Regarding pre-K enrollment plans for residents with younger children:
•

About three-fourths of full-time residents stated they will enroll their children in either a public or private/nonprofit pre-K program.

•

Newcomers were mixed and part-time residents were predominately not interested in local programs.

•

Respondents selecting “other” indicated that their children will be enrolled in kindergarten, day care, or home
schooled, that they are still exploring options, or that they cannot find options locally.
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PRE-K ENROLLMENT PLANS FOR 2021/2022 SCHOOL YEAR
BY RESIDENCY
Pre-K Enrollment Plans for 2021/2022 School Year by Residency

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

No

Yes - a private or non-profit early
childhood education center
Newcomers

Full Time

Yes - public pre-K education

Other, please specify below

Part Time

Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
#42 Source: 2021 Mountain Migration Survey
*Multiple select question, meaning that percentages
addquestion,
to over 100%
*Multiple select
meaning that percentages add to over 100%
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10
NEXT STEPS
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This section presents several suggestions from the consultants, WSW Consulting, Inc.
and Rees Consulting, Inc., for possible next steps.

Motivate to Take Action Together

The impacts that amenity-rich mountain communities have felt from the recent COVID-accelerated migration is real.
This report has shown significant impacts on housing availability and prices first and foremost, but also community
services, outdoor recreation, and quality of life. Whether the changes felt now are here to stay, or will scale down
before slowly ramping back up again, this past year has given the mountain communities a glimpse of the future.
What is clear is that the impacts are not isolated to some communities over others. All mountain communities in
this study experienced many of the same impacts at similar scales. With wide recognition of the shared impacts,
now seems ripe for the mountain communities and regions to increase their capacity to work together and address
common solutions. Through collective action on creative and bold initiatives it is hoped that observed and pending
changes can be leveraged into positive opportunities for improvement.
Much expertise exists across the study region in implementing local resident and employee housing programs;
however, many communities recognize that more innovative tools are needed to address the mountain migration
challenge. The below suggestions present a few ideas for strengthening some existing tools and exploring new
options to effect the greater local, regional, and larger changes needed to address the mountain migration challenge.

Collaborate on Larger Policy Changes
Amenity-rich communities throughout the state should collaborate to change limiting federal and state of Colorado
policies and statutes and open up more opportunities for communities to address impacts.

STATE HOUSING FINANCING PROGRAMS

Allow state resources to serve higher income households by increasing Area Median Income (AMI) thresholds.
Current programs are limited primarily to households earning 80% or less of the area median income. Most
households earning 200% AMI or more are now struggling to afford homes.

SHORT-TERM RENTALS

Tax residential units that are used as short-term rentals at the higher commercial property tax rate. Likewise, require
short-term rentals to meet the same public safety standards as commercial hotel and lodge properties.

REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAXES

Unlock a known tool for creating revenue from overheated real estate sales to mitigate the impacts. Allow
municipalities and counties to adopt new real estate transfer taxes. This provides a significant and flexible source of
revenue for communities to apply toward housing programs.
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VACANT HOME IMPACTS

Generate additional revenue options for communities to address the shortage of housing for local residents and
employees. Examples may include allowing a vacancy tax for homes that are underutilized and charging part time
(second) homes a higher residential property tax rate than homes occupied as a primary residence.

CONDOMINIUMS AND MIXED-USE

Lobby to remove construction financing and buyer lending impediments on condominiums and mixed-use
construction. Residential units above commercial in downtown areas help communities with limited land increase
residential densities and provide options for workers to be near jobs. Condominiums provide more affordable home
options, but only if purchasers can acquire loans.

STATE OWNED LANDS

Lobby the state to inventory all state public lands for housing suitability and make excess state land available for local
resident and employee housing. Help connect the communities where suitable state lands are located with affordable
housing developers to produce the housing needed by local residents and employees.

Explore Local & Regional Actions
Many tried and innovative tools exist and are used by various communities. Every community that is already involved
in housing needs to review policies and be sure they are using every available tool as robustly as they can. Some
suggestions to enhance community housing programs include:

REGIONAL AND LOCAL PARTNERSHIPS
•

Develop regional partnerships that cooperatively allocate available resources for shared housing problems.

•

Optimize the efficient use of resources by reducing situations where multiple agencies provide the same housing
services, particularly when they end up competing with each other.

•

Generate an environment where businesses, government, local and regional organizations, and the private
sector can cooperatively work together and creatively address local resident and employee housing needs.

LOCAL EMPLOYEE DEED RESTRICTIONS

Include provisions in deed restrictions that permanently limit the occupancy of homes to persons who are employed
by a local business or in a local position serving the community. This is especially important for deed restrictions that
do not have income limits. The objective is to create a secondary real estate market of deed-restricted homes that
are occupied as a primary residence by local employees, thereby eliminating the competition from higher-income
out-of-area buyers.

PURCHASE DEED RESTRICTIONS ON EXISTING HOMES

Prepare a deed restriction purchase program with readiness to respond if opportunities arise. This means having
funds available to purchase existing homes, then permanently deed restricting the homes for occupancy by local
employees. This program recognizes that preserving existing homes for permanent resident occupancy is a
necessary compliment to new construction in mountain communities to meet housing needs.
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ADOPT OR INCREASE RESIDENTIAL LINKAGE PROGRAMS

Mitigate workforce housing demand generated by residential construction. This can be done through residential
linkage programs, which require new construction to pay a fee, or build below market housing, to compensate for the
housing needed by workers filling jobs demanded by new residences and their occupants.

MID-TERM RENTALS

Homes rented for one- up to five-months increased significantly during COVID and contributed to the highest
increase in market rents ever experienced in Colorado mountain towns. Mid-term rentals, however, are not subject to
short-term rental limitations that communities may have in place. Eliminate this loophole by addressing the mid-term
leasing trend through permitting/licensing, taxation, and restrictions on the number and location of mid-term rentals
similar to those imposed in some communities on short-term rentals.

REALLOCATE FUNDS TO HOUSING

Reallocate funds from other priorities, for example marketing and tourism promotion, to housing. This includes
paying for employee housing out of enterprise funds for employees of those services.

RENTAL HOUSING STOCK
•

Preserve existing and create new rental housing for local employees.

•

Take advantage of the recent passage of HB 21-1117 in May 2021 by adopting inclusionary zoning standards
that require a portion of new or redeveloped rentals be priced affordable for local employees.

BALLOT INITIATIVES

Consider ballot initiatives to fund housing building upon the lessons learned in communities where taxes for housing
have been approved in recent years. With the gap between market housing prices and the prices affordable for local
wage earners now much wider than pre-COVID, additional sources of revenue are needed.

CONSTRUCTION LABOR SHORTAGE

Explore options for addressing the shortage in construction labor. Building homes affordable for the local workforce
will be difficult to achieve even if funding for housing is significantly increased. Examples include:
•

Promoting vocational/technical education.

•

Creating apprenticeship programs.

•

Employing residential construction crews for housing construction and maintenance, such as through a housing
authority.

PUBLIC LANDS FOR LOCAL RESIDENT AND EMPLOYEE HOUSING
•

Communities and regions should review existing federal, state, and local public lands, including those owned by
school districts, for housing suitability and conduct land swaps as needed to open up more developable land for
housing.

•

Communities should purchase land, master plan to drive a vision, then seek partners to develop the property.

The Mountain Migration Report • 2021

Next Steps | 63

EMBRACE DENSITY FOR LOCAL EMPLOYEE HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS

The development of housing for local residents and employees should no longer been seen as negotiable in the
mountain communities severely impacted by the COVID migration. This includes negotiations that typically occur
during the discretionary development approval process, too often resulting in fewer homes for local employees than
zoning or land capacity allows, and sometimes halting projects altogether. Communities should evolve zoning and
policies to reflect this necessity by, for example:
•

Allowing attached and multi-family homes in all residential zones. Some areas have banned single-family home
zoning altogether (e.g., Oregon).

•

Ensuring accessory dwelling units (ADUs) are permitted in all zones, ideally with local employee occupancy
requirements. Work with homeowner’s associations to ensure bylaws also permit ADUs.

•

Establishing permitted zoning densities and density bonuses that incentivize housing for local employees as
by-right, rather than discretionary, standards. This means that if the proposed density is within established
guidelines, then the density is approved; it is not a topic to be negotiated in the discretionary approval process.
By-right will ideally be applied to other development design standards to streamline the review process and
expedite approval.

•

Revisiting zoning density limits overall, either increasing permitted residential densities where appropriate, or
providing increased density bonus incentives for projects providing local employee housing.

•

With any areas that are upzoned to higher densities, pair this with an inclusionary zoning requirement, which will
ensure that a good portion of the new development will be permanently deed restricted for local employees.

When completing comprehensive and land use plans to guide your community’s future:
•

Consider the shift toward more people working in homes and that relatively less office space will be necessary.

•

Recognize that significant increases in population are possible without additional new development when so
many homes are used for part-time occupancy.

•

Commit to “housing as infrastructure” as a necessary component, like clean water and sanitation, for the health
of any community. Defining housing for local employees as necessary infrastructure can help generate support
for governments and others to be involved in and allocate monies toward housing in support of the public health,
safety, and welfare.

Better track the use and occupancy of homes by increasing the utilization of existing information. This information is
invaluable to planning and community development departments to track progress and changes. Some suggested
monitoring methods include:

TRACK THE USE/OCCUPANCY OF RESIDENTIAL UNITS

Systems could be created to continuously track residential use, possibly using a combination of Assessor data, rental
licenses, changes in utility accounts, title company cooperation, visitor tracking services, and property manager
assistance. Waiting for Census data to be released every 10 years and relying upon the American Community Survey
in the interim is not adequate for understanding rapidly changing conditions and adjusting service delivery.
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UNDERSTAND POPULATION FLUCTUATIONS
•

Enhance water use/wastewater flow monitoring systems and data interpretation to continually measure the
number of persons in the area. Communities can track water use and wastewater to monitor changes with little
lag time. This will require most to enhance their tracking/billing systems to:

•

Easily distinguish between residential and commercial accounts;

•

Track consistently by category and adjust for any changes in tracking systems over time to ensure comparable
results year-to-year;

•

Adjust for anomalies when they occur due to events like water line breaks, changing of meters, taking systems off
line for improvements, garbage disposal use (for wastewater), etc.

•

Track changes in use by accounts when they change from one owner to another to understand changes in the
use or occupancy of homes.

Regarding the impacts of increased residency and visitation on public lands surrounding mountain communities:

PUBLIC LANDS USAGE IMPACTS
•

Work with public lands managers who oversee USFS and BLM property surrounding mountain communities to
mitigate the impacts from overcrowding at trailheads and in the backcountry. Institute permit systems, create
remote parking/shuttle services (e.g., Maroon Bells), mobilize volunteers to supplement the work of employees,
increase sanitation services (dumpsters, porta potties, dump stations), and implement a strong education
campaign.
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Demographic Profile of Survey Respondents
ARE YOU CURRENTLY A FULL-TIME OR PART-TIME RESIDENT OF THE COUNTY?
Full-time
Part-time
TOTAL

Part-time
Resident

0%
100%
1,237

Full-time
Resident

New-comers

Long-timers

65%
35%
309

79%
21%
3,058

New-comers

Long-timers

69%
28%
3%
309.0

92%
7%
1%
3,054

New-comers

Long-timers

7%
43%
18%
23%
10%
306.0
2.9

11%
47%
17%
20%
5%
3,010
2.6

100%
0%
3,478

DO YOU OWN OR RENT YOUR HOME IN THE COUNTY?
Own
Rent
Other
TOTAL

Part-time
Resident

97%
2%
1%
1,237

Full-time
Resident

84%
15%
1%
3,478

HOW MANY PEOPLE LIVE IN YOUR HOUSEHOLD?
1
2
3
4
5+
TOTAL
Average

Part-time
Resident

7%
62%
9%
15%
7%
1,210
2.5

Full-time
Resident

11%
42%
19%
22%
6%
3,443
2.7

WITHIN WHICH AGE CATEGORIES DO HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS FALL?
Under 18
18 to 29
30 to 64
65 and over
TOTAL

Part-time
Resident

20%
12%
66%
44%
1,206

Full-time
Resident

38%
14%
80%
24%
3,444

New-comers

Long-timers

39%
24%
86%
6%
306.0

33%
11%
73%
36%
3,008

WHAT IS YOUR GROSS ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD INCOME?
Under $50,000
$50,000 to $99,999
$100,000 to $149,999
$150,000 to $199,999
$200,000 to $299,999
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Part-time
Resident

2%
6%
10%
13%
16%

Full-time
Resident

8%
24%
27%
17%
12%

New-comers

Long-timers

6%
12%
14%
15%
18%

7%
20%
25%
17%
12%

TOTAL
Respondents

76%
24%
4,721

TOTAL
Respondents

87%
12%
1%
4,718

TOTAL
Respondents

10%
46%
17%
20%
6%
4,663
2.7

TOTAL
Respondents

33%
13%
76%
29%
4,662

TOTAL
Respondents
7%
20%
23%
16%
13%
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Kim Bell Williams • Eagle County Housing and Development Authority, Director
Ellen Sassano • Pitkin County, Senior Long Range Planner

Kathi Meyer • Steamboat Springs City Council Member, District II

Amy Priegel • Summit Combined Housing Authority, Executive Director
Tamara Pogue • Summit County Commissioner

Lars Carlson • Telluride Town Council Member, Real estate agent
Keith Riesberg • Winter Park, Town Manager
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INTERVIEWS, SURVEY OUTREACH ASSISTANCE, & LOCAL DATA SUPPORT
REAL ESTATE AGENTS – FOCUS GROUP

CHAMBERS & TOURISM DISTRICTS

Kristie DeLay, Grand County

Steamboat Springs Chamber, Routt County

Betsy Laughlin, Eagle County
Deb Brynoff, Grand County
Ashley Chod, Pitkin County
John Wade, Routt County

Doug Labor, Routt County

Lars Carlson, San Miguel County
Todd Rankin, Summit County
BOARDS OF REALTORS®

Vail Board of REALTORS®, Eagle County

Grand County Board of REALTORS®, Grand County
Aspen Board of REALTORS®, Pitkin County

Steamboat Springs Board of REALTORS®, Routt County

Telluride Association of REALTORS®, San Miguel County
Summit REALTORS®, Summit County
WATER PROVIDERS

Eagle River Water and Sanitation District, Eagle County
Grand County Water & San District #1, Grand County
Winter Park Water & San District, Grand County

Upper Valley Wastewater Treatment Plant, Grand County
City of Aspen Water Department, Pitkin County

Aspen Consolidated Sanitation District, Pitkin County
City of Steamboat, Public Works, Routt County

Mt. Werner Water and Sanitation, Routt County
Town of Breckenridge Water, Summit County

Upper Blue Sanitation District, Summit County
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Vail Valley Partnership, Eagle County

Telluride Tourism Board, San Miguel County

Summit Chamber of Commerce, Summit County
Breckenridge Grand Vacations, Summit County
SCHOOL DISTRICTS

Eagle Schools, Eagle County

East Grand Schools, Grand County

Aspen School District, Pitkin County

Steamboat Springs School District, Routt County
Telluride Schools, San Miguel County
Summit Schools, Summit County

NON-PROFITS & OTHER ORGANIZATIONS
Grand Foundation, Grand County

Summit Foundation, Summit County

St. Anthony Summit Medical Center, Summit County

Family & Intercultural Resource Center, Summit County
Telluride Arts District, San Miguel County
Telluride Foundation, San Miguel County

Aspen Center for Environmental Studies, Pitkin County
Aspen Institute, Pitkin County

Aspen Music Festival and School, Pitkin County
United Way, Routt County

DESTIMETRICS VISITOR DATA COMPILATION
Tom Foley, Inntopia Business Intelligence
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